# BENTLEY CRICKET CLUB



# Yearbook 2009/10<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Compiled by Simon Cleary (762)

## **Table of Contents**

COMMITTEE AND CAPTAINS	
GRAND FINAL RESULTS	
LADDERS	4
PRESIDENTS REPORT	6
WORDS FROM OUR PATRONS	8
CRICKET MANAGERS REPORT	
CHAIRMAN OF SELECTORS REPORT	
HEAD COACH REPORT	10
LOWER GRADE COACH REPORT	
	11
1 <sup>ST</sup> GRADE COACH REPORT	
1 <sup>ST</sup> GRADE COACH	11
GRADE BATTING AND FIELDING	12
1 <sup>ST</sup> GRADE BOWLING	13
GARDS SEASON REVIEW	13
3 <sup>RD</sup> GRADE REPORT	15
3 <sup>RD</sup> GRADE BATTING AND FIELDING	17
3 <sup>RD</sup> GRADE BOWLING	18
3 <sup>RD</sup> GRADE PREMIERSHIP SEASON REVIEW	19
5 <sup>TH</sup> GRADE REPORT	20
5 <sup>TH</sup> GRADE BATTING AND FIELDING	
5 <sup>TH</sup> GRADE BOWLING	22
6 <sup>TH</sup> GRADE REPORT	23
6 <sup>TH</sup> GRADE BATTING AND FIELDING	
6 <sup>TH</sup> GRADE BOWLING	25
9 <sup>TH</sup> GRADE REPORT	
9 <sup>TH</sup> GRADE BATTING AND FIELDING	27
9 <sup>TH</sup> GRADE BOWLING	
ONE DAY GRADE REPORT	29
ONE DAY GRADE BATTING AND FIELDING	30
ONE DAY GRADE BOWLING	32
TWENTY20 GRADE REPORT	33
TWENTY20 BATTING AND FIELDING	35
TWENTY20 GRADE BOWLING	
TWENTY20 PREMIERSHIP SEASON REVIEW	36
PROFESSIONALS BELMONT 100 RUN PARTNERSHIPS	37
ANNUAL SEASON AWARDS	37
GRADE PERFORMANCE AWARDS	38
DONALD "LLOYD" DUNGEY - 10,000 RUNS	39
OTHER MILESTONES ACHIEVE IN 2009/10	40
HAYWARD MEDAL	
CONSISTENCY AWARD	40
RALPH DUNGEY AWARD	
MILESTONES POSSIBLE IN 2010/11	41
KALAMUNDA BUS SERVICES CONSISTENCY AWARD POINTS	42
RALPH DUNGEY AWARD POINTS	
SEASON BATTING AND FIELDING	
SEASON BOWLING	
CAREER BATTING AND FIELDING	
CAREER BOWLING	50
TWENTY20 CAREER BATTING AND FIELDING	52
TWENTY20 CAREER BOWLING	
ADDITIONAL AUTHORS NOTE	
SPONSORS	

## **Committee and Captains**

President		Stafford Dawson
Vice President		Lachie Harris
Treasurer		Steve Shearing
Secretary		Brad Keenan
Committee Members		Anthony Brown Ed Daquino Ken Dawson Neil Gardner Chris Lockyer Cameron McNab Paul Pringle Purush Srinivasan Daniel Swansson Paul Warren Len Woodley
Cricket Manager		Ken Dawson
Chairman of Selectors		Peter Smith
Head Coach		Paul Coverdale
Other Coaches		Graeme Verco Darren Solomon Gregory Sheppard Chris Prescott Wayne Riekie Neil Gardner
Captains	1st Grade	Darren Solomon
	3rd Grade	Steve Paice
	5th Grade	Steve Shearing
	6th Grade	Ken de Jager
	9th Grade	Brad Keenan
	One Day Grade	Justin Warren
	Twenty20 Side	Chris Prescott Brendan Daye Laurence Paice

### **Grand Final Results**

#### CaptureSport Australia Twenty20 Grand Final v Subiaco Marist at Newman College Upper

7<sup>th</sup> March 2010

Bentley 4/74 (T Francis 21, O Fanayan 17\*, A Wittensledger 14)

#### def Subiaco Marist 73 (C Prescott 3/25, J Brooks 2/8)

A Wittensledger, T Francis, P Coverdale, O Fanayan, F Fanayan, L Paice, C Prescott (Capt), J Duffy, B Daye, J Brooks, H Shah, L Martin (12<sup>th</sup> man)

#### 3<sup>rd</sup> Grand Final v Doubleview Carine at Charles Veryard Reserve (East)

27<sup>th</sup> & 28<sup>th</sup> March 2010

Bentley 170 (C Pritchard 46, A Brown 32, B Mitchell 24, L Martin 20, T D'Souza 20\*)

#### def Doubleview Carine 165 (B Mitchell 7/78)

S Daye, M Duffy, C Pritchard, S Paice (Capt), L Martin, J Welsh, J Sibson, A Brown, B Mitchell (MoM), T D'Souza, R Taylor, B Keenan (12<sup>th</sup> man)

#### 1<sup>st</sup> Grand Final v Wembley Districts at Jones Paskin Reserve

27<sup>th</sup> & 28<sup>th</sup> March 2010

Bentley 155 (O Fanayan 36, B Daye 27, A Wittensledger 21)

def by Wembley Districts 195 (B Daye 5/86, C Prescott 3/53, P Coverdale 2/27)

T Francis, L Paice, A Wittensledger, P Coverdale, J Duffy, B Daye, O Fanayan, F Fanayan, D Solomon (Capt), C Prescott, E Britton, S Magill (12<sup>th</sup> man), G Dart (Manager), G Verco (Coach), N Gardner (Scorer)

#### 6<sup>th</sup> Grand Final v Ocean Ridge at AS Luketina Reserve

27<sup>th</sup> & 28<sup>th</sup> March 2010

Bentley 176 (M Birch 78)

def by Ocean Ridge 8/178 (K deJager 4/47, C Lockyer 2/35)

M Solanki, M Birch, K Dawson, N Gill, J Warren, C Chappelle, M Gilders, H Patel, S Cleary, K deJager (Capt), C Lockyer, S Arnott-Dungey (12<sup>th</sup> man), G Sheppard (Coach)

## Ladders

West Australian Suburban Turf Cricket Assoc. - 1st Grade

Rank	Team	Ρ	W2	W1	D	L1	L2	WKTS LOST	RUNS FOR	WKTS TAKEN	RUNS AGST	Points	%
1	Wembley Districts	11	1	8	1	1	0	99	3424	126	2066	80	2.1093
2	Bentley	11	1	8	0	2	0	103	2690	129	2059	76	1.6362
3	Swan Valley	11	1	6	1	3	0	84	2756	126	2553	64	1.6193
4	Doubleview-Carine	11	0	8	0	3	0	107	2590	115	2456	64	1.1334
5	Swanbourne	11	0	5	1	5	0	101	2228	114	2577	44	0.9759
6	Western Suburbs	11	0	4	2	5	0	95	2380	86	2198	40	0.9802
7	High Wycombe	10	0	4	0	6	0	105	2576	93	2574	32	0.8864
8	Applecross	11	0	4	0	7	0	118	2276	107	2396	32	0.8614
9	Bedford Morley	11	0	4	0	7	0	118	2331	99	2639	32	0.7411
10	Balcatta	11	0	3	0	8	0	124	2280	127	3209	24	0.7277
11	Fremantle / Mos Park	10	0	3	0	5	2	120	1966	94	2655	24	0.5801
12	Melville	11	0	2	1	7	1	137	2365	95	2480	20	0.6613
		11	0	2	1	7	1	137	2365	-	2480		-

#### West Australian Suburban Turf Cricket Assoc. - 3rd Grade

Rank	Team	Ρ	W2	W1	D	L1	L2	WKTS LOST	RUNS FOR	WKTS TAKEN	RUNS AGST	Points	%
1	Wembley Districts	11	0	8	1	2	0	95	2841	107	1950	68	1.641
2	Applecross	11	0	8	0	3	0	110	2304	112	1919	64	1.2225
3	Doubleview-Carine	11	0	8	0	3	0	123	2490	116	2062	64	1.1388
4	Bentley	11	0	7	0	4	0	117	2494	103	2235	56	0.9824
5	Western Suburbs	11	0	6	1	4	0	104	2084	128	2523	52	1.0166
6	Balcatta	11	0	6	0	5	0	109	2687	103	2364	48	1.0741
7	Swan Valley	11	0	5	1	5	0	120	2104	110	2185	44	0.8827
8	Melville	11	0	5	0	6	0	111	2263	117	2180	40	1.0942
9	Fremantle / Mos Park	11	1	3	0	7	0	112	2492	117	2339	36	1.113
10	Bedford Morley	11	0	4	1	6	0	106	2053	115	2229	36	0.9992
11	Swanbourne	11	0	2	0	8	1	121	1849	125	2681	16	0.7125
12	High Wycombe	11	0	1	0	10	0	127	1815	102	2809	8	0.5189

#### West Australian Suburban Turf Cricket Assoc. - 5th Grade

							-						
Rank	Team	Ρ	W2	W1	D	L1	L2	WKTS LOST	RUNS FOR	WKTS TAKEN	RUNS AGST	Points	%
1	Whitfords	11	1	8	0	2	0	99	2375	122	1979	76	1.4789
2	Wembley Districts	11	0	8	1	2	0	106	2480	110	2050	68	1.2554
3	Bedford Morley	11	1	5	0	5	0	122	2880	109	2277	52	1.13
4	Applecross	11	0	6	0	4	1	107	2273	97	1979	48	1.0412
5	Subiaco Marist	11	0	6	0	5	0	101	2316	103	2280	48	1.0359
6	Balcatta	11	0	5	1	5	0	105	2093	120	2372	44	1.0084
7	Melville	11	0	5	0	6	0	101	2535	121	2592	40	1.1717
8	Western Suburbs	11	0	5	0	6	0	95	2409	105	2558	40	1.0409
9	Bentley	11	0	5	0	6	0	119	2223	108	2191	40	0.9208
10	Doubleview-Carine	11	0	5	0	6	0	113	2215	111	2421	40	0.8987
11	Tuart Hill	11	1	3	0	6	1	106	1968	111	2522	36	0.8171
12	Swanbourne	11	0	1	0	9	1	139	1834	96	2380	8	0.5322

	west	Aust	rallan	Suc	bur	bar	11		icket A	SSOC	6th Gra	ae				
Rank	Team	Ρ	W2	w	1	D	L1	L2	WKTS LOST	RUNS FOR	WKTS TAKEN	RUNS AGST		s	%	
1	Ocean Ridge	14	2	8		0	4	0	106	2563	158	2270	88		1.683	
2	Bentley	14	0	11	1	0	3	0	121	2677	132	2005	88		1.4565	
3	High Wycombe	14	0	10	)	0	4	0	119	2921	130	2217	80		1.4393	
4	Swan Valley	14	0	9		0	4	1	129	2623	137	2497	72		1.1156	
5	Bassendean	14	0	8		0	6	0	122	2678	127	2670	64		1.0441	
6	Fremantle / Mos Park	14	0	3		0	11	0	121	2114	117	3034	24		0.6737	
7	Western Suburbs	14	0	3		0	10	1	140	2449	105	2799	24		0.6562	
8	Whitfords	14	0	2		0	12	0	143	2413	95	2946	16		0.5441	
-	West	Aust	ralian	Sub	our	bar	<u>ו דו</u>	urf Cr	ricket A	ssoc	9th Gra	de				
Rank	Team	Р	W2	w	1	D	L1	L2	WKTS LOST	RUNS FOR	WKTS TAKEN	RUNS AGST		s	%	
1	Melville	14	0	10	)	1	3	0	95	2464	120	2545	84		1.223	
2	Swanbourne	14	0	10	)	0	4	0	102	2467	123	2246	80		1.3245	
3	Bentley	14	0	9		0	5	0	127	2767	116	2291	72		1.1032	
4	Bedford Morley	14	0	8		1	5	0	125	2513	115	2067	68		1.1185	
5	Subiaco Marist	14	0	5		1	8	0	103	2453	113	2443	44		1.1016	
6	Ocean Ridge	14	0	5		1	8	0	115	2322	113	2405	44		0.9487	
7	Curtin Victoria Park	14	0	4		0	10	0	136	2304	112	2749	32		0.6902	
8	Bassendean	14	0	3		0	11	0	126	2189	117	2733	24		0.7437	
	West	Aust	ralian	Sub	our	ban	ι Τι	urf Cr	icket A	ssoc	One Da	y 2				
Rank	Team	Ρ	W1	D	L1	L	2	WKTS LOST						dd ints	%	
1	Melville	15	15	0	0	C	)	99	3074	146	2101	12	)	8	2.924	41
2	Bentley	15	9	0	6	0	)	84	2638	117	2554	72	4	.8	0.784	49
3	Balcatta	15	9	0	6	0	)	101	2262	121	2166	72	4	.8	0.52	3
4	Curtin Victoria Park	16	10	0	6	C	)	118	2665	106	2637	72	4	.5	-0.08	17
5	Western Suburbs	15	5	0	10	C	)	118	2195	110	2767	40	2.6	667	-1.04	80
6	High Wycombe	16	5	0	11	C	)	118	2042	99	2330	40	2	.5	-1.19	35
7	Applecross	17	2	0	15	C	)	141	2296	80	2617	, 8	0.4	171	-1.76	11
	West Austr	aliar	n Subi	urba	<u>n 1</u>	urf	Cr	icket	Assoc	Capt	ureSpor	t Twen	ty20			
Rank	Team	Р	W2	W1		D	L1	L2	WKTS LOST	RUNS FOR	WKTS TAKEN	RUNS AGST	Points	5	NRR	
1	Balcatta	4	0	4		0	0	0	19	564	36	434	32		2.6707	,
2	Melville	3	0	3		0	0	0	22	425	27	317	24		1.8396	5
3	Kalamunda	4	0	3		0	1	0	24	581	26	413	24		1.4456	5
4	Bentley	4	0	3		0	1	0	15	456	37	456	24		1.3881	I
5	Subiaco Marist	4	0	3		0	1	0	23	385	35	349	24		1.3468	}
6	Applecross	4	0	3		0	1	0	26	535	24	491	24		0.902	
7	Swanbourne	3	0	2		0	1	0	17	422	18	216	16		1.588	
8	Tuart Hill	4	0	2		0	2	0	30	470	32	433	16		0.7491	
9	Wembley Districts	4	0	2		0	2	0	29	616	29	587	16		0.5431	
10	Whitfords	4	0	2		0	2	0	22	464	30	475	16		0.4422	2
11	Doubleview-Carine	4	0	2		0	2	0	28	536	24	544	16		0.0718	}
12	Swan Athletic	4	0	2		0	2	0	32	435	27	475	16		-1.6003	
13	Western Suburbs	3	0	1		0	2	0	20	281	19	342	8		1.325	
14	Nollamara	4	0	1		0	3	0	36	468	27	530	8		-1.1084	
15	Ocean Ridge	4	0	1		0	3	0	33	486	18	532	8		-1.5103	
16	Bedford Morley	4	0	1		0	3	0	28	445	22	510	8		-1.7059	
17	Curtin Victoria Park	4	0	1		0	3	0	31	498	18	632	8		-1.843 <i>′</i>	
18	South Perth	4	0	0		0	4	0	28	464	19	542	0		-1.8338	
19	Fremantle / Mos Park	3	0	0		0	3	0	30	207	25	460	0		-4.2167	7

## West Australian Suburban Turf Cricket Assoc. - 6th Grade

## Presidents Report

Ladies and Gentleman,

It is with great pleasure that I present this my first and the Club's 57th Annual Report, which indeed is a reflection of the Bentley Cricket Club's 2009/2010 season.

Well, once again another year and cricket season has passed for our Cricket Club, with which I sincerely hope our Cricket Club and those involved within it, are a year wiser to the ways of people and cricket.

The fabric of our club this year was stretched to its limit on many occasions from various fronts from within and outside the cricket club. These included sad losses of loved ones to some families, happy and safe arrivals to others, and the joining of two families in a wedding. I dare say this is what makes Bentley Cricket Club a family oriented club.

I must start this report be thanking the hard working board, their support to myself and the cricket club didn't falter during what was at times, I would describe as probably the most difficult year at an administration level that has been experienced. The Committee has once again placed an enormous amount of time into a club that they love, in their endeavour to give an enjoyable game of cricket to members of the community at all ages and ability.

Our year started with a great deal of disruption due to the lack of availability of our change rooms. "The Merv Mac Pavilion" was still under restoration when the season started, although we were aware of this renovation happening, it can at times be inconvenient for both our club and visiting clubs. However, staying true to form, the BCC started the season like any other, with dedication and perseverance. Our centre wicket, like no other club, always takes a beating from the season of football that had been playing on it over the winter, but with dedication and a little TLC from Chris Prescott, that too was ready in time.

It was most pleasing to have Paul Coverdale, Darren Solomon and Greg Sheppard as coaches at the club for the season. With their continued support for the club, and knowing what is good for the players, it never ceases to amaze those who have associations with these three people. However, these coaches would find their job harder if they did not have the ongoing support from Graeme Verco, Wayne Riekie & Chris Prescott and not forgetting Neil Gardner as the nets captain. I would also like to thank the Chairman of Selector's Peter Smith, a job that rolls off the tongue very easily but at times this season it was probably the toughest of jobs at the club. To all of the gentlemen involved, my thanks for your never ending energy and drive to keep the club and players travelling in the right direction.

There are a few players that have met significant milestones this season, one of those being Greg Nairn, who took his 600<sup>th</sup> wicket for the club this season (with a career bowling average of only 14.25 runs per wicket). Not only is he a great clubman, but he has also worked hard for the club in previous years. Having left the club for a number of years to work overseas, he returned to be the Treasurer and reach a number of personal milestones including 200 games for the club during 2007/08. Congratulations Greg and also thanks for your continued support of the club.

Another Milestone was also met by Lloyd Dungey, who this year made it to 10,000 runs. Having been at the club for more than 40 years, it is hard to believe that this man has been a BCC member and also supported the club for as long as many of our players have been alive. It is most enjoyable to sit and have a chat over a cold beer and listen to the stories that are told from previous years, it's only then that you realize and appreciate the BCC and what the club means to the community. Congratulations to both of you on achieving these personal milestones.

This season, the Bentley Cricket Club was represented by six teams in the Western Australian Suburban Turf Cricket Association. At any given time on training nights, we had 40 - 50 eligible guys turn up for training, with family and work commitments, that was in itself a great achievement. Out of the six teams, we had five that reached the semi finals and three that reached the grand finals. I would like to thank all Captains for their dedication and perseverance in trying to achieve the ultimate goal and although finals cricket didn't eventuate for all teams, individual players put together many good performances throughout the season.

At this point in time I would like to congratulate Steve Paice and his 3rd Grade team for winning the 2009/2010 Premiership on what was a very successful season. The team was strongly supported throughout the season on and off the field and with the great blend of players and dedication it payed off, congratulations to this team.

I would also like to take this opportunity to congratulate our 20/20 captains and players on a job well done in winning this seasons Capture Sport 20/20 Grand Final. Congratulations to all players and supporters on what was a terrific season for all. On a personal note, I would like to thank the Captains representing the 20/20, Chris Prescott, Brendan Daye and Laurence Paice for working towards a Grand Final Victory. Well Done.

I would like to thank the Social Committee: Brad Keenan, Neil Gardner, Lachie Harris and Chris & Karen Lockyer for running the Social Calendar that catered for all players and their families throughout the 2009/2010 season, a job well done.

This brings me to the wonderful support given to our Club by all the sponsors large and small, without their tremendous contributions there just wouldn't be a "Bentley Cricket Club" as we know it. For that, I would like to thank you all.

At this point, I would also like to thank Mayor of the City of Canning Joe Della Donne, Ben Wyatt MLA and Counsellor's Lindsey Elliot and Graham Barry for their continuous support of the Bentley Cricket Club.

To all the partners and their families, I would also like to thank you for your support given to your loved ones and supporting them through what can be at times a thankless job. Thank you for the afternoon teas prepared and the never ending job of keeping cricket whites clean!

The future of the club this upcoming season looks very positive, with the same commitment as previous years there is nothing stopping Bentley Cricket Club achieving its goal. Hoping to secure overseas players yet again and with the present talent that we already have, there is nothing holding the club back moving forward. If considering your involvement in the club, keep in mind that new talent on the committee would be useful, not only for the club, but also for fresh ideas. All indications at this stage show quality cricket people should lead the BCC into the future with a new look and new ideas which will be a big positive for the club.

In closing, I wish to thank all those people involved with this club, those that have assisted during the previous year and many years prior, to make this club a very pleasant and rewarding environment for its members.

To all the players of our club, please remember that the board, sponsors and supporters of the club are there for one reason and that is to give you an enjoyable environment to play the game that we all love. Please have the respect for those holding positions at the club and give them your full support in every way possible.

#### Stafford Dawson President of the Bentley Cricket Club

#### Words from our Patrons

It is incredible that another cricket season has come to an end and the wind-up is upon us! As usual, Bentley Cricket Club continues to field committed and impressive teams in many levels with five of the six teams making the finals! Having three teams making it through to the Grand Final again showed the depth and strength of the Bentley Cricket Club!

As a cricket tragic (literally), I would like to congratulate Lloyd Dungey who this year made his 10,000<sup>th</sup> run!! It still amazes me that Lloyd made his first run for Bentley Cricket Club four years before I was even a twinkle in my father's eye!! Also to Greg Nairn who took his 600<sup>th</sup> wicket this year! Both Lloyd and Greg represent the amazing spirit and camaraderie that pervade the Bentley Cricket Club.

As the local Member of Parliament I could not be more proud of the efforts that go into making Bentley Cricket Club what it is, its passion, drive and commitment to the local community provide an example to all other sporting clubs. Bentley CC has always been led by a strong and dedicated Committee and I would like to again thank Stafford Dawson, the President, and all the members of the Committee who work so hard to ensure that the Club not only fields great teams, but also that the bar is stocked and the BBQs are hot!

Always remember that the success of clubs such as Bentley CC are built on the commitment and effort of volunteers and the more who volunteer the easier it is!

I wish everyone all the very best for the 'off season'. Congratulations again on another wonderful year for the Bentley Cricket Club, a Club that I am so proud to be Patron.

#### Ben Wyatt Member for Victoria Park Patron - Bentley Cricket Club

As Mayor of the City of Canning, and on behalf of my fellow Councillors, staff and residents of the City, it is my pleasure to once again congratulate Bentley Cricket Club on its performance during the 2009/10 season.

This season, the Club was represented by six teams in the Western Australian Suburban Turf Cricket Association. Of the six teams, five played in the semi finals and three played in the grand finals.

Congratulations to the 3rd Grade team who are the 2009/10 Premiers and to the 20/20 captains and players who won the season's Capture Sport 20/20 Grand Final.

The Bentley Cricket Club is one of the highly successful sporting organisations that abound in our City and it is always my pleasure to recognise not only the wins on the field, but also acknowledge the individual achievements both on and off the field.

Having read each of the reports across the divisions, the achievements would be too numerous for me to mention. My sincere congratulations, however, to everyone who achieved a personal goal and to the teams who continued to show their sporting prowess and their true understanding of sportsmanship.

The strength of the Bentley Cricket Club comes from the level of commitment shown by your players and the dedication of your committee and supporters. This ongoing commitment has seen the Club rank as one of the best metropolitan cricket clubs.

It is also this level of commitment that has seen the City continue to offer financial assistance so that the Club can continue to grow and attract new players.

Each and every one of you who has helped make this Club the success that it is, can be proud of your role.

Congratulations to all and best wishes from me and my fellow Councillors for the future.

Joe Delle Donne JP Mayor of City of Canning Patron - Bentley Cricket Club

## Cricket Managers Report

Once again this year through the very hard work and dedication of the coaching staff we at Bentley Cricket Club have produced a very strong player group. Our recruiting has been second to none and we picked up another overseas player in Jack Brooks along with having Paul Coverdale come back to coach and captain the A grade squad.

Although we only bought home two flag we saw six out of seven teams get into the finals with four of those entering the grand final. This reflects the depth and quality of players at the Bentley Cricket Club. To Steve Paice and his 3<sup>rd</sup> grade team congratulations on your well earned grand final victory. It was great to see some of our young players namely Chris Prescott, Laurence Paice and Brendan Daye put their hands up to Captain in the victorious Twenty20 side. It was great to see you guys go one better this year and take home the prize. To all the other teams that missed out this year I am sure that with the dedication and determination of the club, coaching staff, committee members and player group that there is no reason that we cannot have an even more successful year next year.

I believe that our A grade squad has is yet to see its full potential. With a young and talented mix of players greater success will come but not with out a lot of hard work. I also believe with the strength of our club and the pride all our players have we will be able to sustain the level and continue to be the club who will be a power in the competition in years to come. All players in our club have aspired to become better players than they were the previous year. This is an asset to our club and something that is needed in order to achieve success like we have.

A big thank you to our coaches: Paul Coverdale, Greg Sheppard, Wayne Riekie and Chris Prescott, captains, all committee members and to everyone else who helped through out the year. Without your contribution success cannot be achieved. To our executive committee led by Stafford thank you for all your help and guidance throughout the season your tireless effort has been greatly appreciated on many levels.

Congratulations Bentley Cricket Club on a successful season. I look forward to the challenges of planning and playing another successful season in 2010/2011.

#### Ken Dawson Cricket Manager

## **Chairman of Selectors Report**

The job description for Chairman of Selectors involves 13 separate functions. I trust I have fulfilled each of these during this busy season. The task of selecting six well balanced and competitive teams is made extraordinarily easier when I have the opportunity of working with six captains of the quality the club had this season.

Solly and Paicey had very stable teams thru the year and my role with them was simply to ratify their thoughts with only the occasional question about team balance and availability. 1's being runners up and 3's with a storming finish to be premiers confirms their ideas were not far from always being correct.

The lower grade skippers were also positive with their selection ideas and my role was mainly to hurry them along, with my list of available players, so Staff could be ready with announcements at 7.30pm on Thursdays. When players became unavailable at the last minute the Skippers rearranged teams very professionally and on most occasions without my help.

Selections for finals are always more difficult than during the regular season and with five teams playing finals, this year was no exception. A lot of extra thought went into composing these sides so for those players who missed out – try a little harder next year.

I would like to thank Shep for his work as Coach and his astute observations of players on the training track, which helped me in my role.

A thanks also to Simon Cleary and Steve Paice for arranging to have the announced teams up on the website in a timely manner. I apologise to those players whose names I mispronounced on occasions and those few who felt aggrieved at the team they were selected in or not selected in.

#### PC Smith Chairman of Selectors

## Head Coach Report

Starting a fresh campaign after winning the one previously is always tricky to get right. There is the often natural and dangerous expectation from many that last season's success will flow on into the next one, and there is the crucial balance that has to be found between playing with the confidence that befits a team that are reigning champions and not allowing that confidence to become complacency. There is also the need to re-create the hunger and desire to start again after the previous season's high.

Bentley Cricket Club, through its leadership and character of the people involved, is never without hunger or desire. Whilst the 1<sup>st</sup> Grade eventually pulled up 40 runs short of achieving a repeat of the great success of 2009, the way the team dominated for the vast majority of the season and continued to strengthen in ability, spirit and professionalism was extremely pleasing. This has sent out strong messages to all outsiders and rivals that the 1<sup>st</sup> Grade is not just a one-time flash in the pan. Although we won last year and just fell short this year, I think many others who have watched us over the last 2 seasons would agree that we were a stronger team in 2009/10 than we were the season before – which is something the Club can be very pleased and positive about.

The most pleasing success story for the A-grade squad however this year has come from Steve Paice's 3<sup>rd</sup> Grade side. For the past two years, the 1<sup>st</sup> and 3<sup>rd</sup> Grade captains - Darren Solomon, Steve Paice and Simon Magill (who shouldn't be forgotten about in this resulting 3<sup>rd</sup> Grade success) – have really worked hard to instil the policy and culture of the top two teams being one collective unit and training and playing in this manner. As a result of this and of the hard work that each player has put in, we now have two very strong top teams and a much wider spread of ability to select from. It is great to be able to boast – and prove – that there are at least four or five players now in that 3<sup>rd</sup> Grade team that are genuine contenders for 1<sup>st</sup> Grade spots every week, and when guys have come up they haven't simply made up numbers they have played proper roles. This is something we want to go on building and building as an A-grade squad and it will undoubtedly lead to further successes for both teams.

Another point to mention I think has been the efforts of the Lower Grade Coach, Greg Sheppard, this year. Shep has brought a great deal of structure to the sessions that he oversees. It was great to see that guys were increasingly taking this on-board and starting to change their approaches to things such as: warm-ups, methods they are looking to use when batting or bowling in the nets, fielding drills they are getting involved in when not batting or bowling in the nets, etc. It often fails to get the recognition it deserves, but managing a training session of anything from 20 to 70 cricketers - all needing to be given the right amount of time to practice each discipline of the game - is an extremely challenging task. I for one am very grateful to have had Shep there to take practically all of that off my hands on the Tuesday and Thursday evenings.

To conclude, this year has been another extremely enjoyable and successful one for all players and followers of the Agrade squad and, as Coach, I would like to thank all those that have put in the hard yards and strived to keep improving as players and as a squad. I am very confident that next year will see continued and further success.

#### Paul Coverdale Bentley Coach

## Lower Grade Coach Report

As another season closes, the saying that "The price of success is hard work, dedication to the job at hand, and the determination that whether we win or lose, we have applied the best of ourselves to the task at hand" certainly applies. The hard work started in mid-August and the success came at the end of the season in 5 of 6 sides making the finals, 3 sides making Grand Finals and 1 side winning a Premiership. To the Premiership players, you have done yourself proud and the medallions you have received are a well-deserved memory befitting a group of individuals whose hard work, determination, competitive drive and dedication to the task at hand, provided the ultimate success.

On a personal note, I would like to thank the committee for giving myself the opportunity to coach such a wonderful club. It has been a great learning curve and one I have thoroughly enjoyed. To the other coaches, Paul Coverdale and Chris Prescott, thank you for your assistance and advice during the year. And now to the players, I would like to thank each and every one of you for the time and support you gave to me personally and my coach methods during the season. I hope I was able to provide some form of wisdom and knowledge into improving you as cricketers throughout this past season.

Tonight we enjoy each others performances and accomplishments as we should, but remember the hard work and challenges will soon start again, as we strive to keep the mighty Bentley Cricket Club a leader in our competition.

#### Greg Sheppard Lower Grade Coach

## 1<sup>st</sup> Grade Report

Season 09/10 was one full of great individual and team performances. If you look at the stats you will see the likes of Brendan Daye, Jack Brooks and Chris Prescott with some great one off bowling performances and also season figures. The batting stats will also show that Paul Coverdale, Arden Wittensledger and Omo Fanayan had very good seasons. What is most pleasing are the even contributions made by everyone who played 1st grade this year.

After a bad start losing to Swanbourne in the first game of the year the team really clicked and played some great cricket, winning most games. The tightness of the group with some great fielding and good batting came to the forefront and our finishing position of second was thoroughly deserved, a result of lots of hard work by the lads throughout the year.

In hindsight losing to and pushing Wembley in the grand final was a very good effort. Because of the high standards we have set we are disappointed however I'm sure the club will be keen to move forward and give ourselves the best possible chance again next year. On behalf of the 1<sup>st</sup> Grade a big congratulations to Steve Paice and the 3<sup>rd</sup> Grade, we witnessed firsthand their hard work and the win was much deserved. Congratulations must also go to the rest of the club on their seasons.

On a personal note as outgoing captain I would like to thank the Bentley Cricket Club for the honour and privilege of being able to lead the club over the last 3 years, BCC is a great club! In those 3 years I have thanked many people who have helped me, you know who you are and I thank you again. Finally thanks to the boys this year and also the previous 2 years, we have become a more professional and consistently competitive side which has always been our goal.

Kind Regards

Darren Solomon 1<sup>st</sup> Grade Captain

## 1<sup>st</sup> Grade Coach Report

After a successful 2008/2009 season, we always knew how hard it would be to follow up next season winning another premiership. Well we went within a whisker of obtaining back to back premierships and unfortunately fell just short on grand final day. In hindsight, losing 3 games for the season has to be classified as a successful year. Do not ever underestimate the leadership qualities of Solly, whose last 3 seasons as skipper have been absolutely outstanding. This year Pressy & Daisy backed up by Brooksey, all had outstanding years with the ball and batting wise Covers, Arden and all batsmen at some stage stood up and contributed to the team effort. The most pleasing aspect of our batting was that in most games we batted the full 80 overs. To take the next step and win another flag we probably all need to increase our effort by 5% and I am sure we will be extremely competitive next season.

From a personal view, I have really enjoyed my involvement this year and it was an absolute pleasure working with Solly, Covers, Arden, Daisy & Laurie Paice as the 1<sup>st</sup> Grade leadership group. Congratulations to Steve Paice and his boys on an outstanding grand final win and also well done to Steve, Ken, Brad & Holly and their teams for very competitive seasons. Remember Whitfords used to be the benchmark but that baton has now changed to Wembley and we are not far behind, but as previously mentioned we all need in improve that little bit extra to get to the top.

Finally, thanks to Greg Dart (outstanding job as 1<sup>st</sup> grade manager), Kenny, Shep, Pete Smith, Gards, Solly snr, Len, KB, Jenny, Big Tony and all the committee and volunteers who make this club tick. To Stafford, Lachie, Brad and Steve as senior people you have been tremendous and should feel satisfied with this seasons results.

Thank you for the opportunity.

Graeme Verco 1<sup>st</sup> Grade Coach

## 1<sup>st</sup> Grade Batting and Fielding

Player	м	I	NO	HS	Runs	Bat Avg	50s	100s	Dks	4s	6s	Cat. /St.	R/O	Field Votes
Coverdale, Paul S	8	9	2	128*	453	64.71	2	2	1	50	0	5	1.5	71
Wittensleger, Arden	13	14	0	120	395	28.21	1	1	1	46	7	6	0	31
Fanayan, Omid	13	14	4	60	315	31.50	1	0	0	47	1	10	0	143
Paice, Laurence	11	14	2	84	299	24.92	2	0	3	35	0	12	0	59
Duffy, Jack	13	14	3	33	233	21.18	0	0	3	19	0	8	1.5	106
Thomas, Aidon	9	11	1	123*	232	23.20	0	1	2	22	0	3	0	33
Daye, Brendan	13	13	2	65	201	18.27	1	0	0	20	0	10	2	40
Brooks, Jack A	6	6	1	29	120	24.00	0	0	0	10	5	2	0	6
Fanayan, Fab	8	8	0	55	104	13.00	1	0	1	6	0	5	1.5	31
Prescott, Chris	12	11	2	20*	102	11.33	0	0	1	12	1	1	0	7
Francis, Tristan	4	6	0	23	96	16.00	0	0	0	15	1	2	0	0
Solomon, Darren J	11	10	5	20*	66	13.20	0	0	0	2	0	17/5	1	43
Bradbury, Chris	2	3	0	25	51	17.00	0	0	0	9	0	4	0.5	46
Daye, Steven M	2	3	0	27	49	16.33	0	0	1	2	0	0	0	7
Britton, Evan	4	3	0	28	29	9.67	0	0	1	3	0	0	0	2
Thomas, Jai P	1	1	1	23*	23	N/A	0	0	0	3	0	1	0	0
Shah, Hiten	11	6	2	17*	19	4.75	0	0	3	1	0	3	1	52
Maurer, Craig	1	1	0	4	4	4.00	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0
Thomas, Jaxon B	1	1	0	0	0	-	0	0	1	0	0	1	0	0
Magill, Simon	2	0				N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

#### Season Results (Including Fielding Votes)

#### Partnerships

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Rd	Inn	Opponent
1#	142	Laurence Paice - Aidon Thomas*	3	1	Melville
2	105	Aidon Thomas* - Arden Wittensleger	3	1	Melville
3	95	Laurence Paice - Paul Coverdale*	9	1	High Wycombe
4	123	Arden Wittensleger* - Brendan Daye	5	1	Western Suburbs
5	109	Brendan Daye* - Fab Fanayan	4	1	Bedford Morley
6	77	Jack Duffy - Omid Fanayan*	8	1	Doubleview-Carine
7	47	Omid Fanayan* - Chris Prescott	7	1	Fremantle / Mosman Park
8	69	Fab Fanayan - Darren Solomon*	SF	1	Swan Valley
9	25	Chris Prescott* - Darren Solomon	6	1	Balcatta
10	43	Hiten Shah* - Evan Britton	2	1	Wembley Districts

<sup>#</sup> - denotes new all time record for wicket for this side

#### Career Batting Records for this Side

Games: 236 – L.Dungey; 191 – B.Hayward; 189 – G.Farrall; 185 – A.Hayward; 167 – P.Quartermaine

Runs: 4509 - L.Dungey; 4076 - P.Quartermaine; 3761 - A.Hayward; 3311 - B.Hayward; 3083 - K.Esmond

Fours: 334 – L.Dungey; 294 – A.Hayward; 280 – B.Hayward; 264 – G.Farrall; 248 – P.Quartermaine

Sixes: 30 – L.Dungey; 29 – A.Magill; **17 - A Wittensledger**; 17 – L.Thompson; 15 – D.Berry

Dismissals: 141 – S.Mills; 129 – B.Hayward; 125 – K.Esmond; 115 – P.Warren; 107 – A.Hayward; 107 – L.Dungey

## 1<sup>st</sup> Grade Bowling

Player	Overs	Balls	М	w	Runs	Bowl Avg.	Best Bwling	5wk inn.	7wk inn.	10wk mtch	Bowl S/R	Bowl Eco
Daye, Brendan	288	1728	82	52	671	12.90	8/11	6	1	0	33.2	2.33
Prescott, Chris	251.4	1510	55	49	691	14.10	9/52	4	2	0	30.8	2.75
Brooks, Jack A	116	696	34	23	267	11.61	6/12	1	0	0	30.3	2.30
Shah, Hiten	119	714	42	9	256	28.44	3/45	0	0	0	79.3	2.15
Coverdale, Paul S	39	234	6	3	122	40.67	2/27	0	0	0	78.0	3.13
Britton, Evan	19	114	2	2	50	25.00	2/22	0	0	0	57.0	2.63
Thomas, Jaxon B	6	36	2	1	14	14.00	1/14	0	0	0	36.0	2.33
Fanayan, Fab	14	84	4	1	51	51.00	1/16	0	0	0	84.0	3.64
Paice, Laurence	16	96	0	1	77	77.00	1/12	0	0	0	96.0	4.81
Thomas, Jai P	7	42	1	0	22	N/A	0/22	0	0	0	N/A	3.14
Maurer, Craig	4.3	27	0	0	11	N/A	0/11	0	0	0	N/A	2.44
Fanayan, Omid	2	12	0	0	20	N/A	0/20	0	0	0	N/A	10.00

#### Career Bowling Records for this Side

Wickets: 605 – G.Farrall; 327 – B.Trouchet; 318 – S.Rankin; 271 – A.Malins; 255 – A.Hayward

Balls: 15184 – G.Farrall; 11561 – A.Hayward; 10443 – G.Nairn; 10353 – S.Rankin; 9790 – B.Trouchet

Maidens: 468 - G.Nairn; 441 - A.Hayward; 377 - A.Magill; 353 - S.Rankin; 314 - C. Prescott

#### **Gards Season Review**

Season 2009-10 has passed like the Indian Pacific. It only seems like yesterday that we had pre-season with Shep, Reiks and senior players leading the way for our Saturday Morning training sessions. The 1<sup>st</sup> grade were still riding the crest of a wave, following a breakthrough premiership last season and despite the loss of a couple of senior personnel, were still going to be a force to be reckoned with.

Soly took on the captaincy once again, due to the unexpected delay in the arrival of Paul "Lord" Coverdale, due to work commitments in the UK. We were slow out of the blocks against Swanbourne in Round 1 and paid the penalty for some dropped catches and lethargic fielding. We still restricted them to a reasonable score, but lost wickets regularly in the chase and were rolled about 50 runs shy of the total. Not a good start.

The next few games were about consolidation and we tried a mix of old and new, with Laurence Paice and newcomer Aidon Thomas forming a strong partnership at the top. Arden at No 3 making it a formidable top order. We won the next 8 games straight and were buoyed by great efforts from Hoover, with several solid starts. His 60 in the last game at Wyong was a stand out. Aidon with a maiden 1<sup>st</sup> grade ton against Melville and Arden with some brilliant cameo batting including a brilliant 120 against Western Suburbs as a highlight. Jack Duffy also contributed solidly at No 5 and made several patient scores within going on to a big one. Omo also deserves praise for several gutsy knocks in the middle order, including his half century at Wyong batting with a runner, after a below the belt knock. He also copped a black eye from a top edged sweep shot later in the season.

The post Christmas period saw the arrival of Lord Coverdale and he took the competition by storm, scoring runs at will, including two brilliant hundreds, an eighty and a T20 80 at Balcatta, which included a monster six, which went into a different postcode. Along with Covers, came Jack Brooks, a favourite with the ladies and a handy cricketer too – he made a great all-round contribution and was Man-of-the-Match in the T20 victory, with a brilliant bowling and fielding display, backed up by solid cameos with the bat. We missed his contribution come finals and one can only speculate what difference he'd have made to the outcome.

Dayesy and Chris Prescott was at times a two-man band, combining to bowl three quarters of the overs and still going strong at the end of 80 overs. Both blokes combined for 101 wickets between them in the top grade, they were responsible for changing the course of several games. Squid's effort at Veryard was incredible. His figures went from 0/36 from 10 overs to 9/52 from 19 – a mere 9/16 from 9 overs. Hiten bowled as tight as ever and took his into the

wind role with great aplomb. He was badly missed after he broke his thumb. Covers also bowled handy overs and gave a lion-hearted display in the grand final with the ball.

After a hiccup in the penultimate round vs Applecross, we bounced back in the last round at home, where we controlled the game. Late in the season, Tristan Francis came into the side after a big hundred in the 2s and showed he has a future in the top side, with his bludgeoning willow. He only knows one way. If it's in his area – he hits it!!! Jaxon Thomas also showed promise in his A-grade debut, the semi-final and played his role in getting us to the big dance. A real chance he'd have played the final if available. Others to play in the top side for the first time were Chris Bradbury, Jai Thomas, Steve Daye with Evan Britton getting a return during the season and bowling gallantly in the grand final.

Brendan Daye contributed solidly with the bat, but it is his bowling feats, for which he will be remembered this season. Dayesy saved his best until second last, with a brilliant spell on a wet track and made Swan Valley play every ball. His return of 8/11 from 10 overs was brilliant stuff, as we spun them out for 72. What came next was incredible, losing three wickets in the first over (including a hat-trick) to be 3 for none, but thanks to the grit (and a bit of luck) of Fabby and Soly, we got over the line, scoring 128 before the game was called off.

So to the grand final, we came up against a very strong Wembley Districts side at Jones Paskin Reserve. They won the toss and batted. After a solid start, Dayesy was introduced, again, with immediate effect. We had them 3/90 and then they consolidated to 4/140. We bowled very well to keep them to a 195, particularly with Geoff Cullen as gritty as ever in his 85. Dayesy was superb with 5/59 from 29 overs, ably backed up by Squid with 3 wickets and Covers with two. After going to stumps none down, our curse hit again, early wickets. 4/90 and it required some real commitment to the cause. Enter Omo once again. In partnership with Dayesy, they combined to push the score up to 140 before Dayesy played on. The run rate required was also creeping up and we needed to take risks. Omo combined with Fabby and Soly to edge past 150 before we had several run outs to fall short by 40 runs in a brave effort. Just by the emotions on several players faces after the game, we'll all be back to have another crack at it next season. I must pay homage to Arden. I hope this isn't the last we see of him. A brilliant player for the club and a true leader amongst the team. All the best mate. Ace also supported the boys each week and was a great team mascot once again.

Thanks to everyone associated with the A-grade squad, from Darty's efforts as Team Manager, Vercs-a calming influence on everyone, Soly snr, great supporter and loved by all the boys, Jen for her efforts in keeping the boys on the park. I also thank the committee, who welcomed me on board this season, the coaches, in particular Shep. Sorry mate, but some of us can't quite make your 4.30pm starts. I also thank the likes of Wingy and Karen, along with Jakey and Matt, for your tireless work and friendship, Lou and Big Tony for their efforts behind the bar, Lenny for his humour and tucker. Jules and Paicey for their website work. Thanks to all the boys from for your friendship. To Paicey and the 3's on winning the flag against the odds – a brilliant effort fellas. Well done 6th grade for making the gf also. Come back better for the experience next season. To all the other grades who made finals – you did us proud and the club was strong on and off the field. Let's come back better and stronger in 2010-11. Well done also to Steve Shearing and fives, who missed finals, but had players move through the grades to perform on the big stage (particularly Browny, whose final wicket clinched the 3<sup>rd</sup> grade pennant).

#### Neil Gardner

#### 1<sup>st</sup> Grade Score and Net Captain

## 3<sup>rd</sup> Grade Report

After falling agonisingly short in 5<sup>th</sup> grade last year as a Grand Final losing skipper, I was keen for retribution and when I heard the current captain and Bentley stalwart Simon Magill was not applying for the 3<sup>rd</sup> grade job, I applied knowing it was a challenge but one I thought I was up for.

I sit here writing this a few days after achieving a lifelong dream of becoming a premiership captain, and I couldn't be more comfortable with my decision.

Coming into the season the team had players who had played a lot of top grade cricket in such as Shaun O'Shea, Evan Britton, Ben Mitchell and Tim D'Souza but also a lot of players who had come up from lower grades but would prove to be key team members, like Chris Pritchard, Leigh Martin, Jarrad Sibson and Steven Daye.

The first game saw us thrash a very weak Swanbourne team but that game was followed by being massacred by Wembley, a loss that would sit with me until finals time and hurt our percentage. Our inconsistency was shown leading into Xmas as we proved very strong at Wyong beating Bedford Morley, but we continued to be totally uncompetitive away being thrashed by Melville and Western Suburbs. That was a particularly painful loss as Shaun O'Shea and Simon Magill (two players I saw as crucial members of the team) suffered serious long term injuries. In the change rooms after that Western Suburbs loss, the team was challenged to prove that we could be more than a middle of the road team; history will tell that challenge was taken with great success.

We went to Xmas with a massive win against Balcatta, with Jai Thomas scoring a maiden ton leaving us at 3-3 and one win plus percentage out of the four at finals time.

We beat Freo-Mosman Park easily in the first game after Xmas with Leigh Martin going close to a well deserved maiden ton and went to face Doubleview-Carine with both teams sitting at 4-3 and the loser likely to be facing must win games for the remainder of the season. We batted on a green top (a bad decision after winning the toss) but had them 4/30 overnight, giving us a glimmer of hope. However on the second week they consolidated and steamrolled us, with the fielding and camaraderie showing some concerning signs of negativity (which turned out to be one off incidents in both cases).

After an easy win against High Wycombe we faced top of the ladder Applecross and did well to restrict them to 185. Tristan Francis then made a magnificent 150 leading us to a 3 wicket win and we were then half a game out of the final leading into the last game of the year against Swan Valley.

We headed to Swan Valley with almost the strongest team of the season on paper and despite them making 220, it was a great deck and ground and we chased the runs 4 down with the two best bats of the season Chris Pritchard and Leigh Martin making solid half centuries. A few phone calls later on Saturday night to check a few other scores confirmed we were playing finals cricket.

Along to the semi and we went in a bowler short as often a finals team is stronger with an extra batsmen. We played Wembley at Charles Veryard West and they won the toss and batted. Evan Britton produced a brilliant bowling spell (well supported by Ben Mitchell, Tim D'Souza and Max Duffy) and we rolled Wembley for 159. A solid start by Steve Daye and Aidon Thomas was followed by a mini collapse and at 3/60 it was a key moment in the game...enter Leigh Martin who shook the life out of Wembley with a brilliant 73\* leading us into the Grand Final. The performance was as dominant as Wembley were ungracious in defeat.

So on we went to the Grand Final, once again at Charles Veryard, this time on the East ground, and we found ourselves playing Doubleview-Carine who had competed in the last four 3<sup>rd</sup> grade Grand Finals. They won the toss and sent us in, and once again we were in trouble against a seasoned bowling attack at 3/23, then 7/100, the only guy really showing the temperament and mental toughness needed was Chris Pritchard who completed a brilliant season with the highest score in the game, making 46. At 7/100 we needed the tail to kick and Anthony Brown (who hadn't played since Round 2 but came in for his experience and big game ability) and Ben Mitchell (who can hit a long ball but had struggled all year) put on 40 then Tim D'Souza joined Brownie for a further 30 as we scrapped our way to 170. We had a few overs without luck late on day 1 but knew we had a chance if we bowled well.

Come Sunday I thought I had made the biggest mistake of my cricketing life by leaving the covers on longer than they were allowed to be, and play started half an hour late but the conditions were perfect and pitch flat as the 'covers saga' become a non factor. We were determined to come out positive and even though it took 10 overs to break through, once Ben Mitchell got that first wicket it started a roll where they couldn't get a partnership going. Ben bowled brilliantly, taking 6 out of the first 7 wickets as DC was 7/90 at tea.

This soon became 8/110 and 9/129 before numbers 10 and 11 dug in and before we knew it there were 6 runs to get and an hour still to play. The situation was dire as the quicks had bowled themselves to exhaustion trying to win the

game, so the spinners were called upon and Anthony Brown came on under intense pressure having not bowled at all. On the fourth ball of his second over Brownie tossed one up and #10 swung, missed, and the castle was toppled – we were the champions! The feeling is unlike anything I have ever felt before, and after the pain of last year's GF this was the sweetest form of retribution. Sunday night and Monday were pretty much a blur; a mixture of a few drinks, relief, pure joy and great company ensured that. The elation was somewhat tempered by 1<sup>st</sup> and 6<sup>th</sup> grade losing, especially with my brother on the other side of the ledger in A grade and feeling the pain I felt last year. But having said that nothing will replace that feeling after winning the GF, and becoming a premiership captain I feel humbled to be mentioned alongside so many great names from our great club.

In the Grand Final, Ben Mitchell was the star taking 7/78 and the rest of the bowlers played their roles, while the fielding was top notch and the desperation was one that paid tribute to the fact we were in a Grand Final and a close and tense one at that.

The individual stars of the year were Leigh Martin and Chris Pritchard with the bat; Tim D'Souza, Ben Mitchell, Evan Britton and Jaxon Thomas with the ball and Jai Thomas with both. Blokes like Steven Daye, Jarrad Sibson, Fab Fanayan and Tristan Francis also played crucial roles but the truth is that every player picked throughout the year gave me what I expected them to; on paper a lot of people would have questioned the ability of the 3<sup>rd</sup> grade GF team to win the flag, but let history show a champion team will always be in a game.

Thanks to so many people, and I am sure I will miss someone here but thanks to Solly (mate it was a pleasure working so close with you and the professionalism the Wednesday night training bought to my was critical come crunch time), Covers, Arden, Vercs, GD, Razor, Rieks, Stafford, Puff, Lachie, Donk, Lenny Woodley, Wingnut and Karen and the rest of the committee, Frenchy, Hollywood and the entire playing group (especially the A grade squad).

We 'work' together and we play together, the bond we have as a club is definitely a factor in being so successful, and as the late great Chuck Berry said time and time again

#### C'MON BENTLEY HERE WE GO NOW

#### Steve Paice Premiership winning captain



Back I-r: Anthony Brown, Rob Taylor, Jarrad Sibson, Max Duffy, Brad Keenan (12th man), Leigh Martin, Chris Pritchard (V/C), Jos Welsh, Front I-r: Ben Mitchell (MoM), Steve Paice (Capt), Tim D'Souza, Steve Daye.

## 3<sup>rd</sup> Grade Batting and Fielding

Player	м	I	NO	HS	Runs	Bat Avg	50s	100s	Dks	4s	6s	Cat. /St.	R/O	Field Votes
Martin, Leigh	13	15	2	87	437	33.62	3	0	0	49	2	4	0.5	47
Pritchard, Chris	13	14	0	84	390	27.86	3	0	1	47	0	17/1	1	116
Paice, Steven	13	14	1	62	297	22.85	2	0	0	43	0	6	0	73
Francis, Tristan	3	4	0	150	239	59.75	1	1	0	38	1	3	0	28
Daye, Steven M	11	12	0	57	213	17.75	1	0	1	19	0	1	0.5	65
Thomas, Jai P	7	8	1	101*	172	24.57	0	1	1	15	0	2	0	16
Sibson, Jarrad	9	10	0	47	170	17.00	0	0	2	17	0	1	0.5	84
D'Souza, Timothy	11	12	4	22*	90	11.25	0	0	1	8	1	7	0.5	28
Fanayan, Fab	5	5	0	35	88	17.60	0	0	0	3	1	1	0	45
O'Shea, Shaun	5	5	1	43	85	21.25	0	0	0	10	0	2	0	5
Mitchell, Ben	8	7	0	24	79	11.29	0	0	2	12	1	4	0	2
McKeig, Donald R	4	5	0	35	69	13.80	0	0	1	5	0	0	0	6
Thomas, Aidon	2	2	0	39	63	31.50	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1
Britton, Evan	9	7	2	15*	60	12.00	0	0	1	11	0	2	0	7
Brown, Anthony E	3	4	0	32	58	14.50	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	5
Dungey, Sheahan	1	1	0	46	46	46.00	0	0	0	8	1	0	0	0
Thomas, Jaxon B	5	5	3	28	34	17.00	0	0	1	4	0	1	0	0
Duffy, Max	4	4	0	23	30	7.50	0	0	1	12	0	4	0	0
McKay, Wade	5	5	1	10*	19	4.75	0	0	1	2	0	0	0	32
Prescott, Chris	1	1	0	7	7	7.00	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	9
Bradbury, Chris	2	2	0	5	7	3.50	0	0	0	1	0	1	0	19
Welsh, Jos	2	1	0	6	6	6.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Taylor, Robert J	7	6	4	5	6	3.00	0	0	1	1	0	1	0	11
Magill, Simon	1	0				N/A	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	27
Keenan, Brad	1	0				N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

#### Season Results (Including Fielding Votes)

#### **Career Batting Records for this Side**

Games: 163 - S.Magill; 131 - S.Cairns; 131 - G.Davies; 131 - M.Harmer; 121 - G.Woodhead

Runs: 3004 - S.Magill; 2959 - M.Harmer; 2318 - William Harmer; 2299 - P.Roberts; 2179 - B.Hayward

Fours: 337 - M.Harmer; 277 - S.Magill; 253 - B.Hayward; 248 - William Harmer; 209 - P.Roberts

Sixes: 46 – William Harmer; 24 – A.Magill; 22 – G.Sheppard; 19 – A.Malins; 18 – R.Fernandez

Dismissals: 182 – G.Davies; 84 – M.Harmer; 84 – S.Magill; 77 – B.Hayward; 70 – William Harmer

#### **Partnerships**

2 4 3 4 4 10	72 48 44 103 *	Steven Daye - Christopher Pritchard* Donald McKeig* - Christopher Pritchard Christopher Pritchard* - Steven Paice	6 5 11	1 1 1	Balcatta Western Suburbs
3 4 4 10	44	Christopher Pritchard* - Steven Paice	_	1	
4 10			11	1	Swop Valley
#	03 *	Ctoven Doine* Loigh Mortin*			Swan Valley
5 <sup>#</sup> 1		Steven Paice* - Leigh Martin*	SF	1	Wembley Districts
<b>v</b> 1	138	Steven Paice - Leigh Martin*	7	1	Fremantle / Mosman Park
6 6	63	Leigh Martin - Jarrad Sibson*	4	1	Bedford Morley
7 5	56	Jarrad Sibson - Shaun O'Shea*	2	1	Wembley Districts
8 7	76	Tristan Francis - Jaxon Thomas*	10	1	Applecross
9 42	42 *	Jai Thomas* - Evan Britton*	6	1	Balcatta
10 2	20	Sheahan Dungey - Robbie Taylor*	2	1	Wembley Districts

## 3<sup>rd</sup> Grade Bowling

Player	Overs	Balls	М	w	Runs	Bowl Avg.	Best Bwling	5wk inn.	7wk inn.	10wk mtch	Bowl S/R	Bowl Eco
D'Souza, Timothy	150.1	901	31	28	404	14.43	5/58	1	0	0	32.2	2.69
Mitchell, Ben	68	696	28	17	276	16.24	7/78	1	1	0	40.9	2.38
Britton, Evan	119	714	35	17	281	16.53	5/55	1	0	0	42.0	2.36
Thomas, Jaxon B	58.3	351	8	12	210	17.50	5/47	1	0	0	29.3	3.59
O'Shea, Shaun	57.3	345	14	11	175	15.91	5/70	1	0	0	31.4	3.04
Thomas, Jai P	89.2	536	20	10	232	23.20	4/35	0	0	0	53.6	2.60
Taylor, Robert J	98.1	589	30	10	281	28.10	4/64	0	0	0	58.9	2.86
Fanayan, Fab	14	84	2	3	40	13.33	2/8	0	0	0	28.0	2.86
Brown, Anthony E	20.4	124	2	3	86	28.67	2/80	0	0	0	41.3	4.16
McKay, Wade	39	234	3	3	175	58.33	2/57	0	0	0	78.0	4.49
Paice, Steven	16	96	2	2	39	19.50	2/25	0	0	0	48.0	2.44
Bradbury, Chris	12	72	1	2	39	19.50	1/19	0	0	0	36.0	3.25
Duffy, Max	16	96	4	1	53	53.00	1/37	0	0	0	96.0	3.31
Martin, Leigh	13	78	1	1	56	56.00	1/20	0	0	0	78.0	4.31
Dungey, Sheahan	4	24	0	0	29	N/A	0/29	0	0	0	N/A	7.25
Daye, Steven M	11	66	2	0	69	N/A	0/69	0	0	0	N/A	6.27

#### Career Bowling Records for this Side

Wickets: 332 - A.Malins; 326 - G.Woodhead; 254 - R.Ritchie; 229 - G.Farrall; 201 - R.Street

Balls: 12583 - A.Malins; 9041 - G.Woodhead; 7417 - R.Street; 6398 - R.Ritchie; 6028 - M.Harmer

Maidens: 474 – A.Malins; 283 – M.Lukan; 237 – I.Dickerson; 228 – M.Harmer; 219 – R.Harmer

#### Other Records for Season for this Side

Highest Team Score against Bentley – 4/375 v Wembley Districts at Pat Goodridge Reserve (Round 2)

## 3<sup>rd</sup> Grade Premiership Season Review

Rd	Home Team		Away Team	Venue
	Bentley		Swanbourne	
1	<b>205</b> SM Daye 57 DR McKeig 35 J Sibson 27 L Martin 24 D Clifton-James 6/62 L Pervan 2/34 and <b>7/78</b> T D'Souza 22* ME Storer 3/20	def	<b>68</b> L Brain 16 ME Storer 12 R Mitchell 11* S O'Shea 3/2 T D'Souza 3/9 E Britton 3/22	Wyong Reserve
	Wembley Districts		Bentley	Pat
2	<b>4/375(cc)</b> L Russell 132 M Breakwell 117* D Evans 60* JM Thompson 41 AE Brown 2/80	def	<b>233</b> CP Pritchard 52 S Arnott-Dungey 46 S O'Shea 43 S Paice 42 J Sibson 27 J Walter 3/32 R McClure 2/29 M Breakwell 2/52	Goodridge Reserve
	Melville		Bentley	
3	<b>255</b> AA Boult-Lyne 77* RS Kemp 42 B Pilling 28 P Rajpal 23 N Nofal 19 S Sullivan 18 RJ Taylor 4/64 W McKay 2/57 S O'Shea 2/67	def	<b>154</b> S Paice 39 CP Pritchard 28 L Martin 16 SM Daye 15 T D'Souza 13 W McKay 10* RS Kemp 4/46 AA Boult-Lyne 3/32 P Rajpal 2/33	McGillivray Oval East
	Bentley		Bedford Morley	
4	<b>195</b> T Francis 63 J Sibson 47 L Martin 41 CP Pritchard 12 S O'Shea 10 JP Thomas 10 B Zeplin 3/20 DJ Brown 3/48 C Webber 2/35 S Broad 2/40 and 4/50 J Sibson 34 L Boland 2/7	def	<b>190</b> B Mason 44 B Zeplin 37* D Thomas 32 S Broad 29 J Moore 17 L Boland 11 S O'Shea 5/70 T D'Souza 2/23	Wyong Reserve
	Western Suburbs		Bentley	Rosalie
5	<b>191</b> JB Hammond 56 O Hanson 41 M Partridge 31 T Kendall 20 C O'Neill 12 T D'Souza 4/42 RJ Taylor 3/44	def	<b>9/145(cc)</b> DR McKeig 28 CP Pritchard 25 B Mitchell 21 J Aggio-Brewe 3/36 I Hart 2/13 M Partridge 2/27 S McGuckin 2/40	Park (Turf)
	Bentley		Balcatta	
6	<b>8/279</b> JP Thomas 101* CP Pritchard 84 SM Daye 34 E Britton 15* PM Southall 2/23 MW Festa 2/36 D Atkinson 2/37	def	<b>148</b> PM Southall 45 D Giuffre 30 MW Festa 20 CJ Stone 17 M Bryant 12* JP Thomas 4/35 T D'Souza 4/58	Wyong Reserve
	Bentley		Fremantle / Mosman Park	
7	<b>239</b> L Martin 87 S Paice 61 M Duffy 23 CP Pritchard 17 E Britton 11 M Snedden 3/26 D Palumbo 3/46 C Brown 2/34	def	<b>183</b> CR Andrews 39 C Brown 37* A Bremner 33 H Johnstone 21 jb gray 12 T Nichols 11 B Mitchell 3/38 JB Thomas 3/61 F Fanayan 2/8	Wyong Reserve
	Doubleview-Carine		Bentley	
8	<b>253</b> SG Glover 64 BW Shore 51 B Williams 30 G Hoskins 27 B Taylor 25 T D'Souza 3/47 B Mitchell 2/24 E Britton 2/35 JB Thomas 2/45	def	<b>122</b> JP Thomas 27 F Fanayan 23 T Francis 19 L Martin 18 B Williams 4/36 B Taylor 3/10 A Stevens 3/36 and <b>1/52</b> L Martin 30*	Monyash Reserve
	High Wycombe		Bentley	
9	<b>171</b> SA Cox 29 TE Greaves 24 A Seccull 22 J Downard 17* D Cottam 14 R Khan 12 J Trail 12 JB Thomas 5/47 T D'Souza 3/28	def by	<b>234</b> S Paice 62 F Fanayan 35 L Martin 30 SM Daye 26 B Mitchell 21 JP Thomas 20 CP Pritchard 11 T D'Souza 10 J Sibson 10 J Trail 3/17 A Seccull 3/28 MA Hughes 2/17	Scott Reserve
	Bentley		Applecross	
10	<b>240</b> T Francis 150 JB Thomas 28 F Fanayan 23 E Britton 12* A Brennan 5/38 A Hackett 2/56 CS Cooper 2/68	def	<b>184</b> M Hager 38 S Jackson 33 DJ O'Hara 26 A Hackett 21 L Petherick 20 CS Cooper 13 T D'Souza 5/58 E Britton 2/32 JP Thomas 2/61	Wyong Reserve
11	Swan Valley 9/217(dec) B Pittaway 62 J Brandis 41 M Swannell 30 S Vigar 20 M Griffiths 19 S Paice 2/25 JP Thomas 2/36 JB Thomas 2/52	def by	Bentley 8/268(cc) CP Pritchard 80 L Martin 63 A Thomas 39 SM Daye 25 S Reynolds 3/74 M Griffiths 2/55	Swan Valley Sporting Club
	Wembley Districts		Bentley	Charles
SF	<b>159</b> JM Thompson 40 A Lombardo 26 R Farmer 20 S Verco 18 S Moloney 17 E Britton 5/55 T D'Souza 2/29 B Mitchell 2/52	def by	<b>3/162</b> L Martin 73* S Paice 27* A Thomas 24 SM Daye 23	Veryard Reserve (West)
	Bentley		Doubleview-Carine	Charles
GF	<b>170</b> CP Pritchard 46 AE Brown 32 B Mitchell 24 T D'Souza 20* L Martin 20 SM Daye 11 A Stevens 4/29 B Williams 2/38 SL Connolly 2/39	def	<b>165</b> B Taylor 33 B Williams 26 DJ Nicholls 22 BW Shore 22 B Farrell 15 A Stevens 12 B Mitchell 7/78	Veryard Reserve (East)

## 5<sup>th</sup> Grade Report

One Game and percentage out of the four is where we finished for the 2009/2010 season and upon reflection is where we deserved to finish.

Our performance was inconsistent with both bat and ball whilst our fielding was typically of a high standard. Blair Chapman was the pick of our bowlers claiming 22 wickets at an average of 18. Blair played in 9 games and should be satisfied with a solid performance throughout the season. The remaining bowlers although "toiling hard" where not game breakers and failed to bowl consistently in partnerships.

Our batting was either very good or very poor and it was seldom that key players all clicked in the same fixture. Steve Shearing, Jos Welsh topped the batting with 317 @ 35 & 304 at 27 respectively. Danny Arcaro & Serge Perrozzi also made valuable contributions making 250 @ 27 & 205 @t 29. All four guys performed on par, but noticeably none really going on and making solid 100's.

In contrast our fielding was excellent with Nikul Patel outstanding behind the stumps with 12 dismissals and Max Duffy creating 5 run outs in 5 games, both players offer plenty in the field and should continue to develop there games and ultimately play "A" Grade cricket for the Bentley Cricket Club.

It was pleasing to see the guys being promoted through the season with several guys in Max Duffy, Jarrod Sibson, Anthony Brown, Robbie Taylor & Jos Welsh playing in our victorious 3<sup>rd</sup> Grade Premiership. Well done to all 5 people.

Congratulations to Steve Paice and his Team and commiserations to Darren Solomon, Ken Dejager, Brad Keenan & Justin Warren on there heart breaking losses during there final campaign.

Thanks to the Coaching Team especially Greg Sheppard, Paul Coverdale, Chris Prescott and Neil Gardner for there work during the week and for PC Smiths professional approach to a difficult job in our Chairmen of Selectors role.

In concluding, it was a season of lost opportunities on the field but the camaraderie & friendship within the team (& indeed the club) was a pleasure to be a part of and will be the sole driving force for me to play again.

Thankyou & Best Regards

Steve Shearing 5th Grade Captain

## 5<sup>th</sup> Grade Batting and Fielding

#### Season Results (Including Fielding Votes)

Player	м	Inn.	N/O	HS	Runs	Bat Avg	50s	100s	Dks	4s	6s	Cat. /St.	R/O	Field Votes
Shearing, Steven J	9	11	2	93*	317	35.22	3	0	0	26	0	0	0	10
Welsh, Jos	11	13	2	67*	304	27.64	2	0	0	36	0	7	0	77
Arcaro, Daniel	9	10	1	70*	250	27.78	1	0	1	30	5	8	1	56
Perrozzi, Serge	8	8	1	44	205	29.29	0	0	0	22	1	1	0.5	10
Brown, Anthony E	7	8	1	55*	148	21.14	1	0	0	11	1	1	1.5	81
McKay, Wade	5	6	1	64	136	27.20	2	0	1	18	2	0	0	32
Francis, Tristan	1	2	0	87	89	44.50	1	0	0	13	1	1	0	5
Chapman, Blair	9	11	3	19*	86	10.75	0	0	1	8	0	1	0.5	14
Patel, Nikul	8	11	2	26	77	8.56	0	0	2	7	0	10/2	1.5	87
McKeig, Donald R	7	9	1	25	67	8.38	0	0	1	8	0	4	0.5	23
Duffy, Max	5	6	0	37	63	10.50	0	0	2	2	1	3	2.5	82
Dungey, Sheahan	5	6	1	24	56	11.20	0	0	1	6	0	1	0	6
Thomas, Jaxon B	4	5	0	33	53	10.60	0	0	1	8	0	1	0	21
Kelly, Craig	7	5	1	17	31	7.75	0	0	1	3	0	1	0	32
Cleary, Simon V	4	3	0	20	26	8.67	0	0	1	2	1	1	0	7
Sibson, Jarrad	2	2	0	16	21	10.50	0	0	0	2	0	3	0.5	25
Dawson, Ken C	3	4	0	10	17	4.25	0	0	1	2	0	1	0.5	12
Dymock, Colin B	1	2	0	16	16	8.00	0	0	1	3	0	0	0	0
Chappelle, Culver	2	2	0	9	13	6.50	0	0	0	2	0	1	0	8
Lockyer, Christopher	1	1	0	11	11	11.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	5
Magill, Simon	2	2	0	9	11	5.50	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	32
Wilson, Shaun	4	4	2	6*	11	5.50	0	0	1	0	0	1	0	28
Birch, Michael	1	1	0	3	3	3.00	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0
Taylor, Robert J	5	3	1	1	1	0.50	0	0	1	0	0	1	0	6
Ferguson, Braydon	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1	0	14
Berry, Tom	1	0				N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1

#### **Partnerships**

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Rd	Inn	Opponent
1	105	Tristan Francis* - Steven Shearing	3	1	Melville
2	63	Max Duffy - Steven Shearing*	11	1	Whitfords
3	49	Steven Shearing* - Jos Welsh	8	1	Doubleview-Carine
4	70	Steven Shearing - Jos Welsh*	5	1	Western Suburbs
5	80	Jos Welsh - Anthony Brown*	5	1	Western Suburbs
6	43	Steven Shearing* - Jarrad Sibson	8	1	Doubleview-Carine
7	89	Jos Welsh* - Wade McKay	7	1	Tuart Hill
8	43	Steven Shearing* - Blair Chapman	8	1	Doubleview-Carine
9	36	Jos Welsh* - Craig Kelly	7	1	Tuart Hill
10	28	Jos Welsh* - Sheahan Arnott-Dungey	7	1	Tuart Hill

#### Career Batting Records for this Side

Games: 156 - G.Farrall; 118 - S.Cairns; 85 - P.Roach snr; 85 - J.Warren; 81 - John Williams

Runs: 2335 – J.Warren; 2257 – S.Cairns; 1403 – L.Dungey; 1393 – K.Chapman; 1375 – P.Roach snr

Fours: 221 – J.Warren; 150 – J.George; 140 – S.Cairns; 134 - J Welsh; 129 – C.Pritchard

Sixes: 27 – J.Warren; 22 – J.Hendry; 13 – J.Welsh; 13 – P.Warren; 12 – P.Roach jnr

Dismissals: 71 – Geoff Dart; 69 – J.Warren; 62 – S.Tagliaferri; 61 – Brendan Kelly; 60 – C.Pritchard

## 5<sup>th</sup> Grade Bowling

Player	Overs	Balls	М	w	Runs	Bowl Avg.	Best Bwling	5wk inn.	7wk inn.	10wk mtch	Bowl S/R	Bowl Eco
Chapman, Blair	98.1	589	14	22	413	18.77	4/35	0	0	0	26.8	4.21
Kelly, Craig	70	420	11	13	221	17.00	4/35	0	0	0	32.3	3.16
Arcaro, Daniel	62.5	377	10	9	166	18.44	3/28	0	0	0	41.9	2.64
Brown, Anthony E	70.5	425	19	8	166	20.75	5/58	1	0	0	53.1	2.34
Perrozzi, Serge	49.2	296	10	8	152	19.00	2/8	0	0	0	37.0	3.08
Taylor, Robert J	62	372	15	8	158	19.75	3/38	0	0	0	46.5	2.55
McKay, Wade	52	312	7	7	173	24.71	3/53	0	0	0	44.6	3.33
Dungey, Sheahan	43	258	12	5	148	29.60	2/13	0	0	0	51.6	3.44
Cleary, Simon V	34.2	206	4	5	137	27.40	2/24	0	0	0	41.2	3.99
Lockyer, Christopher	12	72	1	3	41	13.67	3/41	0	0	0	24.0	3.42
Duffy, Max	25	150	7	2	62	31.00	2/12	0	0	0	75.0	2.48
Chappelle, Culver	6	36	1	2	32	16.00	2/25	0	0	0	18.0	5.33
Welsh, Jos	3.4	22	0	1	21	21.00	1/21	0	0	0	22.0	5.73
Patel, Nikul	2	12	0	1	6	6.00	1/6	0	0	0	12.0	3.00
Thomas, Jaxon B	11	66	2	1	48	48.00	1/23	0	0	0	66.0	4.36
Wilson, Shaun	31	186	3	1	97	97.00	1/29	0	0	0	186.0	3.13
McKeig, Donald R	2	12	0	0	10	N/A	0/10	0	0	0	N/A	5.00
Ferguson, Braydon	2	12	0	0	20	N/A	0/20	0	0	0	N/A	10.00

#### Career Bowling Records for this Side

Wickets: 446 – G.Farrall; 180 – John Williams; 166 – A.Malins; 159 – J.George; 120 – D.Scott

Balls: 13643 - G.Farrall; 5702 - A.Malins; 4997 - John Williams; 4810 - J.George; 4595 - D.Scott

Maidens: 365 – G.Farrall; 344 – A.Malins; 237 – D.Scott; 220 – J.George; 155 – John Hughes

## 6<sup>th</sup> Grade Report

Going into this Season in a new grade I felt we would have needed to lift our game to compete with clubs with their 3<sup>rd</sup> side in the competition. Throughout the year we did exactly that and showed that not only can we compete with them we can beat them as we went through the year without losing a 2 Day Fixture until the Grand Final and even then fell agonisingly close to pulling off the perfect season in this format and finished in 2<sup>nd</sup> Spot on the ladder. Even in the One day format we only fell 1 game short of the Grand Final as well. So overall we did have an extremely successful year and should all be proud of what we accomplished within the first year of 6th Grade.

I would like to thank the coach (Greg Sheppard), the Chairman of Selectors (Pete Smith) and the Committee for all their help throughout the year to get the results we accomplished. I would also like to thank my Vice Captain (Gilly) and all that played 6<sup>th</sup> Grade and helped me out at any stage as it is hard to be successful without the help of your team mates. I hope all the guys that played 6<sup>th</sup> Grade this year will come back and work hard to try to go one better next season. I would also like to congratulate the guys in the team that got personal best in either runs or wickets this year whether it be within a game or over the whole season - well done.

I would like to finish with congratulating Steve Paice and all the boys that played in 3<sup>rd</sup> Grade this year for their great win in the Grand Final. Well deserved!!

I wish you all have a great break and hope to see you all fired up ready to push for more Premierships next year.

#### Ken de Jager 6th Grade Captain

#### Go The Blues

#### Partnerships

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Rd	Inn	Opponent
1	62	Mauneek Solanki* - Nirmal Gill	10	1	Western Suburbs
2	53	Nirmal Gill* - Michael Birch	6	1	Fremantle / Mosman Park
3	90	Michael Birch - Nirmal Gill*	13	1	Bassendean
4	73	Nirmal Gill - Paul Warren*	9	1	Whitfords
5	51	Douglas Haines - Culver Chappelle*	10	1	Western Suburbs
6	45	Culver Chappelle - Simon Cleary*	9	1	Whitfords
7#	116 *	Culver Chappelle* - Simon Cleary*	10	1	Western Suburbs
8	52	Anthony Brown* - Mauneek Solanki	7	1	Swan Valley
9	69 *	Harsh Patel* - Kenneth deJager*	3	1	Whitfords
10	33 *	Indilca Rupasinghe* - Kenneth deJager*	6	1	Fremantle / Mosman Park

<sup>#</sup> - denotes new all time record for wicket for this side

#### Other Records for Season for this Side

2<sup>nd</sup> Lowest Team Score for Bentley - 10/57 v Bassendean at Shelley Reserve (Round 4)

2<sup>nd</sup> Lowest Team Score against Bentley - 10/47 v Fremantle/Mosman Park at Mann Oval (Round 11)

## 6<sup>th</sup> Grade Batting and Fielding

#### Season Results (Including Fielding Votes)

Player	М	Inn.	N/O	HS	Runs	Bat Avg	50s	100s	Dks	4s	6s	Cat. /St.	R/O	Field Votes
Solanki, Mauneek	16	17	0	79	312	18.35	1	0	2	39	3	10	2	210
Chappelle, Culver	11	11	4	63*	269	38.43	1	0	0	16	0	19	2	62
Gill, Nirmal	16	17	1	63	254	15.88	1	0	0	15	0	10	1	54
Birch, Michael	8	9	1	72	251	31.38	1	0	0	31	0	7	0	25
Cleary, Simon V	11	11	2	71*	230	25.56	1	0	1	19	13	3	0	14
Patel, Harsh J	9	9	1	63*	144	18.00	1	0	0	12	0	4	0.5	40
Dawson, Ken C	8	8	0	32	143	17.88	0	0	0	10	0	3	0	19
deJager, Kenneth	14	12	5	30*	140	20.00	0	0	2	8	2	6	0	26
Haines, Douglas	5	6	1	42	131	26.20	0	0	0	13	0	6	0	17
Millett, Benjamin W	5	5	1	68	84	21.00	1	0	1	13	0	6	0.5	48
Warren, Paul	2	2	0	63	78	39.00	1	0	0	10	1	1	0	3
Ferguson, Braydon	2	2	1	67*	69	69.00	1	0	0	10	0	0	0	0
Warren, Justin A	3	3	0	47	62	20.67	0	0	0	8	2	1	0	5
Groube, Anthony	5	7	3	19*	59	14.75	0	0	1	8	0	1	0.5	34
Brown, Anthony E	1	1	0	54	54	54.00	1	0	0	4	0	1	0	9
Francis, Tristan	1	1	0	49	49	49.00	0	0	0	10	0	2	0	0
George, Jamie	2	2	0	48	48	24.00	0	0	1	4	2	0	0	0
Magill, Simon	3	3	0	31	43	14.33	0	0	0	6	0	2	0	3
Dungey, Sheahan	8	6	2	14	43	10.75	0	0	0	3	0	2	0	17
Smith, Peter	4	4	0	23	40	10.00	0	0	0	3	0	2	0	13
Eaton, Julian	6	5	1	20*	38	9.50	0	0	1	7	0	3	0	15
Lockyer, Christopher	10	7	2	22*	34	6.80	0	0	2	2	0	3	0.5	42
Day, Allan J	1	1	0	31	31	31.00	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	3
Rupasinghe, Indilca	2	1	1	30*	30	N/A	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	1
Dart, Geoffrey	2	3	0	9	20	6.67	0	0	0	1	0	1	0	6
Dawson, Stafford G	1	1	0	18	18	18.00	0	0	0	2	0	1	0	6
Holly, Brad	1	1	0	14	14	14.00	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	14
Davies, Glenn M	1	1	0	12	12	12.00	0	0	0	1	0	1	0	4
Mitchell, Ben	1	1	0	11	11	11.00	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0
Daquino, Edward	1	1	0	11	11	11.00	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0
McNab, Cameron R	6	4	2	6	11	5.50	0	0	0	1	0	2	0	28
Halai, Lalji	3	2	1	9*	9	9.00	0	0	1	1	0	1	0	2
D'Souza, Timothy	1	1	1	7*	7	N/A	0	0	0	1	0	0	1	5
Magill, Anthony J	1	1	0	3	3	3.00	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	9
Blackmore, Matthew	2	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	10
Thomas, Jaxon B	2	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	2	0	33
Gilders, Michael	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0
Mead, Liam	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1	0	14
Dybing, Mark	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0

#### Career Batting Records for this Side

Games: 76 – K.De Jager; 54 – D.Gascoigne; 52 - C. Lockyer, 51 – G.Sheppard; 47 – L.Dungey

Runs: 1333 – G.Sheppard; 1262 – D.Haines; 1069 – D.Berry; 928 – Greg Dickerson; 901 – R.Fernandez

Fours: 160 – G.Sheppard; 130 – D.Haines; 121 – D.Berry; 112 – Greg Dickerson; 112 – P.Smith

Sixes: 25 - S. Cleary; 18 – J.Hendry; 17 – P.Warren; 15 – G.Sheppard; 14 – R.Fernandez

Dismissals: 48 - C.Scott; 43 - G.Davies; 37 - P.Warren; 33 - K. De Jager; 32 - T.Chapman, R.Fernandez

## 6<sup>th</sup> Grade Bowling

Player	Overs	Balls	М	w	Runs	Bowl Avg.	Best Bwling	5wk inn.	7wk inn.	10wk mtch	Bowl S/R	Bowl Eco
Gill, Nirmal	117.5	710	16	27	332	12.30	4/15	0	0	0	26.3	2.81
deJager, Kenneth	114.1	685	35	20	267	13.35	4/14	0	0	0	34.3	2.34
Lockyer, Christopher	86	516	15	19	262	13.79	4/12	0	0	0	27.2	3.05
Cleary, Simon V	48	372	15	14	198	14.14	3/14	0	0	0	26.6	3.19
Dungey, Sheahan	63	378	9	12	195	16.25	3/29	0	0	0	31.5	3.10
Solanki, Mauneek	41.5	311	11	9	167	18.56	3/32	0	0	0	34.6	3.22
McNab, Cameron R	26.1	157	2	7	90	12.86	3/26	0	0	0	22.4	3.44
Halai, Lalji	26.4	160	7	5	86	17.20	3/5	0	0	0	32.0	3.23
Eaton, Julian	34.2	206	5	5	130	26.00	2/32	0	0	0	41.2	3.79
Mitchell, Ben	6	36	1	3	25	8.33	3/25	0	0	0	12.0	4.17
Smith, Peter	11	66	3	3	26	8.67	2/14	0	0	0	22.0	2.36
Patel, Harsh J	22	132	0	3	77	25.67	1/10	0	0	0	44.0	3.50
Ferguson, Braydon	4.3	27	0	2	12	6.00	2/9	0	0	0	13.5	2.67
Groube, Anthony	15	90	3	2	32	16.00	2/17	0	0	0	45.0	2.13
George, Jamie	11.4	70	2	2	33	16.50	2/6	0	0	0	35.0	2.83
Thomas, Jaxon B	10	60	0	2	36	18.00	1/12	0	0	0	30.0	3.60
Magill, Simon	16	96	3	2	56	28.00	2/32	0	0	0	48.0	3.50
Brown, Anthony E	5	30	2	1	14	14.00	1/14	0	0	0	30.0	2.80
Blackmore, Matthew	8	48	1	1	22	22.00	1/22	0	0	0	48.0	2.75
Rupasinghe, Indilca	5	30	0	1	27	27.00	1/21	0	0	0	30.0	5.40
Gilders, Michael	6	36	0	1	30	30.00	1/30	0	0	0	36.0	5.00
Magill, Anthony J	6	36	0	1	42	42.00	1/42	0	0	0	36.0	7.00
Dart, Geoffrey	1	6	0	0	3	N/A	0/3	0	0	0	N/A	3.00
Francis, Tristan	2	12	0	0	5	N/A	0/5	0	0	0	N/A	2.50
Daquino, Edward	4	24	0	0	21	N/A	0/21	0	0	0	N/A	5.25
D'Souza, Timothy	4	24	0	0	44	N/A	0/44	0	0	0	N/A	11.00

#### Career Bowling Records for this Side

Wickets: 125 – G.Edmonds; 117 – C.Lockyer; 97 – D.Gascoigne; 68 – K.de Jager; 85 – G.Nairn

Balls: 3796 - K.De Jager; 3646 - G.Edmonds; 3434 - D.Gascoigne; 3424 - C.Lockyer; 2326 - G.Nairn

Maidens: 158 – D.Gascoigne; 156 – C.Lockyer; 152 – G.Edmonds; 151 – K.de Jager; 122 – G.Nairn;

## 9<sup>th</sup> Grade Report

The 2009/10 season was my 3<sup>rd</sup> season as a Bentley Blue, but it was my first ever season as a captain. We started off the season really well with 4 wins from our first 4 games which put us on top of the ladder. We were quickly brought back down to earth losing our next 3 games to give us a 4-3 record going into the Christmas break.

After the break, we then won 3 games on the trot to put us near the top of the ladder once again. We finished off the regular season really well with 2 excellent wins to finish 3<sup>rd</sup> overall, which meant we faced Swanbourne in the semi final at Allen Park. We won the toss and batted first, but 9 overs into our innings I was walking out to bat and we were 4/6, staring down the barrel of defeat. We managed to get our total to 79 and by the end of the 1<sup>st</sup> day we had them 5/59 and we all still believed we were a chance to win. On the 2<sup>nd</sup> day we all worked hard but they passed our score and just like that our season was over.

Having players like Cairnsy, Nairny and Lloydy in my team for most of the year was excellent for me as I learnt a lot from their 1000+ games experience. These blokes helped me a lot throughout the year it was also great to be playing with these 3 club legends as they each passed personal milestones this season. Stephen Cairns scored his 6000<sup>th</sup> run, Greg Nairn took his 600<sup>th</sup> wicket and Lloyd Dungey scored his 10000<sup>th</sup> run.

We scored more runs than any other team and Lloyd Dungey led from the front scoring 375 runs @ 31.25 with a top score of 98. Ed Daquino also batted well with 326 @ 23.29 with a top score of 53. I ended up scoring 301 @ 20.07 with a top score of 64\*. Mick Gilders only played 7 games and scored 253 @ 50.60 with a top score of 69\*. PC Smith only played 3 games for us but still scored 185 runs @ 61.67 with a top score of 141. Mitch Holland scored 156 @ 26.00 with a top score of 45\*.

Once again it was Greg Nairn that stood out with the ball, as he took 25 wickets at 16.04. Swanni also bowled well taking 18 wickets @ 23.06. Brad Holly bowled his excellent line and length to take 15 wickets @ 18.93 and Mick Gilders bowled some unplayable spells to take 14 wickets @ 11.79 with best figures of 5/36. Our stand out fielder was Brad Holly as he took 10 catches and made 2 runouts, to take out the 9<sup>th</sup> grade fielding award.

Having Geoff Dart in the team was a great help for me as I played my first 2 seasons under him when he was captain of 9's. He helped me a lot with field placings and gave me advice throughout the season that made my job a lot easier. My vice captain Lachie Harris and also my cousin Mick Gilders were also a big help to me during the season. 2 of my fellow captains, Hollywood and Steve Paice, gave me great advice throughout the season and were always willing to answer any questions I threw at them. Being captain is not an easy job, so any help that made my job easier, is much appreciated.

I'd like to congratulate Steve Paice and his 3<sup>rd</sup> grade team for their fantastic 5 run win in the grand final. It was great to be a part of this game as I was lucky enough to be selected as 12<sup>th</sup> man, so thanks a lot Paicey. I'd also like to congratulate Prescott, Daysey, Hoover and the rest of the A grade team for winning the 20/20 grand final. A lot of hard work has been put in this season, so it is good to bring home 2 flags, well done boys.

It was unfortunate for us to bow out of the finals race in the semi final, especially after working so hard during the season. Now there is some unfinished business and a burning desire to go all the way next season. I look forward to captaining again next year and working even harder to bring home a flag for the Mighty Bentley Blues.

Cheers

Brad Puff Keenan 9<sup>th</sup> Grade Captain / Club Secretary

## 9<sup>th</sup> Grade Batting and Fielding

#### Season Results (Including Fielding Votes)

Player	м	Inn.	N/O	HS	Runs	Bat Avg	50s	100s	Dks	4s	6s	Cat. /St.	R/O	Field Votes
Dungey, Donald L	13	14	2	98	375	31.25	2	0	1	42	1	3	0.5	72
Daquino, Edward	13	14	0	53	326	23.29	2	0	2	43	1	3	0	39
Keenan, Brad	14	17	2	64*	301	20.07	1	0	3	34	6	8	2	133
Gilders, Michael	7	7	2	69*	253	50.60	2	0	0	20	5	4	0	33
Smith, Peter	3	3	0	141	185	61.67	0	1	0	31	0	1	0	8
Holland, Mitchell W	9	10	4	45*	156	26.00	0	0	1	20	1	5	0	48
Holly, Brad	14	16	1	28	156	10.40	0	0	1	10	1	10	1.5	195
Harris, Lachlan	13	14	1	198	137	10.54	0	0	3	15	0	7/1	0.5	49
Dart, Geoffrey	8	9	1	41	117	14.63	0	0	1	8	0	4	0	50
Pringle, Paul X	6	6	1	42	101	20.20	0	0	0	12	0	5/3	0	43
Dawson, Stafford G	3	3	0	59	82	27.33	1	0	0	10	0	0	0	4
Cairns, Stephen G	9	10	2	21	59	7.38	0	0	2	5	0	0	0	5
Halai, Lalji	5	3	0	22	52	17.33	0	0	0	3	3	1	1	14
Swansson, Daniel	14	11	7	14*	49	12.25	0	0	1	6	0	0	0.5	45
Nairn, Gregory J	14	8	3	29*	44	8.80	0	0	2	5	0	3	1	37
Gitsham, Greg W	3	3	0	18	35	11.67	0	0	0	5	0	0	0	0
Millett, Benjamin W	1	1	0	20	20	20.00	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0
McNab, Cameron R	4	4	0	13	14	3.50	0	0	2	1	0	1	0.5	15
Blackmore, Matthew	3	2	1	10	11	11.00	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	13
Warren, Justin A	1	1	0	10	10	10.00	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	25
Davies, Glenn M	1	1	0	10	10	10.00	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0
Purush, Srinivasan	3	3	0	4	8	2.67	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	14
Jayasinghe, Don D	1	1	0	7	7	7.00	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0
George, Jamie	1	1	0	5	5	5.00	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0
Lockyer, Christopher	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	2	0	9
Duncan, Stephen J	1	1	1	0*	0	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Lockyer, Jacob T	1	0	0			N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
Chapman, Keith	2	0	0			N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Ansley-Rose, Matt	1	0	0			N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3

#### Career Batting Records for this Side

- Games: 103 S.Cairns; 76 G.Nairn; 67 L.Dungey; 54 Geoff Dart; 47 W.Shaw
- Runs: 1802 L.Dungey; 1458 S.Cairns; 881 K.Spencer; 718 Geoff Dart; 682 J.Warren
- Fours: 184 L.Dungey; 107 K.Spencer; 94 J.George; 91 S.Cairns; 69 J.Warren
- Sixes: 30 K.Spencer; 22 L.Dungey; 18 C.Taylor; 17 J.Warren; 12 J.George
- Dismissals: 52 Geoff Dart; 33 B.Bindon; 31 T.Chapman; 26 D.Haines; 21 L Dungey

#### Partnerships

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Rd	Inn	Opponent
1	36	Stephen Cairns* - Mitchell Holland	10	1	Swanbourne
2#	107	Geoffrey Dart - Donald Dungey*	4	1	Bassendean
3	116	Donald Dungey - Edward Daquino*	6	1	Melville
4	110	Edward Daquino* - Brad Keenan	1	1	Swanbourne
5	74	Edward Daquino - Stafford Dawson*	2	1	Ocean Ridge
6#	126 *	Michael Gilders* - Mitchell Holland*	11	1	Melville
7#	116	Peter Smith - Paul Pringle*	3	1	Curtin Victoria Park
8	35 *	Donald Dungey* - Lachlan Harris*	9	1	Curtin Victoria Park
9	50	Lalji Halai - Gregory Nairn*	10	1	Swanbourne
10	30	Lachlan Harris - Daniel Swansson*	14	1	Subiaco Marist

<sup>#</sup> - denotes new all time record for wicket for this side

## 9<sup>th</sup> Grade Bowling

Player	Overs	Balls	Μ	w	Runs	Bowl Avg.	Best Bwling	5wk inn.	7wk inn.	10wk mtch	Bowl S/R	Bowl Eco
Nairn, Gregory J	162.5	977	62	25	401	16.04	4/47	0	0	0	39.1	2.46
Swansson, Daniel	134.5	809	29	18	415	23.06	4/32	0	0	0	44.9	3.08
Holly, Brad	99	594	24	15	284	18.93	3/10	0	0	0	39.6	2.87
Gilders, Michael	70	420	23	14	165	11.79	5/36	1	0	0	30.0	2.36
Halai, Lalji	110.2	662	11	9	114	12.67	4/28	0	0	0	73.6	1.03
Daquino, Edward	43.5	263	5	6	169	28.17	2/26	0	0	0	43.8	3.86
Harris, Lachlan	27.3	165	3	5	132	26.40	2/22	0	0	0	33.0	4.80
Holland, Mitchell W	20	120	1	5	84	16.80	2/22	0	0	0	24.0	4.20
Gitsham, Greg W	11	66	1	4	59	14.75	2/25	0	0	0	16.5	5.36
Keenan, Brad	33	198	3	4	165	41.25	2/20	0	0	0	49.5	5.00
Smith, Peter	27	162	5	4	100	25.00	2/24	0	0	0	40.5	3.70
Lockyer, Christopher	13	78	3	3	39	13.00	3/39	0	0	0	26.0	3.00
McNab, Cameron R	16	96	0	3	57	19.00	3/28	0	0	0	32.0	3.56
Purush, Srinivasan	3	18	0	2	16	8.00	2/5	0	0	0	9.0	5.33
Dungey, Donald L	1.4	10	0	1	14	14.00	1/14	0	0	0	10.0	8.40
Blackmore, Matthew	14	84	1	0	65	N/A	0/17	0	0	0	N/A	4.64
Dart, Geoffrey	3	18	1	0	7	N/A	0/7	0	0	0	N/A	2.33
Dawson, Stafford G	1	6	0	0	2	N/A	0/2	0	0	0	N/A	2.00
Duncan, Stephen J	2	12	0	0	14	N/A	0/14	0	0	0	N/A	7.00
George, Jamie	3	18	0	0	27	N/A	0/27	0	0	0	N/A	9.00
Jayasinghe, Don D	3	18	0	0	9	N/A	0/9	0	0	0	N/A	3.00
Pringle, Paul X	2	12	0	0	17	N/A	0/17	0	0	0	N/A	8.50

#### Career Bowling Records for this Side

Wickets: 183 – G.Nairn; 90 – W.Shaw; 62 – K.Spencer; 54 – M.Jolly; 53 – B.Chapman

Balls: 6025 - G.Nairn; 2672 - W.Shaw; 2479 - B.Chapman; 2276 - K.Spencer; 2066 - J.Nairn

Maidens: 342 – G.Nairn; 106 – K.Spencer; 92 – B.Chapman; 77 – W.Shaw; 71 – M.Jolly

## One Day Grade Report

This season was one that I believed promised a lot, but unfortunately for various reasons didn't deliver the ultimate prize in the end. I have really enjoyed the challenge of being Captain of our 1 day side and learnt a lot about the differences between the one and two day formats.

With only 7 teams in our grade we were always confident of making the top 4 and with Melville being so dominant the challenge of playing them in the Grand Final was always the goal. I guess in the end it makes the way we lost the semi final just that much harder to take, but the up side is that it has already set the challenge for us next season and I look forward to that very much.

We had a good season as a team and can certainly take a lot out of it. When I asked to Captain the side the main challenge I set myself was to make sure we all had a "Fun" season, where one of the most important aspects was that everyone had a job to do and the chance to improve themselves as cricketers as the season went on. If I had a "Most Improved" trophy it would undoubtable go to Matt Ansley-Rose, his keeping has improved in leaps and bounds since the start of the season. It was also good to see Lalji "DK" Halai move up from the one day side and do well in higher grades and the introduction of young Jake Lockyer to senior's cricket was one of the highlights of the season for me. At 13 years of age to take 6 wickets for the season including 4/35 in one game was a sensational effort.

Our batting this season was led by a few old timers in Jamie George 230 @ 38.33, Paul Warren 269 @ 29.89 and myself 355 @ 32.27 with Mike Warren showing how good it is to value your wicket, being dismissed only 3 times for 131 @ 43.67. A couple of other highlights obviously worth mentioning were Michael Knights 100 not out vs Curtain Vic Park and Mick "Dave" Gilders 104 v Applecross that also included a 171 opening stand with Mark Warren (78). Our bowling and fielding this season held it's own in most games with Mike Warren topping the bowling stats with 19 wickets @ 19.26 and an economy rate of just under 4.5, Jamie George 13 @ 17.38 at just over 5 and Michael Knight 8 @ 17.25 at 3.73 (off 37 overs). As previously mentioned Jake Lockyer's 4/35 was certainly a highlight, but the highlight of the season for us was Paul Warren's maiden club wicket! For the first time ever in his career I'll mention his bowling stats in a season wrap-up: 2.5 overs 0 maidens 1 for 23 @ 23 with a best ever 1/8 v Curtain Vic Park, welcome to the 1 run 1 wicket club Cat!

This season had its own special meaning for me, being able to play with 3 of my brothers in the same team and have our dad "Big Al" as team manager was something I will never forget. But since the end of the season I have also reflected on the fact that just because you want it to happen doesn't mean it just will! We should never forget that we need to continue to work for our success, as our 3<sup>rd</sup> Grade showed this season it's not over until it's over, on either side of the fence!

As always I look forward to next season and the challenges it brings...

#### Justin "Hollywood 419" Warren One Day Grade Captain

## One Day Grade Batting and Fielding

## Season Results (Including Fielding Votes)

Player	М	Inn.	NO	HS	Runs	Bat Avg	50s	100s	Dks	4s	6s	Cat. /St.	R/O	Field Votes
Warren, Justin A	7	11	0	67	355	32.27	3	0	1	39	17	15	0.5	166
Warren, Paul	6.5	12	3	60	269	29.89	2	0	0	33	5	6	1	115
George, Jamie	4	7	1	63	230	38.33	2	0	0	25	10	4	0.5	46
Warren, Mark A	3	6	0	78	155	25.83	1	0	1	20	0	3	0	14
Knight, Michael	3	6	2	100*	153	38.25	0	1	0	9	9	1	0.5	17
Gilders, Michael	1.5	2	0	104	133	66.50	0	1	0	8	7	0	0	7
Warren, Michael	6.5	10	7	22	131	43.67	0	0	0	14	0	3	1	24
Sykes, David	3.5	6	0	44	131	21.83	0	0	1	15	2	4	0.5	33
Dawson, Stafford G	3	5	1	27*	88	22.00	0	0	0	9	0	1	0	3
Coverdale, Paul S	0.5	1	1	88*	88	N/A	1	0	0	9	4	0	0	12
Dymock, Colin B	0.5	1	0	68	68	68.00	1	0	0	8	0	0	0	5
Smith, Peter	1.5	2	2	64*	67	N/A	1	0	0	3	6	1	0.5	18
Strauss, Craig	2.5	4	0	28	63	15.75	0	0	1	6	0	1	0	8
Davies, Glenn M	3	4	0	24	57	14.25	0	0	0	8	0	1	0.5	32
McNab, Cameron R	1	2	2	36*	48	N/A	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0
Magill, Anthony J	0.5	1	1	47*	47	N/A	0	0	0	8	1	0	0	7
Millett, Benjamin W	1.5	3	0	23	43	14.33	0	0	0	3	2	3	0	25
Groube, Anthony	1.5	3	1	27	41	20.50	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	6
Rupasinghe, Indilca	3.5	4	0	20	36	9.00	0	0	1	4	0	3	0.5	26
Day, Allan J	1	2	0	31	31	15.50	0	0	1	2	0	0	0	3
Sheppard, Damon J	1	2	1	12	22	22.00	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0
Haines, Douglas	0.5	1	0	22	22	22.00	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	0
Wilson, Paul	0.5	1	0	20	20	20.00	0	0	0	2	0	1	0	10
Hewitt, Damien P	0.5	1	0	16	16	16.00	0	0	0	2	0	0	0.5	4
Paice, Laurence	0.5	1	0	15	15	15.00	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	6
Lockyer, Jacob T	5	4	2	8*	14	7.00	0	0	1	1	0	1	0	26
Thorpe, Stephen	1	2	0	10	14	7.00	0	0	0	1	0	0	0.5	8
Halai, Lalji	2	1	0	12	12	12.00	0	0	0	1	0	1	1	15
Keenan, Brad	0.5	1	0	12	12	12.00	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	11
Purush, Srinivasan	2	3	0	6	12	4.00	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	9
Harris, Lachlan	1	1	0	10	10	10.00	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	3
Cairns, Stephen G	1	2	0	9	9	4.50	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0
Sheppard, Gregory	1	2	0	4	5	2.50	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	10
Duncan, Stephen J	1	2	0	3	4	2.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Blackmore, Matthew	1	1	1	3*	3	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	13
Rao, Sudhir	1	1	0	2	2	2.00	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	6
Lockyer, Christopher	2.5	2	1	1	1	1.00	0	0	0	0	0	2	0.5	60
Ansley-Rose, Matt	3.5	2	2	1*	1	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	6	0.5	58
Holland, Mitchell W	0.5	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	1	0	0	0	1	21
Chapman, Blair	0.5	0				N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
Shaik, Ershad	1	0				N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2
Gardiner, Cameron	0.5	0				N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Dart, Geoffrey	0.5	0				N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

#### Career Batting Records for this Side

Games (total\*0.5): 29 – P.Smith; 18.5 – C.Strauss; 16.5 – L.Harris; 14 – C.Taylor; 14 – Mike Warren Runs: 1367 – P.Smith; 1091 – C.Taylor; 763 – A.Magill; 555 – J.George; 386 - J. Warren Fours: 140 – P.Smith; 110 – C.Taylor; 80 - A. Magill; 58 - J. George; 46 – G.Sheppard Sixes: 46 – C.Taylor; 35 – A.Magill; 29 – P.Smith; 18 - J. Warren - 18; 14 - J. George Dismissals: 28 – P. Smith; 25 – C. Taylor; 20 – L. Harris; 18 – A. Nation; 16 – J. Warren

#### Partnerships

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Rd	Inn	Opponent
1	171	Michael Gilders* - Mark Warren	15	1	Applecross
2	55	Douglas Haines - Glenn Davies*	3	1	High Wycombe
3	133	Colin Dymock - Paul Coverdale*	8	1	Balcatta
4	99	Paul Warren* - Justin Warren	2	1	Western Suburbs
5	70	Justin Warren* - Jamie George	12	1	Melville
6	47 *	Anthony Magill* - Michael Warren*	9	1	Western Suburbs
7	62 *	Peter Smith* - Michael Warren*	7	1	Curtin Victoria Park
8	28	Michael Warren - Damon Sheppard*	14	1	Curtin Victoria Park
9	26	Glenn Davies - Michael Warren*	13	1	Applecross
10 <sup>#</sup>	21	Michael Warren* - Jacob Lockyer	12	1	Melville

<sup>#</sup> - denotes new all time record for wicket for this side

#### Other Records for Season for this Side

2<sup>nd</sup> Highest Team Score for Bentley - 3/268 v Applecross at Bentley PS (Dart Chapman Oval) (Round 15)

Highest Team Score against Bentley - 9/336 v Melville at Raphael Park North (Round 12)

## One Day Grade Bowling

Player	Overs	Balls	М	w	Runs	Bowl Avg.	Best Bwling	5wk inn.	7wk inn.	10wk mtch	Bowl S/R	Bowl Eco
Warren, Michael	75.3	495	8	19	366	19.26	2/14	0	0	0	26.1	4.44
George, Jamie	38	270	2	13	226	17.38	3/27	0	0	0	20.8	5.02
Rupasinghe, Indilca	34	204	2	9	191	21.22	3/35	0	0	0	22.7	5.62
Knight, Michael	30	122	3	8	128	16.00	3/31	0	0	0	15.3	6.30
Warren, Justin A	39.4	238	5	7	204	29.14	2/14	0	0	0	34.0	5.14
Lockyer, Jacob T	22	132	1	6	167	27.83	4/35	0	0	0	22.0	7.59
Smith, Peter	19	114	2	5	62	12.40	2/18	0	0	0	22.8	3.26
Halai, Lalji	25.2	152	3	5	113	22.60	3/28	0	0	0	30.4	4.46
Lockyer, Christopher	24	144	1	5	129	25.80	3/14	0	0	0	28.8	5.38
Chapman, Blair	7	42	1	4	35	8.75	4/35	0	0	0	10.5	5.00
Wilson, Paul	6.3	39	0	3	24	8.00	3/24	0	0	0	13.0	3.69
Harris, Lachlan	8	48	2	3	33	11.00	2/9	0	0	0	16.0	4.13
Gilders, Michael	17	102	2	2	109	54.50	1/16	0	0	0	51.0	6.41
Dawson, Stafford G	12	72	0	2	49	24.50	2/24	0	0	0	36.0	4.08
Strauss, Craig	22	132	2	2	94	47.00	1/12	0	0	0	66.0	4.27
Magill, Anthony J	7	42	2	2	23	11.50	2/23	0	0	0	21.0	3.29
Shaik, Ershad	14	84	4	2	70	35.00	2/18	0	0	0	42.0	5.00
Warren, Paul	2.5	17	0	1	23	23.00	1/8	0	0	0	17.0	8.12
Millett, Benjamin W	3	18	0	1	8	8.00	1/8	0	0	0	18.0	2.67
Groube, Anthony	7	42	2	1	27	27.00	1/27	0	0	0	42.0	3.86
Paice, Laurence	6	36	0	1	33	33.00	1/33	0	0	0	36.0	5.50
Keenan, Brad	1	6	0	1	13	13.00	1/13	0	0	0	6.0	13.00
Blackmore, Matthew	12	72	0	1	74	74.00	1/47	0	0	0	72.0	6.17
Warren, Mark A	2	12	0	0	16	N/A	0/16	0	0	0	N/A	8.00
Sykes, David	2	12	0	0	23	N/A	0/23	0	0	0	N/A	11.50
Coverdale, Paul S	7	42	1	0	14	N/A	0/14	0	0	0	N/A	2.00
Dymock, Colin B	2	12	0	0	13	N/A	0/13	0	0	0	N/A	6.50
Day, Allan J	2	12	0	0	13	N/A	0/13	0	0	0	N/A	6.50
Sheppard, Damon J	8	48	0	0	59	N/A	0/27	0	0	0	N/A	7.38
Haines, Douglas	2	12	0	0	21	N/A	0/21	0	0	0	N/A	10.50
Hewitt, Damien P	4	24	0	0	24	N/A	0/24	0	0	0	N/A	6.00
Sheppard, Gregory	2	12	0	0	12	N/A	0/12	0	0	0	N/A	6.00
Duncan, Stephen J	3.2	20	0	0	31	N/A	0/11	0	0	0	N/A	9.30
Rao, Sudhir	10	60	1	0	63	N/A	0/29	0	0	0	N/A	6.30
Ansley-Rose, Matt	1	6	0	0	12	N/A	0/12	0	0	0	N/A	12.00
Holland, Mitchell W	3	18	0	0	17	N/A	0/17	0	0	0	N/A	5.67
Gardiner, Cameron	4	24	0	0	21	N/A	0/21	0	0	0	N/A	5.25

#### Career Bowling Records for this Side

Wickets: 45 - P.Smith; 42 - Mike Warren; 31 - A.Magill; 29 - C.Strauss; 27 - S.George

Balls: 976 - C.Strauss; 932 - Mike Warren; 852 - P.Smith; 726 - A.Magill; 609 - C.Taylor

Maidens: 19 – A.Magill; 18 – M.Massee; 11 – P.Smith; 10 – C.Strauss; 8 - Mike Warren/R Duncan

## Twenty20 Grade Report

With a bad loss in the T20 grand final last year the Bentley boys went out this season to go one better to win the grand final. We did this with an easy victory over the Subi-Marist Cricket club. It all started back in October when we travelled to Kent Street to play Applecross. We started off with a narrow loss losing by 6 runs. Fab Fanayan had a game out making 70 no and taking 3 wickets. Brad Holly also made his T20 debut and picking up his 1st T20 wicket with his 1<sup>st</sup> ball. He finished with figures of 2/26.

Round 2 of the CaptureSport T20 was against Curtin Vic Park with Laurance Paice captaining his 1<sup>st</sup> game for the club. We cruised to victory with a 7-wicket win. Wingnut (on Debut) picked up 2 wickets and skipper Paice and Fab Fanayan continuing his good form with 40s respectively.

As a small interlude to the WASTCA T20 Comp Bentley were invited to play in the T20 State-wide Knockout comp against WACA and Country teams. Bentley Travelled to Esperance (by plane) for a game in the Deep South. All that attended had a great time but we sadly went down by 30 runs. Leigh Martin with 19 and Prescott 22 we the best with the bat with the bowling honours were shared around, the trip proved to be a great team bonding experience as we only went from strength to strength after that.

As Round 3 came upon us we recorded another easy victory against 2<sup>nd</sup> grade side Kalamunda. Tristan Francis made a sensational debut in T20 with a 50 no off only 30 balls as Bentley went on to win by 9 wickets.

With the Dave Berry game upon us in Round 4 once again Bentley recorded another easy victory against South Perth to regain the cup. Also a Co-Captain of the T20 competition Brendan Daye performed on the big stage picking up 3 wickets to take out a man of the match.

With Bentley through to the quarter-finals we came up against Balcatta. On a 40 degree day Paul Coverdale produced a high class 80 no and picking up 3 wickets with the ball. With a tough start Bentley won by 30 runs to progress into the semi-finals.

As the semi-final came up and only having 4 players out of the 12 there at the start of the 1<sup>st</sup> ball we won the toss and batted. Getting us off to a good start with Tristan Francis and Arden Wittensleger pushing the score up at 6 an over. Arden also made a good start with 17 and Tristan finished on 27. As the overs ticked on we lost a few quick wickets. With Paul Coverdale still at the crease still Skipper Prescott entered the crease and combined with Covers to produced a defendable score of 136, Covers went on to make 43 not out and Prescott 20 not out. The side went out to field confident that 136 was defendable against Whitfords. Whitfords got off to a good start until Omo Fanayan pulled off a brilliant catch. They then fell behind the run rate and could not chase down 136 and ended up with 123. Prescott was the pick of the bowlers with 2/20 and Coverdale backing up his 43 with 2 wickets.

So, Bentley had made it through to their 2<sup>nd</sup> T20 grand final. We rolled up to the ground with a few players a bit under the weather due to a famous Bentley bus trip the night before Bentley had lost the toss and had to bowl. Very confident going into this game we got off to a great start with Hiten Shah picking up a wicket in his 1<sup>st</sup> over. Opening at the other end was English import Jack Brooks who claimed a wicket in his 1<sup>st</sup> over. As the overs ticked on and some tight bowling the team knew they were in with a great chance. Then enter Jack Brooks for his 2<sup>nd</sup> spell. In 1 extraordinary over Brooks got a smart run out to keeper Jack Duffy and then very next ball pulling of one of the best individual fielding efforts with a direct hit throw, including a celebratory lap of honour to go with it. Simply awesome!! Brooks finished with 2 wickets and 2 run outs and Prescott chipping in with 3 wickets.

Chasing 73 for victory Arden and Tristan got us off to a quick start with 43 on the board after 3 overs. As we lost a few wickets Bentley chased down 73 with the winning run a wide to record a 6 wicket win. Every batsman that went in all chipped in with the score and Tristan Francis launching a big 6 to get us going. Jack Brooks was named man of the match for his efforts.

Finally I would like to throw a big thank you to Greg Dart, Graeme Verco and Neil Gardner who helped out the whole T20 season and giving up their Sundays to help out 12 boys every week.

Thanks to the Bentley Cricket Club for letting us 3 lads take on the responsibility of captaining and looking forward to more premierships as years go on.

#### Chris Prescott, Laurence Paice and Brendan Daye Twenty20 Co-Captains



Back I-r: Stafford Dawson (President), Hiten Shah, Leigh Martin (12<sup>th</sup> Man), Paul Coverdale, Tristan Francis, Jack Brooks, Laurence Paice, Neil Gardner (Scorer), Fab Fanayan, Front I-r: Jack Duffy, Brendan Daye, Omo Fanayan, Arden Wittensledger, Chris Prescott (Capt)

#### Partnerships

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen		Opponent		
1	95	Laurence Paice* - Fab Fanayan	2	Curtin Victoria Park		
2	85 *	Tristan Francis* - Omid Fanayan*	3	Kalamunda		
3	42	Paul Coverdale - Jack Duffy*	5	South Perth		
4 16		Omid Fanayan* - Jack Brooks		Subiaco Marist		
4	16	Paul Coverdale* - Jack Duffy	QF	Balcatta		
5	60	Paul Coverdale* - Jack Brooks	QF	Balcatta		
6	66 *	Paul Coverdale* - Chris Prescott*	SF	Whitfords		
7	50 *	Paul Coverdale* - Steven Paice*	QF	Balcatta		
8	34 Leigh Martin - Chris Prescott*		SW	Esperance		
9	15 Chris Prescott - Evan Britton*		SW	Esperance		
10	10 9 Evan Britton* - Hiten Shah		SW	Esperance		

SW – State Wide Competition Game

# **Twenty20 Batting and Fielding**

#### Season Results

Player	М	I	NO	HS	R	Bat Avg	50s	Dk	4s	6s	Ct	St	RO	BF	SR	Tot Pts	Ave Pts
Coverdale, Paul	4	4	2	83*	157	78.50	1	0	6	2	0	0	0	115	137	277	69.3
Fanayan, Fab	7	6	2	73*	131	32.75	1	0	17	1	3	0	0	50	114	241	34.4
Francis, Tristan	4	4	1	54*	106	35.33	1	0	17	2	1	0	0	94	113	116	29.0
Paice, Laurence	6	5	0	45	71	14.20	0	2	8	0	0	0	1	68	104	91	15.2
Fanayan, Omid	7	7	3	23*	65	16.25	0	1	7	1	4	0	3.5	64	89	195	27.9
Prescott, Chris	7	3	1	22	60	30.00	0	0	2	0	2	0	2.5	19	105	310	44.3
Duffy, Jack	7	4	1	28	51	17.00	0	1	2	0	5	1	1	43	119	131	18.7
Brooks, Jack A	3	2	0	35	43	21.50	0	0	4	1	0	0	1.5	35	123	133	44.3
Wittensleger, A	4	4	0	17	35	8.75	0	1	3	0	0	0	0	29	107	35	8.8
Daye, Brendan	6	3	1	19*	29	14.50	0	0	1	0	1	0	1.5	26	77	249	41.5
Martin, Leigh	6	3	1	19	22	11.00	0	1	0	0	3	0	0	4	75	52	8.7
Britton, Evan	3	2	1	12*	17	17.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	N/A	107	35.7
Paice, Steven	2	1	1	12*	12	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	12	100	12	6.0
Gill, Nirmal	1	1	1	11*	11	N/A	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	0	N/A	61	20.3
Sibson, Jarrad	3	2	0	10	11	5.50	0	0	1	0	2	0	1.5	0	N/A	41	41.0
Thomas, Aidon	2	2	0	6	9	4.50	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	4	75	49	24.5
Arcaro, Danny	1	1	0	5	5	5.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	N/A	5	5.0
Shah, Hiten	7	1	0	1	1	1.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	1	0	N/A	131	18.7
D'Souza, Timothy	1					N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	N/A	30	15.0
Holly, Brad	1					N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	N/A	40	40.0
Keenan, Brad	1					N/A	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	N/A	40	40.0
Lockyer, Chris	1					N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	N/A	40	40.0
Mitchell, Ben	2					N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.5	0	N/A	20	20.0
Patel, Nikul	1					N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	N/A	20	20.0
Thomas, Jai P	1					N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	N/A	10	10.0

<sup>#</sup> - Strike Rate (SR) calculated only on games where balls faced have been recorded. Excludes runs scored against Applecross and Esperance in 2009/10 Season.

Wickets/runs from these matches have not been used for calculating points in the Ralph Dungey and Consistency trophies. The Capture Sport Twenty20 Player of the Year Trophy is based upon the WASTCA points system. Points awarded including all games (including finals and statewide representative games). The total points have then been divided by the number of games played. A player must have played a minimum of 2 games in the Twenty20 competition to qualify for this award.

# Twenty20 Grade Bowling

Player	Overs	Balls	М	w	Runs	Bowl Avg.	Best Bwling	5wk inn.	Bowl S/R	Bowl Eco
Daye, Brendan	23	138	1	9	120	13.33	3/15	0	15.33	5.22
Prescott, Chris	23.5	143	2	9	137	15.22	3/25	0	15.89	5.75
Coverdale, Paul S	11	66	0	6	52	8.67	3/28	0	11.00	4.73
Shah, Hiten	27	162	2	5	167	33.40	2/28	0	32.40	6.19
Fanayan, Fab	8	48	0	4	61	15.25	3/11	0	12.00	7.63
Britton, Evan	8	48	0	4	55	13.75	3/21	0	12.00	6.88
Brooks, Jack A	11	66	0	3	34	11.33	2/7	0	22.00	3.09
Holly, Brad	4	24	0	2	24	12.00	2/24	0	12.00	6.00
D'Souza, Timothy	3	18	0	2	20	10.00	2/20	0	9.00	6.67
Lockyer, Christopher	2	12	0	2	14	7.00	2/14	0	6.00	7.00
Thomas, Aidon	2.1	13	0	2	10	5.00	1/0	0	6.50	4.62
Mitchell, Ben	8	48	0	1	61	61.00	1/32	0	48.00	7.63
Fanayan, Omid	6	36	0	1	43	43.00	1/25	0	36.00	7.17
Patel, Nikul	4	24	0	1	21	21.00	1/21	0	24.00	5.25
Gill, Nirmal	2	12	0	1	19	19.00	1/19	0	12.00	9.50
Thomas, Jai P	4	24	0	1	11	11.00	1/11	0	24.00	2.75
Martin, Leigh	3	18	0	0	22	N/A	0/9	0	N/A	7.33
Keenan, Brad	2	12	0	0	12	N/A	0/12	0	N/A	6.00

# Twenty20 Premiership Season Review

RND	Dates	Home Team	v	Away Team	Venue		
1	18-Oct-09	Applecross 8/138(cc) AL Shakespeare 38 B Rodden 22 C Teede 13* T McCormick 12 CS Cooper 10* F Fanayan 3/11 B Holly 2/24	def	<b>Bentley</b> <b>7/131(cc)</b> F Fanayan 73* C Prescott 18 N Gill 11* J Sibson 10 C Teede 3/29	Kent Street High School (Turf)		
2	1-Nov-09	Bentley 3/134 F Fanayan 46 L Paice 45 J Duffy 18* MK Oza 2/23		def9/131(cc)JK Brookes 26* A Kabir 243/134 F Fanayan 46 L Paice 45 J Duffy 18*JA Peel 22 D Harris 19 SR de Alwis 11		9/131(cc) JK Brookes 26* A Kabir 24	Wyong Reserve
State Wide	8-Nov-09	Esperance 6/119 J Whiting 40 S Tobin 21 G Hoffeichter 18 J Montgoery 10* C Prescott 1/8	def	Bentley 89 C Prescott 22 L Martin 19 E Britton 12* B Weckert 4/14 A Rayner 2/16	Esperance		
3	15-Nov-09	5-Nov-09 <b>86</b> K Critchell 26 JM Questel 13 D Saunders 11 B Daye 3/16 E Britton 3/21		Bentley 1/89 T Francis 54* O Fanayan 23*	Kostera Oval		
4	29-Nov-09	Bentley	v	BYE			
5	13-Dec-09	Bentley (Chuck Berry Game) 4/102 J Duffy 28 PS Coverdale 23 B Daye 19* O Fanayan 11* L Lacey 2/15	def	South Perth 8/101 KA Valentine 35 T Boteler 24 D Hitchcock 15 B Daye 2/19 H Shah 2/28	Wyong Reserve		
QF	17-Jan-10	Balcatta 7/152 J Lane 55 G Murat 36 J Herb 17* RL Johnson 10 J Giacoppo 10 PS Coverdale 3/28	def by	<b>Bentley</b> 6/173(cc) PS Coverdale 83* JA Brooks 35 L Paice 17 S Paice 12* J Pugliese 3/33	Jones Paskin Reserve		
SF	14-Feb-10	Whitfords 7/117 S Mitchell 30 L Carroll 26 A Manners 15 B Rodgers 15 M Lucas 13 PS Coverdale 2/13 C Prescott 2/20	def by	Bentley 5/132(cc) PS Coverdale 46* T Francis 27 C Prescott 20* A Wittensleger 17 J Hollows 3/20	MacDonald Park (Turf)		
GF	7-Mar-10	Subiaco Marist 73 M Bott 38 B Sandhu 12 C Prescott 3/25 JA Brooks 2/8	def by	Bentley 4/74 T Francis 21 O Fanayan 17* A Wittensleger 14 SJ French 3/26	Newman College (Upper)		

# **Professionals Belmont 100 Run Partnerships**

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Grade	Rd	Inn	Opponent
1	142	Laurence Paice - Aidon Thomas*	1st Grade	3	1	Melville
2	105	Aidon Thomas* - Arden Wittensleger	1st Grade	3	1	Melville
4	123	Arden Wittensleger* - Brendan Daye	1st Grade	5	1	Western Suburbs
5	109	Brendan Daye* - Fab Fanayan	1st Grade	4	1	Bedford Morley
3	103 *	Steven Paice* - Leigh Martin*	3rd Grade	SF	1	Wembley Districts
5	138	Steven Paice - Leigh Martin*	3rd Grade	7	1	Fremantle / Mos Park
1	105	Tristan Francis* - Steven Shearing	5th Grade	3	1	Melville
7	116 *	Culver Chappelle* - Simon Cleary*	6th Grade	10	1	Western Suburbs
2	107	Geoffrey Dart - Donald Dungey*	9th Grade	4	1	Bassendean
3	116	Donald Dungey - Edward Daquino*	9th Grade	6	1	Melville
4	110	Edward Daquino* - Brad Keenan	9th Grade	1	1	Swanbourne
6	126 *	Michael Gilders* - Mitchell Holland*	9th Grade	11	1	Melville
7	116	Peter Smith - Paul Pringle*	9th Grade	3	1	Curtin Victoria Park
1	171	Michael Gilders* - Mark Warren	One Day 2	15	1	Applecross
3	133	Colin Dymock - Paul Coverdale*	One Day 2	8	1	Balcatta

### **Annual Season Awards**

#### Centuries

Rank	Runs	Player	Grade	Rd	Ι	Opponent	
1	150	Tristan Francis	3rd Grade	10	1	Applecross	Wyong Res
2	141	Peter Smith	9th Grade	3	1	Curtin Victoria Park	Bentley PS
3	128*	Paul S Coverdale	1st Grade	9	1	High Wycombe	Scott Res
4	123*	Aidon Thomas	1st Grade	3	1	Melville	Wyong Res
5	120	Arden Wittensleger	1st Grade	5	1	Western Suburbs	Wyong Res
6	104	Michael Gilders	One Day 2	15	1	Applecross	Bentley PS
7	101	Paul S Coverdale	1st Grade	7	1	Fremantle / Mosman Park	Gilbert Fraser Res
8	101*	Jai P Thomas	3rd Grade	6	1	Balcatta	Wyong Res
9	100*	Michael Knight	One Day 2	16	1	Western Suburbs	Bentley PS

#### 7 Wickets

Player	0	Μ	R	W	Grade	Rd	I	Date	Opponent	Venue
Chris Prescott	21	3	52	9	1 <sup>st</sup> Grade	4	1	21 Nov 2009	Bedford Morley	Charles Veryard West
Chris Prescott	15	3	40	7	1 <sup>st</sup> Grade	9	1	13 Feb 2010	High Wycombe	Wyong Reserve
Brendan Daye	10	6	11	8	1 <sup>st</sup> Grade	SF	1	20 Mar 2010	Swan Valley	Scott Reserve
Ben Mitchell	27	6	78	7	3 <sup>rd</sup> Grade	GF	1	28 Mar 2010	Doubleview-Carine	Charles Veryard East

#### 100 Games

Player Name	Grade	Round	Date	Against
Blair Chapman	5 <sup>th</sup> Grade	3	31 Oct 2009	Melville
Chris Pritchard	3 <sup>rd</sup> Grade	GF	27 Mar 2010	Doubleview Carine

#### 50 Games

Player Name	Grade	Round	Date	Against
Brendan Daye	1 <sup>st</sup> Grade	2	17 Oct 2009	Wembley Districts
Wade McKay	3 <sup>rd</sup> Grade	3	31 Oct 2009	Melville
Anthony Brown	5 <sup>th</sup> Grade	3	31 Oct 2009	Melville
Ben Mitchell	3 <sup>rd</sup> Grade	5	28 Nov 2009	Western Suburbs
Simon Cleary	6 <sup>th</sup> Grade	11	6 Feb 2010	Fremantle / Mosman Park

### **Grade Performance Awards**

	-	Aggregate	Paul Coverdale	445	Runs	
	Batting	Average	Paul Coverdale	89.0	per Innings	
1 <sup>st</sup> Grade	6	Aggregate	Chris Prescott	45	Wickets	
	Bowling	Average	Jack Brooks	11.61	Runs/Wicket	
	Field		Omo Fanayan	143	Votes	
	Detting	Aggregate	Leigh Martin	344	Runs	
	Batting	Average	Leigh Martin	28.67	per Innings	
3 <sup>rd</sup> Grade	David	Aggregate	Tim D'Souza	26	Wickets	
	Bowling	Average	Tim D'Souza	13.81	Runs/Wicket	
	Field	ling	Chris Pritchard	116	Votes	
	Detting	Aggregate	Steve Shearing	317	Runs	
	Batting	Average	Steve Shearing	35.22	per Innings	
5 <sup>th</sup> Grade	Douding	Aggregate	Blair Chapman	22	Wickets	
	Bowling	Average	Blair Chapman	18.77	Runs/Wicket	
	Field	ling	Nikul Patel	87 Votes		
	Batting	Aggregate	Mauneek Solanki	272	Runs	
	Batting	Average	Culver Chappelle	49.8	per Innings	
6 <sup>th</sup> Grade	Bowling	Aggregate	Nirmal Gill	23	Wickets	
	Dowling	Average	Chris Lockyer	12.47	Runs/Wicket	
	Field	ling	Mauneek Solanki	210	Votes	
	Batting	Aggregate	Lloyd Dungey	375	Runs	
	Datting	Average	Michael Gilders	58.75	per Innings	
9 <sup>th</sup> Grade	Bowling	Aggregate	Greg Nairn	22	Wickets	
	Dowling	Average	Greg Nairn	14.41	Runs/Wicket	
	Field	ling	Brad Holly	195	Votes	
	Batting	Aggregate	Justin Warren	298	Runs	
	Datting	Average	Jamie George	45.8	per Innings	
One Day Grade	Bowling	Aggregate	Michael Warren	19	Wickets	
	Bowing	Average	Michael Warren	17.11	Runs/Wicket	
	Field	ling	Justin Warren	166	Votes	
Twenty20 Grade	Consistency Points	Point/Game	Paul Coverdale	69.25	Point/Game	

#### Rules used for the Grade Awards

Bowling Average / Aggregate in a Grade: A player must have bowled a minimum of 50 overs and taken 15 wickets in the selected grade to qualify for a bowling average trophy in that grade. The bowling aggregate trophy will be awarded to the player who takes the most wickets in the grade.

Batting Average / Aggregate in a Grade: A player must have scored a minimum of 150 runs and had 5 innings in the selected grade to qualify for a batting average trophy in that grade. The batting aggregate trophy will be awarded to the player who makes the most runs in the grade.

Fielding: Fielding votes are awarded by the players at the completion of each match will be recorded and tallied to determine the winner in each grade.

The Hayward Medal is awarded to the player in the highest grade of the club who receives the highest recorded votes from the umpires votes during the regular season. A player may receive this award if they have received another playing award

### Donald "Lloyd" Dungey - 10,000 Runs



Lloyd Dungey became the first player in the Club's history to pass the 10,000 run mark on Saturday, 16 January 2010, when he scored 39 in 9<sup>th</sup> Grade against Curtin-Victoria Park.

Dungey debuted for Bentley in the 1965/66 season as a 13 year old. He has now completed the equivalent of 483 two day fixtures, and will surely become the first person to play 500 games sometime next season.

An elegant, right hand batsman, Lloyd played his best cricket through the Club's Golden Years of the 1970's and 1980's. Perhaps his finest knock was when he batted for over 4 hours in the 1985/86 2<sup>nd</sup> Grade Grand Final, as Bentley chased down Marist Newman's 270.

A testimony to the fact that he still has a bit of 'touch' is that he has now scored 375 runs this season in 9th Grade at an average of 31.25, including a top score of 98 and taken home the Batting Aggregate Trophy.

Lloyd has an amazing record on field but just as impressive is his off-field personality, where he displays class, grace and a very rarely seen humbleness spring to mind.

Universally respected and recognised by team mates and opponents alike as a true gentlemen of the game, Lloyd can be very proud of his achievements to date!

Achievement	Result	Comments
Debut	1965/66	
Player No	133	Member of the Team of the first 50 years
Games	489.5	Club Record
Total Runs	10,105	Club Record
Highest Score	117	v South Perth 2000/01
Innings	579	Club Record
Not Outs	88	2 <sup>nd</sup> all time
Batting Average	20.58	In top 75
Hundreds	3	Equal 3 <sup>rd</sup> all time
Fifties	39	Club Record
Fours Hit	818	Club Record
Sixes Hit	69	4 <sup>th</sup> all time
Most Runs in a Season	482	(1979/80) 13 <sup>th</sup> all time
Ducks	61	5 <sup>th</sup> all time
Catches	190	4 <sup>th</sup> all time
Run Outs	30	Club Record
100 Run Partnerships	20	Club Record
50 Run Partnerships	95	Club Record
Club 7 <sup>th</sup> Wicket Record Partnership	177	With L Kirwan against Dianella/Alexander 95/96 at Wyong
Club 8 <sup>th</sup> Wicket Record Partnership	127	With A Hayward against Maccabi 81/82 at Maccabean

Some statistics on how he got there and what he has achieve

Well done Legend!

### Other Milestones Achieve in 2009/10

Milestone	Player	When Achieved
10000 Runs	Lloyd Dungey	9th Grade 16/01/10 R9 Curtin Vic Park
6000 Runs	Steve Cairns	9th Grade 12/12/09 R7 Bedford Morley
4000 Runs	Paul Warren	One Day 21/11/09 R6 V Applecross
3000 Runs	Glen Davies	9th Grade 30/01/10 R10 Swanbourne
2000 Runs	Chris Pritchard	3rd Grade 19/12/09 R6 Balcatta
	Simon Cleary	6th Grade 27/03/10 GF Ocean Ridge
	Paul Coverdale	1st Grade 12/12/09 R6 Balcatta
	Ed Daquino	9th Grade 16/01/10 R9 Curtin Vic Park
1000 Runs	Stafford Dawson	6th Grade 13/02/10 R12 Swan Valley
	Brendan Daye	1st Grade 10/10/09 R1 Swanbourne
	Michael Knight	One Day 27/02/10 R16 Western Suburbs
	Arden Wittensleger	1st Grade 28/11/09 R5 Western Suburbs
250 Dismissals	Paul Warren	6th Grade 16/01/10 R9 Whitfords
100 Dismissals	Chris Pritchard	3rd Grade 28/03/10 GF Doubleview Carine
600 Wickets	Greg Nairn	9th Grade 9/1/10 R8 Ocean Ridge
300 Wickets	Shaun O'Shea	3rd Grade 31/10/09 R3 Melville
SOU WICKEIS	Jamie George	One Day 19/12/09 R10 High Wycombe
200 Wickets	Chris Prescott	1st Grade 28/11/09 R5 Western Suburbs
150 Wickets	Tim D'Souza	3rd Grade 20/02/10 R10 Applecross
	Brendan Daye	1st Grade 10/10/09 R1 Swanbourne
100 Wickets	Ken deJager	6th Grade 30/01/10 R10 Western Suburbs
	Mike Warren	One Day 21/11/09 R6 V Applecross

### **Hayward Medal**

Year	Winner							
1994/95	Steve Shearing							
1995/96	Steve Shearing							
1996/97	Dave Berry							
1997/98	Scott Vallow							
1998/99	Shane Paap							
1999/00	Anthony Magill							
2000/01	Michael Reilly							
2001/02	Shaun O'Shea							
2002/03	Shaun O'Shea							
2003/04	Hudson Trevenen							
2004/05	Shaun O'Shea							
2005/06	Michael Scholefield							
2006/07	Steven Clark							
2007/08	Brendan Daye							
2008/09	Brendan Daye							
2009/10	Chris Prescott							

## **Consistency Award**

Year	Winner	Pts
2001/02	Russell Budd	523
2002/03	Shaun O'Shea	622
2003/04	Hudson Trevenen	826
2004/05	Ian Pattison	676

Year	Winner	Pts
2005/06	Jamie Hendry	664
2006/07	Steven Clark	707
2007/08	Chris Taylor	853
2008/09	Brendan Daye	757
2009/10	Brendan Daye	786

### **Ralph Dungey Award**

	Ballgoy Allara
Year	Winner
1972/73	Stu Rankin
1973/74	Ken Little
1974/75	John Williams
1975/76	Len Woodley
1976/77	Ron Street
1977/78	Anthony Malins
1978/79	Phil Roberts
1979/80	Andrew Hayward
1980/81	Alf Schneider
1981/82	William Skuthorp
1982/83	Ray Harmer
1983/84	Peter Farrall
1984/85	Ray Harmer
1985/86	Kim Fowler
1986/87	Steve Carr

Year	Winner
1987/88	Graham Dickerson
1988/89	Chris Lockyer
1989/90	Mark Lukan
1990/91	John Williams
1991/92	Anthony Magill
1992/93	Malcolm Dickerson
1993/94	Anthony Magill
1994/95	Kirk Spencer
1995/96	Anthony Magill
1996/97	Andrew Hayward
1997/98	Kirk Spencer
1998/99	Malcolm Dickerson
1999/00	Scott Vallow
2000/01	Jamie George
2001/02	Hudson Trevenen
2002/03	Hudson Trevenen
2003/04	Darren Third
2004/05	Darren Third
2005/06	Chris Prescott
2006/07	Jamie George
2007/08	Omid Fanayan
2008/09	Peter Smith
2009/10	Brad Keenan

## Milestones Possible in 2010/11

Achievement	Player	Current	To Go
500 Games	Lloyd Dungey	489.5	10.5
400 Games	Steve Cairns	398.5	1.5
	Matt Harmer	240	10
250 Games	Greg Nairn	238	12
	Simon Magill	237	13
200 Games	Keith Chapman	199.5	0.5
	Greg Sheppard	148	2
150 Games	Geoff Dart	148	2
	Ken Dawson	142.5	7.5
	Chris Prescott	94	6
	Ken deJager	92	8
100 Games	Jos Welsh	89	11
	Fab Fanayan	88	12
	Stafford Dawson	88	12
	Daniel Swansson	49.5	0.5
	Cameron McNab	46.5	3.5
	Anthony Groube	45	5
50 Games	Lachie Harris	44.5	5.5
SU Games	Darren Solomon	42	8
	Brad Keenan	39	11
	Don McKeig	36	14
	Nirmal Gill	36	14

Achievement	Player	Current	To Go
Admeterient	Simon Magill	3766	234
4000 Runs	Peter Smith	3725	275
3000 Runs	Ken Dawson	2804	196
5000 IXulis	Omo Fanayan	1978	22
		1978	77
	Fab Fanayan		
	Doug Haines	1864	136
	Greg Nairn	1794	206
2000 Runs	Serge Perrozzi	1756	244
	Daniel Arcaro	1756	244
	Chris Lockyer	1684	316
	Laurence Paice	1504	496
	Paul Coverdale	1408	592
	Chris Prescott	928	72
	Anthony Groube	904	96
	Damien Hewitt	902	98
	Ken deJager	835	165
1000 Runs	Ben Mitchell	819	181
	Mike Warren	801	199
	Anthony Brown	770	230
	Jack Duffy	768	232
	Leigh Martin	738	262
	Brad Keenan	666	334

Achievement	Player	Current	To Go
300 Dismissals	Glenn Davies	292	8
200 Dismissals	Lloyd Dungey	190	10
	Peter Smith	90	10
100 Dismissals	Steve Paice	89	11
	Greg Nairn	89	11
250 Wickets	Chris Prescott	230	20
200 Wickets	Chris Lockyer	198	2
200 WICKEIS	Blair Chapman	194	6
150 Wickets	Serge Perrozzi	120	30
	Peter Smith	98	2
	Ben Mitchell	93	7
100 Wickets	Ed Daquino	90	10
	Wade McKay	83	17
	Sheahan Dungey	71	29

## Kalamunda Bus Services Consistency Award Points

R	Player	Pts	R	Player	Pts	R	Player	Pts
1	Daye, Brendan	786	35	Swansson, Daniel	361	71	Magill, Simon	146
2	Prescott, Chris	772	37	Halai, Lalji	357	72	Pringle, Paul X	144
3	Warren, Justin A	668	38	Duffy, Jack	339	73	Lockyer, Jacob T	131
4	Gilders, Michael	633	39	Perrozzi, Serge	335	74	Eaton, Julian	128
5	Coverdale, Paul S	631	40	deJager, Kenneth	334	75	Davies, Glenn M	113
6	Gill, Nirmal	614	41	Shearing, Steven J	327	75	Ferguson, Braydon	113
7	Solanki, Mauneek	602	42	Harris, Lachlan	319	77	Magill, Anthony J	111
8	Lockyer, Chris	580	43	Britton, Evan	308	78	Strauss, Craig	101
9	Holly, Brad	540	44	Thomas, Aidon	305	79	Gitsham, Greg W	95
10	Keenan, Brad	525	45	Daye, Steven M	300	80	Dymock, Colin B	89
11	George, Jamie	523	45	Sibson, Jarrad	300	81	Blackmore, Matt	80
12	Smith, Peter	511	47	Taylor, Robert J	279	82	Wilson, Paul	75
13	D'Souza, Timothy	500	47	Holland, Mitchell W	279	83	Cairns, Stephen G	73
14	Cleary, Simon V	494	49	Fanayan, Fab	272	83	Purush, Srinivasan	73
15	Chapman, Blair	491	50	McNab, Cameron R	266	85	Solomon, Darren J	72
16	Brown, Anthony E	488	51	Kelly, Craig	258	86	Day, Allan J	68
17	Francis, Tristan	487	52	O'Shea, Shaun	255	87	Ansley-Rose, Matt	62
18	Brooks, Jack A	471	53	Rupasinghe, Indilca	243	88	Wilson, Shaun	54
19	Dungey, Donald L	462	54	Knight, Michael	240	89	Shaik, Ershad	32
20	Pritchard, Chris	454	55	Millett, Benjamin W	235	90	Sheppard, Damon J	22
21	Daquino, Edward	451	56	Mitchell, Ben	233	90	Thorpe, Stephen	22
22	Arcaro, Daniel	441	57	Dawson, Stafford G	227	92	Hewitt, Damien P	20
23	Warren, Michael	438	58	Patel, Harsh J	214	93	Sheppard, Gregory	15
24	Dungey, Sheahan	423	59	Shah, Hiten	206	94	Mead, Liam	14
25	Warren, Paul	423	60	Duffy, Max	202	95	Rao, Sudhir	8
26	Fanayan, Omid	412	61	Dart, Geoffrey	193	96	Jayasinghe, Don D	7
27	Nairn, Gregory J	407	62	Birch, Michael	190	97	Lockyer, Matt	6
28	Martin, Leigh	406	63	Patel, Nikul	179	98	Maurer, Craig	4
29	Wittensleger, Arden	405	64	Haines, Douglas	170	99	Duncan, Stephen J	4
30	Paice, Laurence	400	65	Warren, Mark A	169	100	Berry, Tom	1
31	Welsh, Jos	396	66	Dawson, Ken C	166	101	Gardiner, Cameron	0
32	McKay, Wade	369	67	McKeig, Donald R	165	101	Dybing, Mark	0
33	Thomas, Jaxon B	366	68	Sykes, David	164	101	Chapman, Keith	0
34	Chappelle, Culver	362	69	Groube, Anthony	156			
35	Thomas, Jai P	361	70	Bradbury, Chris	153			

Consistency Award: Is based upon points received by a player as per the Ralph Dungey system, with the exception being wickets will be worth fifteen (15) points. This award will be given to the player with the most points. A player may receive this award if they have received another playing award.

## **Ralph Dungey Award Points**

2   Cov     3   Day     4   Sol     5   Gild     6   Pre     7   Kee     8   Gill     9   Fra	arren, Justin A verdale, Paul S ye, Brendan lanki, Mauneek ders, Michael escott, Chris <b>enan, Brad</b>	633* 626* 591* 562* 558* 547*	36 37 37 39	Thomas, Aidon Daye, Steven M Sibson, Jarrad	305 300	71 72	Bradbury, Chris	143
3   Day     4   Sol     5   Gild     6   Pre     7   Kee     8   Gill     9   Fra	ye, Brendan lanki, Mauneek ders, Michael escott, Chris	591* 562* 558*	37 39		300	70		
4   Sol     5   Gild     6   Pre     7   Kee     8   Gill     9   Fra	lanki, Mauneek ders, Michael escott, Chris	562* 558*	39	Sibson Jarrad	000	12	Magill, Simon	136
5   Gild     6   Pre     7   Kee     8   Gill     9   Fra	ders, Michael escott, Chris	558*		Sibsui, Janau	300	73	Davies, Glenn M	113
6 Pre 7 Kee 8 Gill 9 Fra	escott, Chris			Nairn, Gregory J	297*	74	Eaton, Julian	103
7   Kee     8   Gill     9   Fra		5/7*	40	Perrozzi, Serge	295	74	Ferguson, Braydon	103
8 Gill 9 Fra	enan Brad	J47	41	Thomas, Jaxon B	291	75	Lockyer, Jacob T	101
9 Fra	chan, brau	500	42	Harris, Lachlan	279	77	Magill, Anthony J	96
	I, Nirmal	499*	43	Swansson, Daniel	271	78	Strauss, Craig	91
10 Hol	ancis, Tristan	487	44	Halai, Lalji	267	79	Dymock, Colin B	89
	lly, Brad	480*	45	deJager, Kenneth	264	80	Gitsham, Greg W	75
11 Geo	orge, Jamie	458*	45	Holland, Mitchell W	259	81	Cairns, Stephen G	73
12 Dur	ngey, Donald L	457*	47	Fanayan, Fab	252	82	Solomon, Darren J	72
13 Prit	tchard, Chris	454*	47	Britton, Evan	238	83	Blackmore, Matt	70
14 Sm	nith, Peter	451	49	Millett, Benjamin W	230	83	Day, Allan J	68
15 Loc	ckyer, Chris	440*	50	Dawson, Stafford G	217	85	Purush, Srinivasan	63
16 Bro	own, Anthony E	433	51	McNab, Cameron R	216	86	Ansley-Rose, Matt	62
17 Dad	quino, Edward	426	52	Knight, Michael	210	87	Wilson, Paul	60
18 Wa	arren, Paul	418	53	O'Shea, Shaun	200	88	Wilson, Shaun	49
19 Cle	eary, Simon V	414	54	Patel, Harsh J	199	89	Shaik, Ershad	22
20 Far	nayan, Omid	412*	55	Taylor, Robert J	194	89	Sheppard, Damon J	22
21 Wit	ttensleger, Arden	405	56	Kelly, Craig	193	89	Thorpe, Stephen	22
22 Ma	rtin, Leigh	401*	56	Rupasinghe, Indilca	193	92	Hewitt, Damien P	20
23 Arc	caro, Daniel	396	56	Dart, Geoffrey	193	93	Sheppard, Gregory	15
24 We	elsh, Jos	391	59	Duffy, Max	192	94	Mead, Liam	14
25 Pai	ice, Laurence	390	60	Birch, Michael	190	95	Rao, Sudhir	8
26 D'S	Souza, Timothy	370*	61	Mitchell, Ben	178	96	Jayasinghe, Don D	7
27 Cha	apman, Blair	361*	62	Patel, Nikul	174*	97	Lockyer, Matt	6
28 Bro	ooks, Jack A	356*	63	Haines, Douglas	170	98	Maurer, Craig	4
29 Cha	appelle, Culver	352*	64	Warren, Mark A	169	99	Duncan, Stephen J	4
30 Wa	arren, Michael	343*	65	Dawson, Ken C	166	100	Berry, Tom	1
31 Duf	ffy, Jack	339	66	McKeig, Donald R	165	101	Gardiner, Cameron	0
32 Dur	ngey, Sheahan	338	67	Sykes, David	164	101	Dybing, Mark	0
	earing, Steven J	327*	68	Shah, Hiten	161	101	Chapman, Keith	0
	Kay, Wade	319	69	Groube, Anthony	146		-	
	omas, Jai P	311	70	Pringle, Paul X	144			

\*- Denotes a Player ineligible for this award due to winning another major award

Ralph Dungey Award: Will be awarded to the player who has not received another playing award and receives the highest points by a player as per the Ralph Dungey points system in that year during the regular season. The Ralph Dungey points system is calculated by adding the total wickets multiplied by ten (10), total number of runs scored, and the total fielding votes.

Season Batting and Fielding														
Player	М	Т	NO	HS	Runs	Bat Avg	50s	100s	Dks	4s	6s	Cat. /St.	R/O	Field Votes
Coverdale, Paul S	8.5	10	3	128*	541	77.29	3	2	1	59	4	5	1.5	83
Francis, Tristan	9	13	0	150	473	36.38	2	1	0	76	3	8	0	33
Martin, Leigh	13	15	2	87	437	33.62	3	0	0	49	2	4	0.5	47
Warren, Justin A	11	15	0	67	427	28.47	3	0	1	48	19	16	0.5	196
Wittensleger, Arden	13	14	0	120	395	28.21	1	1	1	46	7	6	0	31
Pritchard, Chris	13	14	0	84	390	27.86	3	0	1	47	0	17/1	1	116
Gilders, Michael	9.5	10	2	104	386	48.25	2	1	1	28	12	4	0	40
Dungey, Donald L	13	14	2	98	375	31.25	2	0	1	42	1	3	0.5	72
Warren, Paul	8.5	14	3	63	347	31.55	3	0	0	43	6	7	1	118
Daquino, Edward	14	15	0	53	337	22.47	2	0	2	44	1	3	0	39
Shearing, Steven J	9	11	2	93*	317	35.22	3	0	0	26	0	0	0	10
Fanayan, Omid	13	14	4	60	315	31.50	1	0	0	47	1	10	0	143
Paice, Laurence	11.5	15	2	84	314	24.15	2	0	3	38	0	12	0	65
Keenan, Brad	15.5	18	2	64*	313	19.56	1	0	3	35	6	8	2	144
Solanki, Mauneek	16	17	0	79	312	18.35	1	0	2	39	3	10	2	210
Welsh, Jos	13	14	2	67*	310	25.83	2	0	0	36	0	7	0	77
Paice, Steven	13	14	1	62	297	22.85	2	0	0	43	0	6	0	73
Thomas, Aidon	11	13	1	123*	295	24.58	0	1	2	23	0	3	0	34
Smith, Peter	8.5	9	2	141	292	41.71	1	1	0	37	6	4	0.5	39
George, Jamie	7	10	1	63	283	31.44	2	0	1	30	12	4	0.5	46
Chappelle, Culver	13	13	4	63*	282	31.33	1	0	0	18	0	20	2	70
Daye, Steven M	13	15	0	57	262	17.47	1	0	2	21	0	1	0.5	70
Brown, Anthony E	11	13	1	55*	260	21.67	2	0	0	18	1	2	0.0	95
Cleary, Simon V	15	14	2	71*	256	21.33	1	0	2	21	14	4	0	21
Birch, Michael	9	10	1	78	254	28.22	2	0	0	31	0	8	0	25
Gill, Nirmal	16	17	1	63	254	15.88	1	0	0	15	0	10	1	54
Arcaro, Daniel	9	10	1	70*	250	27.78	1	0	1	30	5	8	1	56
Duffy, Jack	13	14	3	33	233	21.18	0	0	3	19	0	8	1.5	106
Perrozzi, Serge	8	8	1	44	205	29.29	0	0	0	22	1	1	0.5	100
Daye, Brendan	13	13	2	65	203	18.27	1	0	0	20	0	10	2	40
Thomas, Jai P	8	9	2	101*	195	27.86	0	1	1	18	0	3	0	16
Fanayan, Fab	13	13	0	55	193	14.77	1	0	1	9	1	6	1.5	76
Sibson, Jarrad	11	12	0	47	192	15.92	0	0	2	9 19	0	4	0.5	109
Dawson, Stafford G	7	9	1	59	188	23.50	1	0	0	21	0	2	0.5	13
Holly, Brad	15	9 17	1	28	170	10.63	0	0	1	10	1	11	1.5	209
Dawson, Ken C	11	12	0	32	160	13.33	0	0	1	10	0	4	0	31
Holland, Mitchell W	9.5	11	4	45*	156	22.29	0	0	2	20	1	5	1	69
Warren, Mark A	9.5 3	6	4	45 78	155		1	0	 1	20	0	3	0	14
		11	2	64		25.83	2		2				0	64
McKay, Wade	10 3		2	100*	155	17.22 38.25		0		20 9	2 9	0		17
Knight, Michael		6 7	 1		153		0	1	0				0.5	17
Haines, Douglas	5.5			42	153	25.50	0	0	0	17	0	6	0	
Millett, Benjamin W	7.5	9	1	68	147	18.38	1	0	1	19	2	9	0.5	73
Harris, Lachlan	14	15	1	19*	147	10.50	0	0	3	16	0	7/1	0.5	52
Dungey, Sheahan	14	13	3	46	145	14.50	0	0	1	17	1	3	0	23
Patel, Harsh J	9	9	1	63*	144	18.00	1	0	0	12	0	4	0.5	40
deJager, Kenneth	14	12	5	30*	140	20.00	0	0	2	8	2	6	0	26
Dart, Geoffrey	10.5	12	1	41	137	12.45	0	0	1	9	0	5	0	56
McKeig, Donald R	11	14	1	35	136	10.46	0	0	2	13	0	4	0	29
Warren, Michael	6.5	10	7	22	131	43.67	0	0	0	14	0	3	1	24
Sykes, David	3.5	6	0	44	131	21.83	0	0	1	15	2	4	0.5	33
Brooks, Jack A	6	6	1	29	120	24.00	0	0	0	10	5	2	0	6

#### **Season Batting and Fielding**

Player	М	I	NO	HS	Runs	Bat Avg	50s	100s	Dks	4s	6s	Cat. /St.	R/O	Field Votes
Prescott, Chris	13	12	2	20*	109	10.90	0	0	1	12	1	2	0	16
Pringle, Paul X	6	6	1	42	101	20.20	0	0	0	12	0	5/3	0	43
Groube, Anthony	6.5	10	4	27	100	16.67	0	0	1	12	0	1	0.5	40
D'Souza, Timothy	12	13	5	22*	97	12.13	0	0	1	9	1	7	1.5	33
Duffy, Max	9	10	0	37	93	9.30	0	0	3	14	1	7	0	82
Mitchell, Ben	9	8	0	24	90	11.25	0	0	2	12	1	5	0	2
Britton, Evan	13	10	2	28	89	11.13	0	0	2	14	0	2	0	9
Thomas, Jaxon B	12	12	3	33	87	9.67	0	0	4	12	0	5	0	54
Chapman, Blair	9.5	11	3	19*	86	10.75	0	0	1	8	0	1	0	15
O'Shea, Shaun	5	5	1	43	85	21.25	0	0	0	10	0	2	0	5
Dymock, Colin B	1.5	3	0	68	84	28.00	1	0	1	11	0	0	0	5
Davies, Glenn M	5	6	0	24	79	13.17	0	0	0	10	0	2	0.5	36
Patel, Nikul	8	11	2	26	77	8.56	0	0	2	7	0	10/2	1.5	87
Halai, Lalji	10	6	1	22	73	14.60	0	0	1	5	3	3	2	31
McNab, Cameron R	11	10	4	36*	73	12.17	0	0	2	5	0	3	0.5	43
Ferguson, Braydon	3	3	1	67*	69	34.50	1	0	1	10	0	1	0	14
Cairns, Stephen G	10	12	2	21	68	6.80	0	0	3	5	0	0	0	5
Rupasinghe, Indilca	5.5	5	1	30*	66	16.50	0	0	1	8	0	3	0.5	27
Solomon, Darren J	11	10	5	20*	66	13.20	0	0	0	2	0	17/5	1	43
Strauss, Craig	2.5	4	0	28	63	15.75	0	0	1	6	0	1	0	8
Day, Allan J	2	3	0	31	62	20.67	0	0	1	5	0	0	0	6
Bradbury, Chris	4	5	0	25	58	11.60	0	0	0	10	0	5	0.5	65
Magill, Simon	8	5	0	31	54	10.80	0	0	0	6	0	4	0	62
Magill, Anthony J	1.5	2	1	47*	50	50.00	0	0	0	8	1	1	0	16
Swansson, Daniel	14	11	7	14*	49	12.25	0	0	1	6	0	0	0.5	45
Lockyer, Chris	14.5	11	3	22*	46	5.75	0	0	3	2	1	7	1	116
Nairn, Gregory J	14	8	3	29*	44	8.80	0	0	2	5	0	3	1	37
Eaton, Julian	6	5	1	20*	38	9.50	0	0	1	7	0	3	0	15
Gitsham, Greg W	3	3	0	18	35	11.67	0	0	0	5	0	0	0	0
Kelly, Craig	7	5	1	17	31	7.75	0	0	1	3	0	1	0	32
Sheppard, Damon J	1	2	1	12	22	22.00	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0
Wilson, Paul	0.5	1	0	20	20	20.00	0	0	0	2	0	1	0	10
Purush, Srinivasan	5	6	0	6	20	3.33	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	23
Shah, Hiten	11	6	2	17*	19	4.75	0	0	3	1	0	3	1	52
Hewitt, Damien P	0.5	1	0	16	16	16.00	0	0	0	2	0	0	0.5	4
Thorpe, Stephen	1	2	0	10	14	7.00	0	0	0	1	0	0	0.5	8
Blackmore, Matt	6	4	2	10	14	7.00	0	0	1	1	0	1	0.5	36
Lockyer, Jacob T	6	4	2	8*	14	7.00	0	0	1	1	0	1	0	27
Wilson, Shaun	4	4	2	6*	11	5.50	0	0	1	0	0	1	0	28
Jayasinghe, Don D	4	4	0	7	7	7.00	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0
Taylor, Robert J	12	9	5	5	7	1.75	0	0	2	1	0	2	0	17
Sheppard, Gregory		9 2	5 0	5 4			0	0	2	0	0	 1	0	17
	1	2 1	0	4	5 4	2.50 4.00	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0
Maurer, Craig		3		4										
Duncan, Stephen J	2		1		4	2.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rao, Sudhir	1	1	0	2	2	2.00	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	6
Mead, Liam	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	1	0	0	1	0	14
Dybing, Mark	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0
Ansley-Rose, Matt	4.5	2	2	1*	1	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	6	0.5	61
Berry, Tom	1	0	0	0	0	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
Shaik, Ershad	1	0	0			N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2
Gardiner, Cameron	0.5	0	0			N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Chapman, Keith	2.5	0	0			N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

# Season Bowling

Player	Overs	Balls	М	w	Runs	Bowl Avg.	Best Bwling	5wk inn.	7wk inn.	10wk mtch	Bowl S/R	Bowl Eco
Daye, Brendan	288	1728	82	52	671	12.90	8/11	6	1	0	33.2	2.33
Prescott, Chris	251.4	1510	55	49	691	14.10	9/52	4	2	0	30.8	2.75
Lockyer, Christopher	135	810	20	30	471	15.70	4/12	0	0	0	27.0	3.49
D'Souza, Timothy	154.1	925	31	28	448	16.00	5/58	1	0	0	33.0	2.91
Gill, Nirmal	117.5	710	16	27	332	12.30	4/15	0	0	0	26.3	2.81
Chapman, Blair	105.1	631	15	26	448	17.23	4/35	0	0	0	24.3	4.26
Nairn, Gregory J	162.5	977	62	25	401	16.04	4/47	0	0	0	39.1	2.46
Brooks, Jack A	116	696	34	23	267	11.61	6/12	1	0	0	30.3	2.30
deJager, Kenneth	114.1	685	35	20	267	13.35	4/14	0	0	0	34.3	2.34
Mitchell, Ben	74	732	29	20	301	15.05	7/78	1	1	0	36.6	2.47
Halai, Lalji	162.2	974	21	19	313	16.47	4/28	0	0	0	51.3	1.93
Britton, Evan	138	828	37	19	331	17.42	5/55	1	0	0	43.6	2.40
Cleary, Simon V	82.2	578	19	19	335	17.63	3/14	0	0	0	30.4	3.48
Warren, Michael	75.3	495	8	19	366	19.26	2/14	0	0	0	26.1	4.44
Swansson, Daniel	134.5	809	29	18	415	23.06	4/32	0	0	0	44.9	3.08
Taylor, Robert J	160.1	961	45	18	439	24.39	4/64	0	0	0	53.4	2.74
Gilders, Michael	93	558	25	17	304	17.88	5/36	1	0	0	32.8	3.27
Dungey, Sheahan	110	660	21	17	372	21.88	3/29	0	0	0	38.8	3.38
Thomas, Jaxon B	85.3	513	12	16	308	19.25	5/47	1	0	0	32.1	3.60
Holly, Brad	99	594	24	15	284	18.93	3/10	0	0	0	39.6	2.87
George, Jamie	52.4	358	4	15	286	19.07	3/27	0	0	0	23.9	4.79
Kelly, Craig	70	420	11	13	221	17.00	4/35	0	0	0	32.3	3.16
Smith, Peter	57	342	10	12	188	15.67	2/14	0	0	0	28.5	3.30
Brown, Anthony E	96.2	579	23	12	266	22.17	5/58	1	0	0	48.3	2.76
O'Shea, Shaun	57.3	345	14	11	175	15.91	5/70	1	0	0	31.4	3.04
McNab, Cameron R	42.1	253	2	10	147	14.70	3/26	0	0	0	25.3	3.49
Rupasinghe, Indilca	39	234	2	10	218	21.80	3/35	0	0	0	23.4	5.59
Thomas, Jai P	96.2	578	21	10	254	25.40	4/35	0	0	0	57.8	2.64
McKay, Wade	91	546	10	10	348	34.80	3/53	0	0	0	54.6	3.82
Arcaro, Daniel	62.5	377	10	9	166	18.44	3/28	0	0	0	41.9	2.64
Solanki, Mauneek	41.5	311	11	9	167	18.56	3/32	0	0	0	34.6	3.22
Shah, Hiten	119	714	42	9	256	28.44	3/45	0	0	0	79.3	2.15
Knight, Michael	30	122	3	8	128	16.00	3/31	0	0	0	15.3	6.30
Perrozzi, Serge	49.2	296	10	8	152	19.00	2/8	0	0	0	37.0	3.08
Harris, Lachlan	35.3	213	5	8	165	20.63	2/22	0	0	0	26.6	4.65
Warren, Justin A	39.4	238	5	7	204	29.14	2/14	0	0	0	34.0	5.14
Lockyer, Jacob T	22	132	1	6	167	27.83	4/35	0	0	0	22.0	7.59
Daquino, Edward	47.5	287	5	6	190	31.67	2/26	0	0	0	47.8	3.97
Holland, Mitchell W	23	138	1	5	101	20.20	2/20	0	0	0	27.6	4.39
Eaton, Julian	34.2	206	5	5	130	26.00	2/32	0	0	0	41.2	3.79
Keenan, Brad	34	200	3	5	178	35.60	2/02	0	0	0	40.8	5.24
Gitsham, Greg W	11	66	1	4	59	14.75	2/20	0	0	0	16.5	5.36
Fanayan, Fab	28	168	6	4	91	22.75	2/25	0	0	0	42.0	3.25
Wilson, Paul	6.3	39	0	4	24	8.00	3/24	0	0	0	13.0	3.69
Groube, Anthony	22	132	5	3	24 59	19.67	2/17	0	0	0	44.0	2.68
Magill, Anthony J	13	78	5 2	3	59 65		2/17	0	0	0	44.0 26.0	2.68
<u> </u>				3		21.67				0		
Patel, Harsh J	22	132	0		77	25.67	1/10	0	0		44.0	3.50
Duffy, Max	41	246	11	3	115	38.33	2/12	0	0	0	82.0	2.80
Coverdale, Paul S	46	276	7		136	45.33	2/27	0	0	0	92.0	2.96
Purush, Srinivasan	3	18	0	2	16	8.00	2/5	0	0	0	9.0	5.33

Player	Overs	Balls	М	w	Runs	Bowl Avg.	Best Bwling	5wk inn.	7wk inn.	10wk mtch	Bowl S/R	Bowl Eco
Ferguson, Braydon	6.3	39	0	2	32	16.00	2/9	0	0	0	19.5	4.92
Chappelle, Culver	6	36	1	2	32	16.00	2/25	0	0	0	18.0	5.33
Paice, Steven	16	96	2	2	39	19.50	2/25	0	0	0	48.0	2.44
Bradbury, Chris	12	72	1	2	39	19.50	1/19	0	0	0	36.0	3.25
Dawson, Stafford G	13	78	0	2	51	25.50	2/24	0	0	0	39.0	3.92
Magill, Simon	16	96	3	2	56	28.00	2/32	0	0	0	48.0	3.50
Shaik, Ershad	14	84	4	2	70	35.00	2/18	0	0	0	42.0	5.00
Strauss, Craig	22	132	2	2	94	47.00	1/12	0	0	0	66.0	4.27
Paice, Laurence	22	132	0	2	110	55.00	1/12	0	0	0	66.0	5.00
Blackmore, Matthew	34	204	2	2	161	80.50	1/22	0	0	0	102.0	4.74
Patel, Nikul	2	12	0	1	6	6.00	1/6	0	0	0	12.0	3.00
Millett, Benjamin W	3	18	0	1	8	8.00	1/8	0	0	0	18.0	2.67
Dungey, Donald L	1.4	10	0	1	14	14.00	1/14	0	0	0	10.0	8.40
Welsh, Jos	3.4	22	0	1	21	21.00	1/21	0	0	0	22.0	5.73
Warren, Paul	2.5	17	0	1	23	23.00	1/8	0	0	0	17.0	8.12
Martin, Leigh	13	78	1	1	56	56.00	1/20	0	0	0	78.0	4.31
Wilson, Shaun	31	186	3	1	97	97.00	1/29	0	0	0	186.0	3.13
Francis, Tristan	2	12	0	0	5	N/A	0/5	0	0	0	N/A	2.50
Jayasinghe, Don D	3	18	0	0	9	N/A	0/9	0	0	0	N/A	3.00
McKeig, Donald R	2	12	0	0	10	N/A	0/10	0	0	0	N/A	5.00
Dart, Geoffrey	4	24	1	0	10	N/A	0/3	0	0	0	N/A	2.50
Maurer, Craig	4.3	27	0	0	11	N/A	0/11	0	0	0	N/A	2.44
Sheppard, Gregory	2	12	0	0	12	N/A	0/12	0	0	0	N/A	6.00
Ansley-Rose, Matt	1	6	0	0	12	N/A	0/12	0	0	0	N/A	12.00
Dymock, Colin B	2	12	0	0	13	N/A	0/13	0	0	0	N/A	6.50
Day, Allan J	2	12	0	0	13	N/A	0/13	0	0	0	N/A	6.50
Warren, Mark A	2	12	0	0	16	N/A	0/16	0	0	0	N/A	8.00
Pringle, Paul X	2	12	0	0	17	N/A	0/17	0	0	0	N/A	8.50
Fanayan, Omid	2	12	0	0	20	N/A	0/20	0	0	0	N/A	10.00
Haines, Douglas	2	12	0	0	21	N/A	0/21	0	0	0	N/A	10.50
Gardiner, Cameron	4	24	0	0	21	N/A	0/21	0	0	0	N/A	5.25
Sykes, David	2	12	0	0	23	N/A	0/23	0	0	0	N/A	11.50
Hewitt, Damien P	4	24	0	0	24	N/A	0/24	0	0	0	N/A	6.00
Duncan, Stephen J	5.2	32	0	0	45	N/A	0/11	0	0	0	N/A	8.44
Sheppard, Damon J	8	48	0	0	59	N/A	0/27	0	0	0	N/A	7.38
Rao, Sudhir	10	60	1	0	63	N/A	0/29	0	0	0	N/A	6.30
Daye, Steven M	11	66	2	0	69	N/A	0/69	0	0	0	N/A	6.27

Career Batting	and F	ield	ing											
Player	М	Inn.	N/O	HS	Runs	Bat Avg	50s	100s	Dks	4s	6s	Ct	St	R/O
Dungey, Donald L	489.5	579	88	117	10105	20.58	39	3	61	818	69	190	0	30
Cairns, Stephen G	398.5	520	67	74	6049	13.35	14	0	67	397	8	130	0	5
Shearing, Steven J	174.5	190	33	108*	4496	28.64	28	2	19	384	11	61	0	2
Warren, Paul	180	217	19	96*	4169	21.06	23	0	30	450	68	227	23	13
Warren, Justin A	161.5	186	22	120*	4157	25.35	16	3	18	401	73	130	0	9.5
Sheppard, Gregory	148	179	9	154	4019	23.64	17	3	11	481	52	38	0	1.5
Magill, Simon	237	263	32	111	3766	16.30	14	2	23	335	3	113	0	4.5
Smith, Peter	130	154	13	141	3725	26.42	18	2	11	436	49	90	0	9
Chapman, Keith	199.5	268	25	95	3562	14.66	9	0	30	237	0	63	1	1.5
Magill, Anthony J	206.5	224	55	112	3552	21.02	12	1	22	346	99	103	0	26
George, Jamie	172	188	14	160	3540	20.34	14	1	15	406	54	81	0	12
Davies, Glenn M	223	221	43	70*	3035	17.05	10	0	24	251	7	269	20	15
Dawson, Ken C	142.5	156	10	99	2804	19.21	9	0	11	243	9	44	0	4
Welsh, Jos	89	108	12	95	2527	26.32	19	0	7	281	21	44	0	1.5
Paice, Steven	131	145	13	144	2368	17.94	9	1	18	254	6	89	0	8.5
Pritchard, Chris	100	116	4	105	2212	19.75	12	1	8	243	6	101	2	6
Fanayan, Omid	73	87	10	112	1978	25.69	8	2	9	228	8	44	1	2.5
Fanayan, Fab	88	92	7	117*	1923	22.62	8	2	14	222	21	43	0	5.5
Haines, Douglas	71.5	82	7	96	1864	24.85	10	0	6	190	8	56	5	2
Nairn, Gregory J	238	215	67	95	1794	12.12	1	0	26	172	9	88	1	15
Perrozzi, Serge	83	87	9	81	1754	22.51	10	0	5	162	7	33	0	1
Arcaro, Daniel	70	78	6	143	1756	24.39	8	2	11	216	, 27	40	0	2
Lockyer, Chris	126	130	16	73	1684	14.77	3	0	18	123	18	62	0	7
Paice, Laurence	64.5	80	6	110	1504	20.32	6	1	13	141	1	48	0	0
Coverdale, Paul S	33.5	35	6	128*	1408	48.55	8	4	1	129	16	40 17	0	4.5
Daye, Brendan	61	60	9	102*	1408	23.37	5	4	3	129	2	33	0	4.5
Daye, Brendan Dart, Geoffrey	148	145	29	69	1189	10.25	2	0	30	75	2	165	10	16
	31	33	29	140	1146	34.73		2	30	149	20	165	10	1.5
Wittensleger, Arden Daquino, Edward	74.5	33 73	16	76		19.70	4	0	6		20	10	0	0.5
					1123					133				
O'Shea, Shaun	110	102	23 9	53	1087	13.76	1	0	14	132	6	29	0	3
Dawson, Stafford G	88	85		59	1061	13.96	3	0	11	89	2	27	0	2
Knight, Michael	53	60	10	100*	1057	21.14	2	1	3	97	13	20	0	3
Cleary, Simon V	55	55	7	91	1007	20.98	4	0	3	103	36	13	0	2
Prescott, Chris	94	89	31	71*	928	16.00	1	0	7	80	6	26	0	8.5
Groube, Anthony	45	54	5	77	904	18.45	6	0	6	104	3	20	0	2.5
Hewitt, Damien P	54.5	66	7	71	902	15.29	2	0	8	101	6	18	0	2
deJager, Kenneth	92	81	19	40	835	13.47	0	0	10	61	5	42	0	4
Mitchell, Ben	57.5	50	7	77*	819	19.05	4	0	9	107	17	25	0	3.5
Warren, Michael	83.5	100	21	38	801	10.14	0	0	9	44	2	53	0	4
Brown, Anthony E	58	59	4	55*	770	14.00	2	0	7	47	6	19	0	3.5
Duffy, Jack	32.5	33	4	101	768	26.48	3	1	4	86	0	31	0	3.5
Martin, Leigh	25	29	5	87	738	30.75	4	0	0	85	6	13	0	1.5
Chapman, Blair	101	100	37	45	707	11.22	0	0	15	59	0	19	0	4
Keenan, Brad	39	41	10	64*	666	21.48	1	0	3	72	12	22	0	3
Thorpe, Stephen	31	36	2	72	625	18.38	3	0	1	54	1	19	0	2
McKeig, Donald R	36	42	2	66	617	15.43	1	0	5	54	4	17	0	0.5
D'Souza, Timothy	81	79	31	44	561	11.69	0	0	12	59	3	46	0	3.5
Dungey, Sheahan	83.5	63	19	46	508	11.55	0	0	10	45	2	10	0	0
Chappelle, Culver	24	25	4	63*	505	24.05	3	0	0	37	0	27	1	3
Sykes, David	28.5	34	4	64	489	16.30	1	0	8	59	5	28	6	2
Daye, Steven M	20	22	1	105*	480	22.86	2	1	4	39	2	4	0	0.5

#### BCC Yearbook 2009/10

Player	М	Inn.	N/O	HS	Runs	Bat Avg	50s	100s	Dks	4s	6s	Ct	St	R/O
Francis, Tristan	9	13	0	150	473	36.38	2	1	0	76	3	8	0	0
Dymock, Colin B	13.5	17	1	91*	458	28.63	4	0	2	43	2	7	0	0
Gill, Nirmal	36	36	4	63	430	13.84	1	0	2	28	2 1	25	0	3
Solomon, Darren J	42	38	16	34*	441	20.05	0	0	4	33	0	72	8	7.5
Harris, Lachlan	44.5	48	7	47*	432	10.54	0	0	8	43	1	37	4	4
Birch, Michael	44.5	18	3	47 84*	402	26.80	3	0	1	43 49	1	14	4	4
McKay, Wade	57	50	12	64	397	10.45	2	0	11	49	5	14	0	1.5
Gilders, Michael	9.5	10	2	104	386	48.25	2	1	1	28	12	4	0	0
Sibson, Jarrad	9.5 19	10	0	134	371	19.53	0	1	3	36	4	16	1	2
Solanki, Mauneek	19	19	0	79	312	18.35	1	0	2	39	4	10	0	2
Thomas, Aidon	10	13	1	123*	295	24.58	0	1	2	23	0	3	0	0
Strauss, Craig	21.5	32	4	34	295	10.04	0	0	2 8	23	4	13	0	0
McNab, Cameron R	46.5	45	16	41*	201	9.55	0	0	10	23	4	30	0	2
Patel, Harsh J	40.5	13	10	63*	234	19.50	2	0	0	23	0	6	0	0.5
Millett, Benjamin W	12	17	2	68	234	14.00	2 1	0	4	25 25	3	18	2	0.5
Warren, Mark A	9	17	2 1	78	210	18.27	1	0	4	23	0	7	2	0
Holly, Brad	9 25	24	2	28	201	9.09	0	0	2	12	1	13	0	1.5
Thomas, Jai P	25 8	24 9	2	20 101*	195	27.86	0	1	3 1	12	0	3	0	0
Holland, Mitchell W	10.5	9 12	4	45*	195	20.00	0	0	2	20	1	5	0	1
Duncan, Stephen J	13.5	12	4	43	143	10.21	0	0	2	14	0	5	0	0
Brooks, Jack A	6	6	4	43 29	143	24.00	0	0	0	14	5	5 2	0	0
		15	3				-	-	3			2	-	
Britton, Evan	19 40 5	15 34	3 17	28 14*	112	9.33	0	0	3 8	16	0	∠ 10	0	0
Swansson, Daniel	49.5				105	6.18	0	-		13	-		0 3	0
Pringle, Paul X	6	6	1	42	101	20.20	0	0	0	12	0	5 7		
Duffy, Max	9 12	10 12	0	37 33	93 87	9.30	0	0	3 4	14 12	1 0	5	0	0
Thomas, Jaxon B		12				9.67	-	0			-	5 16	0	0
Patel, Nikul	10 35	21	2	26 17*	86	7.17	0	0	3 5	8 2	0	3	3 0	1.5
Shah, Hiten		7	10		76 73	6.91		-						1.5
Halai, Lalji	11		2	22		14.60	0	0	1	5	3	3	0	
Ferguson, Braydon	3 10.5	3	1	67* 28*	69 67	34.50 13.40	1	0	2	10	0	1	0	0
Blackmore, Matt		9 5	4	20 30*			0	0	2 1	9 8	0	3 3	0	0 0.5
Rupasinghe, Indilca	5.5 2	3	0	30	66	16.50	0	0		0 5	0	0	0	
Day, Allan J	4	5	0	25	62	20.67	0	0	1 0	5 10	0	5	0	0 0.5
Bradbury, Chris	4 35	5 25	9	25 15*	58	11.60	0	0		6		3		
Taylor, Robert J Purush, Srinivasan		25 12			55	3.44			8		1	3 3	0	0
,	11.5		0	17 11*	54	4.50	0	0	1	5	0		0	0.5 1
Ansley-Rose, Matt Wilson, Paul	12.5 11.5	10 8	3	20	38 38	5.43 6.33	0	0	2	3 2	0	14 4	0	0.5
	6	0 5	2 1	20*			0	0	3 1	2 7	0	4	0	0.5
Eaton, Julian Gitsham, Greg W					38	9.50				5				
	3 4	3	0	18 20	35	11.67	0	0	0	5 1	0	0 1	0	0
Dybing, Mark		4	3	20 6	34	8.50		0		2	0	8	0	1
Rao, Sudhir	12.5				32	3.20	0		4					-
Kelly, Craig	7	5	1	17 12	31	7.75	0	0	1	3	0	1 2	0	0
Sheppard, Damon J	2.5	3	1	12 8*	22	11.00	0	0	1	3	0		0	0
Lockyer, Jacob T	8	8	4	8* 6*	19	4.75	0	0	3	1	0	1	0	0
Wilson, Shaun	4	4	2	6" 7	11 7	5.50	0	0	1	0 1	0	1 0	0	0
Jayasinghe, Don D	1	1	0			7.00	0	0	0		0	0		0
Maurer, Craig	1	1	0	4	4	4.00			0	1	0		0	0
Mead, Liam	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	1	0	0	1	0	0
Shaik, Ershad	1.5					N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Berry, Tom	1					N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Gardiner, Cameron	0.5					N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

# **Career Bowling**

Naim, Gregory J   2222   1122   613   8738   14.25   8113   27   4   4   2.36   36.3     Magill, Anthony J   15081   670   380   6814   17.93   80.3   13   2   1   2.71   33.7     George, Jamie   9168   389   305   4558   14.94   738   18   2   1   2.484   31.6     Prescott, Christopher   6388   283   198   2805   14.17   632   6   0   0   2.66   36.8     Dexaye, Thristopher   6388   283   198   2805   14.17   6/22   3   0   0   2.66   36.3     Shepard, Gregory   5041   134   152   168   273.5   4.63   0   0   3.16   33.1   34.35     Baryer, Brendan   5365   252   148   2181   17.7   64.64   0   0   2.88   35.3     Bernoz, Steeva J   40	Player	Balls	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Bowl Avg.	Best Bwling	5wk inn.	7wk inn.	10wk mtch	Bowl Eco	Bowl S/R
Magiii, Anthony J 15081 670 380 6814 17.93 8/35 13 2 1 2.71 39.7   George, Jamie 9168 389 311 4019 12.92 718 13 1 2 2.63 28.5   OShes, Shaun 9637 390 305 4558 41.494 77.88 18 2 0 2.66 38.8   Lockyer, Christopher 6388 283 198 2805 14.17 6122 6 0 0 3.22 36.4   Sheppard, Gregory 6064 139 188 2999 17.85 6/53 4 0 0 3.22 36.6 30.1   D'Souza, Timothy 5365 122 148 2181 14.17 181.1 122 1 0 2.44 36.3   D'are, Brendan 5365 252 148 2181 17.67 6/45 1 0 0 3.97 24.5   Shearing, Steven J 4065 131 115 212.9 1.11 0 0	Nairn Gregory I	22222	1122	613	8738							
George, Jamie   9168   389   311   4019   12.22   7/18   13   1   2   2.83   226     O'Shea, Shaun   9637   390   305   4558   14.94   7/38   18   2   1   2.84   31.6     Prescott, Christopher   6388   283   198   280.5   14.17   6/32   6   0   0   2.63   32.3     Chapman, Blair   7065   255   194   374   19.56   6/53   4   0   0   3.56   30.1     Daye, Brendan   5365   224   154   2525   16.40   5/12   5   0   0   2.74   36.3     Shearing, Steven J   4065   131   115   1201   17.57   6/45   1   0   0   2.89   35.3     Shearing, Steven J   4065   131   1521   17.57   6/45   1   0   0   2.33   35.3     Shearing, Steven J   4065										-		
CYShea, Shaun 9637 390 305 4558 14.94 7/38 18 2 1 2.46 368   Prescott, Christopher 6388 283 9747 16.29 9/52 13 2 0 2.66 368   Lockyer, Christopher 6388 283 98 205 14.17 6/32 6 0 0 2.63 32.3   Chapman, Blair 7065 255 194 3794 19.56 6/27 3 0 0 3.22 36.6   Shepard, Gregory 5521 224 154 2525 16.40 5/12 5 0 0 2.74 35.9   Daye, Brendan 5365 252 148 2101 17.98 6/20 4 0 0 3.97 2.45   Sherend, Michael 2814 72 115 1863 16.20 5/34 1 0 0 2.83 35.3   Galager, Kenneth 4660 194 113 1212 18.79 7/76 1 1<0												
Prescott, Chris   6467   341   230   3747   16.29   9/52   13   2   0   2.66   38.8     Lockyer, Christopher   6388   283   198   2805   14.17   6/32   6   0   0   3.22   36.4     Sheppard, Gregory   5054   139   168   2999   17.85   6/53   4   0   0   3.26   35.9     Daye, Brendan   5365   122   148   141.474   811   12   0   0   2.74   35.9     Daye, Brendan   5365   122   148   141.474   811   12   0   0   3.10   3.43     Warren, Michael   2814   72   115   1863   16.20   6/34   1   0   0   2.85   3.33     Baharing, Steven J   4065   131   115   2021   17.57   6/45   1   0   0   3.03   3.63     Mitchell, Ben   3070   118												
Lockyer, Christopher   6388   283   198   2805   14.17   6/32   6   0   0   2.63   32.3     Chapman, Blair   7065   255   194   3794   19.56   6/27   3   0   0   3.22   36.4     Dsouza, Timothy   5521   224   154   2525   16.40   5/12   5   0   0   2.74   36.3     Daye, Brendan   5365   252   14.8   2181   14.74   8/11   12   0   0   3.01   34.8     Waren, Michael   2814   72   115   1863   16.20   5/34   1   0   0   2.89   34.5     Shearing, Steven J   4065   11   11   0   0   2.89   34.5     Sitchager, Kenneth   4660   194   113   212.7   17.73   5   2   0   2.83   3.03     Mitchell, Beed   3070   118   314   15.4   7.152												
Chapman, Blair   7065   255   194   3794   19.56   6/27   3   0   0   3.22   36.4     Sheppard, Gregory   5054   139   168   2999   17.85   6/53   4   0   0   3.24   36.3     D'Souza, Timothy   5521   224   154   2525   16.40   5/12   5   0   0   2.74   35.9     D'aye, Brendan   5365   252   148   2181   14.74   8/11   12   1   0   0   3.07   24.5     Shearing, Steven J   4065   131   115   2021   17.57   6/45   1   0   0   2.98   35.3     deJager, Kenneth   4660   194   113   2123   18.79   7/26   1   1   0   2.30   35.3     deJager, Kenneth   3607   118   33   1437   15.45   7/33   1   0   0   3.00   3.00   3.00   3.00 <td></td>												
Sheppard, Gregory   5054   139   168   2999   17.85   6/53   4   0   0   3.56   30.1     D'Souza, Timothy   5521   224   154   2525   16.40   5/12   5   0   0   2.74   35.9     Daye, Brendan   5365   252   148   2181   1.74.8   8/11   12   1   0   0   3.10   34.8     Warren, Michael   2814   72   115   1021   17.57   6/45   1   0   0   2.98   35.3     deJager, Kenneth   4660   194   113   2123   18.79   7/26   1   1   0   2.73   41.2     Smith, Peter   3370   118   31437   15.45   7/33   5   0   0   3.03   35.8     Mitchell, Ben   3070   183   1414   15.20   4/13   0   0   0   3.03   35.8     Maroupagy, Sheaha   2651   75	· · ·											
D'Souza, Timothy   5521   224   154   255   16.40   5/12   5   0   0   2.74   35.9     Daye, Brendan   5365   252   148   2131   14.74   8/11   12   1   0   2.44   36.3     Perrozzi, Serge   4177   120   2157   17.58   6/20   4   0   0   3.01   34.8     Warren, Michael   2814   72   115   1863   16.20   5/34   1   0   0   3.97   24.5     Shearing, Steven J   4665   131   115   2021   17.57   6/45   1   0   0   2.83   3.33     Gelager, Kenneth   4660   194   113   212.8   1.47   15.45   7.73   1   0   0   3.00   3.73     Daquin, Edward   3221   104   90   1.63   1.287   1.41.4   0   0   3.03   3.86     Machti, Michael   2431												
Daye, Brendan   5365   252   148   2181   14.74   8/11   12   1   0   2.44   36.3     Perrozzi, Serge   4177   126   120   2157   17.98   6/20   4   0   3.10   34.8     Warren, Michael   2814   72   115   1863   16.20   5/34   1   0   0   3.97   24.5     Smith, Peter   3379   107   98   1630   16.63   4/46   0   0   2.89   35.3     Daguno, Edward   3221   104   90   1628   18.09   4/13   0   0   3.00   3.03   35.8     McKay, Wade   3627   120   83   1815   21.67   5/37   1   0   0   3.00   3.73     Cleary, Simon V   1915   75   64   979   15.30   4/13   0   0   3.03   38.6     Hewitt, Damien P   2793   104   62   1288 <td></td>												
Perrozzi, Serge   4177   126   120   2157   17.98   6/20   4   0   0   3.10   34.8     Warren, Michael   2814   72   115   1863   16.20   5/34   1   0   0   3.97   24.5     Shearing, Steven J   4065   131   115   2021   17.57   6/45   1   0   0   2.98   35.3     deJager, Kenneth   4660   194   113   2123   18.79   7/26   1   1   0   2.73   41.2     Smith, Peter   3370   116   93   1437   15.45   7/33   5   2   0   2.81   33.0     Daquine, Edward   3221   104   90   1624   21.46   5/25   1   0   0   3.07   29.9     Knight, Michael   2431   99   63   1229   19.51   4/29   0   0   3.03   37.3     Cleary, Simon V   1915   75<												
Warren, Michael   2814   72   115   1863   16.20   5/34   1   0   0   3.97   24.5     Shearing, Steven J   4066   131   115   2021   17.57   6/45   1   0   0   2.98   35.3     Gelager, Kenneth   4660   194   113   2213   18.79   7/26   1   1   0   2.73   34.12     Smith, Peter   3379   107   98   1630   16.63   4/46   0   0   0   2.89   34.5     Mitchell, Ben   3070   118   93   1437   15.45   7/33   5   2   0   2.84   30.0   3.03   35.8     McKay, Wade   3627   120   83   1815   21.87   5/37   1   0   0   3.03   3.67     Cleary, Simon V   1915   75   64   979   15.30   4/29   0   0   0   3.77   45.0     Wa										-		
Shearing, Steven J   4065   131   115   2021   17.57   6/45   1   0   0   2.98   35.3     deJager, Kenneth   4660   194   113   2123   18.79   7/26   1   1   0   2.73   41.2     Smith, Peter   3379   107   98   1630   16.63   4/46   0   0   0   2.81   33.0     Daquino, Edward   3221   104   90   1628   18.09   4/13   0   0   0   3.03   35.8     McKay, Wade   3627   120   83   1815   21.87   5/37   1   0   0   3.03   35.7     Cleary, Simon V   1915   75   64   979   15.30   4/13   0   0   0   0.3.03   3.67     Kinght, Michael   2431   99   63   1228   10.0   0   0   0.2.77   45.20     Warren, Justin A   2026   69   58	¥											
deJager, Kenneth 4660 194 113 2123 18.79 7/26 1 1 0 2.73 41.2   Smith, Peter 3379 107 98 1630 16.63 4/46 0 0 0 2.89 34.5   Mitchell, Ben 3070 118 93 1437 15.45 7/33 5 2 0 2.81 33.0   Daquino, Edward 3221 104 90 1628 18.09 4/13 0 0 3.00 43.7   Arnot-Dungey, Sheahan 2651 75 71 1524 21.46 5/25 1 0 0 3.03 38.6   Cleary, Simon V 1915 75 64 979 15.30 4/13 0 0 0 3.03 38.6   Hewitt, Damien P 2793 104 62 1288 20.77 5/32 1 0 0 3.03 34.93   Gill, Nirmal 1715 50 57 870 15.26 5/13 1 0 0 3.43 36												
Smith, Peter   3379   107   98   1630   16.63   4/46   0   0   0   2.89   34.5     Mitchell, Ben   3070   118   93   1437   15.45   7/33   5   2   0   2.81   33.0     Daquino, Edward   3221   104   90   1628   18.09   4/13   0   0   0   3.03   35.8     McKay, Wade   3627   120   83   1815   21.87   5/37   1   0   0   0   3.03   35.8     McKay, Wade   3627   120   83   1815   21.87   5/37   1   0   0   0   3.03   35.7     Cleary, Simon V   1915   75   64   97   15.30   4/13   0   0   0   3.03   3.77   29.9     Knight, Michael   2431   99   63   1229   19.5   5/32   1   0   0   3.03   38.6												
Mitchell, Ben   3070   118   93   1437   15.45   7/33   5   2   0   2.81   33.0     Daquino, Edward   3221   104   90   1628   18.09   4/13   0   0   0   3.03   35.8     McKay, Wade   3627   120   83   1815   21.87   5/37   1   0   0   3.00   43.7     Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan   2651   75   71   1524   21.46   5/25   1   0   0   3.07   29.9     Knight, Michael   2431   99   63   1229   19.51   4/28   0   0   0   3.03   38.6     Hewitt, Damien P   2793   104   62   1288   20.77   5/32   1   0   0   3.50   34.0     Warren, Justin A   2026   69   58   1181   20.36   6/428   0   0   3.43   36.6     Hewitt, Robert J   2593   133<												
Daquino, Edward   3221   104   90   1628   18.09   4/13   0   0   3.03   35.8     McKay, Wade   3627   120   83   1815   21.87   5/37   1   0   0   3.03   35.8     Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan   2651   75   71   1524   21.46   5/25   1   0   0   3.07   29.9     Knight, Michael   2431   99   63   1229   19.51   4/29   0   0   0   3.03   38.6     Hewitt, Damien P   2793   104   62   1288   20.77   5/32   1   0   0   3.03   38.6     Warren, Justin A   2026   69   58   1181   20.36   4/28   0   0   3.43   33.6     Gill, Nirmal   1715   50   57   70   1526   5/18   1   0   0   3.43   33.6     Swansson, Daniel   2140   62   57												
McKay, Wade   3627   120   83   1815   21.87   5/37   1   0   0   3.00   43.7     Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan   2651   75   71   1524   21.46   5/25   1   0   0   3.45   37.3     Cleary, Simon V   1915   75   64   979   15.30   4/13   0   0   0   3.03   3.86     Hewitt, Damien P   2793   104   62   1228   20.77   5/32   1   0   0   3.03   38.6     Hewitt, Damien P   2793   104   62   1288   20.77   5/32   1   0   0   3.03   38.6     Gill, Nirmal   1715   50   57   870   15.26   5/13   1   0   0   3.04   30.1     Taylor, Robert J   2593   133   57   1096   19.23   6/64   2   0   0   3.43   33.6     Swansson, Daniel   2140												
Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan26517571152421.465/251003.4537.3Cleary, Simon V1915756497915.304/130003.0729.9Knight, Michael24319963122919.514/290003.0338.6Hewitt, Damien P279310462128820.775/321002.7745.0Warren, Justin A20266958118120.364/280003.0430.1Taylor, Robert J259313357108619.055/181002.5145.5Chapman, Keith19164257109619.236/642003.4333.6Swansson, Daniel21406257122721.535/282003.2830.3Shah, Hiten24361444084421.104/21003.2830.3Shah, Hiten24361444084421.104/21002.7454.9Brown, Anthony E1777533280225.065/331003.3335.5Coverdale, Paul S1757533280225.065/331003.3434.9Brown, Anthony E1737533280225.65<	-											
Cleary, Simon V   1915   75   64   979   15.30   4/13   0   0   0   3.07   29.9     Knight, Michael   2431   99   63   1229   19.51   4/29   0   0   0   3.03   38.6     Hewitt, Damien P   2733   104   62   1228   20.77   5/32   1   0   0   2.77   45.0     Warren, Justin A   2026   69   58   1181   20.36   4/28   0   0   3.04   30.1     Taylor, Robert J   2593   133   57   1086   19.05   5/18   1   0   0   3.43   33.6     Swansson, Daniel   2140   62   57   1227   21.53   5/28   2   0   0   3.43   33.6     Swanson, Daniel   2140   62   57   1227   21.53   5/28   2   0   0   3.43   33.6     Dungey, Donald L   1277   142 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>-</td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td></td>									-	-		
Knight, Michael   2431   99   63   1229   19.51   4/29   0   0   0   3.03   38.6     Hewitt, Damien P   2793   104   62   1288   20.77   5/32   1   0   0   2.77   45.0     Warren, Justin A   2026   69   58   1181   20.36   4/28   0   0   0   3.04   30.1     Gill, Nimal   1715   50   57   1086   19.05   5/18   1   0   0   3.04   30.1     Taylor, Robert J   2593   133   57   1086   19.05   5/18   1   0   0   3.43   33.6     Swansson, Daniel   2140   62   57   1227   21.53   5/28   2   0   0   3.03   43.8     Dungey, Donald L   1272   11   42   696   6.57   4/11   0   0   3.03   43.0     Brown, Anthony E   1677   62												
Hewitt, Damien P   2793   104   62   1288   20.77   5/32   1   0   0   2.77   45.0     Warren, Justin A   2026   69   58   1181   20.36   4/28   0   0   0   3.50   34.9     Gill, Nirmal   1715   50   57   870   15.26   5/13   1   0   0   3.50   34.9     Gill, Nirmal   1715   50   57   870   15.26   5/13   1   0   0   3.43   33.6     Chapman, Keith   1916   42   57   1096   19.23   5/28   2   0   0   3.44   37.5     Arcaro, Daniel   2188   77   50   1130   22.60   5/21   2   0   0   3.43   3.6     Brawn, Anthony E   1677   62   39   847   21.72   5/58   1   0   0   3.35   5.5     Coverdale, Paul S   1757   5												
Warren, Justin A   2026   69   58   1181   20.36   4/28   0   0   0   3.50   34.9     Gill, Nirmal   1715   50   57   870   15.26   5/13   1   0   0   3.04   30.1     Taylor, Robert J   2593   133   57   1086   19.05   5/18   1   0   0   2.51   45.5     Chapman, Keith   1916   42   57   1096   19.23   6/64   2   0   0   3.43   33.6     Swansson, Daniel   2140   62   57   1227   21.53   5/28   2   0   0   3.43   33.6     Swansson, Daniel   2188   77   50   1130   22.60   5/21   2   0   0   3.28   30.3     Shan, Hiten   2436   144   40   844   21.10   4/21   0   0   3.33   3.5     Dymock, Colin B   11573   33   <	<b>U</b>											
Gill, Nirmal   1715   50   57   870   15.26   5/13   1   0   0   3.04   30.1     Taylor, Robert J   2593   133   57   1086   19.05   5/18   1   0   0   2.51   45.5     Chapman, Keith   1916   42   57   1096   19.23   6/64   2   0   0   3.43   33.6     Swansson, Daniel   2140   62   57   1227   21.53   5/28   2   0   0   3.44   37.5     Arcaro, Daniel   2188   77   50   1130   22.60   5/21   2   0   0   3.43   30.3     Shah, Hiten   2436   144   40   844   21.10   4/21   0   0   3.03   43.0     Dymock, Colin B   1135   33   32   633   19.78   6/43   2   0   0   3.35   55     Coverdale, Paul S   1757   53   3												
Taylor, Robert J259313357108619.055/181002.5145.5Chapman, Keith19164257109619.236/642003.4333.6Swansson, Daniel21406257122721.535/282003.4437.5Arcaro, Daniel21887750113022.605/212003.4437.5Arcaro, Daniel1272114269616.574/110003.2830.3Shah, Hiten24361444084421.104/210002.0860.9Brown, Anthony E1677623984721.725/581003.3335.5Coverdale, Paul S11757533280225.065/431002.7454.9Magill, Simon1329303173423.685/281003.3142.9Strauss, Craig10361130101733.903/160002.6742.4Broks, Jack A696342326711.616/121002.3030.3Holly, Brad792292339517.173/100002.3234.4Duncan, Stephen J50832144321.10 <td></td>												
Chapman, Keith19164257109619.236/642003.4333.6Swansson, Daniel21406257122721.535/282003.4437.5Arcaro, Daniel21887750113022.605/212003.1043.8Dungey, Donald L1272114269616.574/110003.2830.3Shah, Hiten24361444084421.104/210002.0860.9Brown, Anthony E1677623984721.725/581003.0343.0Dymock, Colin B1135333263319.786/432003.3535.5Coverdale, Paul S1757533280225.065/431003.3142.9Strauss, Craig10361130101733.903/160005.8934.5Britton, Evan1230462954818.905/551002.0330.3Holly, Brad792292339517.173/100002.9934.4Duncan, Stephen J50832144321.104/280002.7231.5Halai, Lalji1004211933117.42												
Swansson, Daniel   2140   62   57   1227   21.53   5/28   2   0   0   3.44   37.5     Arcaro, Daniel   2188   77   50   1130   22.60   5/21   2   0   0   3.10   43.8     Dungey, Donald L   1272   11   42   696   16.57   4/11   0   0   0   3.28   30.3     Shah, Hiten   2436   144   40   844   21.10   4/21   0   0   3.28   30.3     Brown, Anthony E   1677   62   39   847   21.72   5/58   1   0   0   3.33   35.5     Coverdale, Paul S   1757   53   32   802   25.06   5/43   1   0   0   3.31   42.9     Magill, Simon   1329   30   31   734   23.68   5/28   1   0   0   2.74   54.9     Magill, Simon   1329   46   2												
Arcaro, Daniel21887750113022.605/212003.1043.8Dungey, Donald L1272114269616.574/110003.2830.3Shah, Hiten24361444084421.104/210002.0860.9Brown, Anthony E1677623984721.725/581003.0343.0Dymock, Colin B1135333263319.786/432003.3535.5Coverdale, Paul S1757533280225.065/431002.7454.9Magill, Simon1329303173423.685/281003.3142.9Strauss, Craig10361130101733.903/160005.8934.5Britton, Evan1230462954818.905/551002.6742.4Brooks, Jack A696342326711.616/121002.3030.3Holly, Brad792292339517.173/100002.7231.5Halai, Lalji1004211933117.424/280001.9852.8Dwason, Ken C560111836020.023/95<	1 · · ·											
Dungey, Donald L1272114269616.574/110003.2830.3Shah, Hiten24361444084421.104/210002.0860.9Brown, Anthony E1677623984721.725/581003.0343.0Dymock, Colin B1135333263319.786/432003.3535.5Coverdale, Paul S1757533280225.065/431002.7454.9Magill, Simon1329303173423.685/281003.3142.9Strauss, Craig10361130101733.903/160005.8934.5Britton, Evan1230462954818.905/551002.6742.4Keenan, Brad1103252672527.883/190003.9442.4Brooks, Jack A696342326711.616/121002.3030.3Holly, Brad792292339517.173/100005.2324.2McKeig, Donald R630262028614.303/160002.7231.5Halai, Lalji1004211933117.424/28<												
Shah, Hiten   2436   144   40   844   21.10   4/21   0   0   2.08   60.9     Brown, Anthony E   1677   62   39   847   21.72   5/58   1   0   0   3.03   43.0     Dymock, Colin B   1135   33   32   633   19.78   6/43   2   0   0   3.35   35.5     Coverdale, Paul S   1757   53   32   802   25.06   5/43   1   0   0   2.74   54.9     Magill, Simon   1329   30   31   734   23.68   5/28   1   0   0   3.31   42.9     Strauss, Craig   1036   11   30   1017   33.90   3/16   0   0   2.67   42.4     Keenan, Brad   1103   25   26   725   27.88   3/19   0   0   2.30   30.3     Holly, Brad   792   29   23   395   17.17 </td <td></td>												
Brown, Anthony E1677623984721.725/581003.0343.0Dymock, Colin B1135333263319.786/432003.3535.5Coverdale, Paul S1757533280225.065/431002.7454.9Magill, Simon1329303173423.685/281003.3142.9Strauss, Craig10361130101733.903/160005.8934.5Britton, Evan1230462954818.905/551002.6742.4Keenan, Brad1103252672527.883/190003.9442.4Brooks, Jack A696342326711.616/121002.3030.3Holly, Brad792292339517.173/100002.7231.5Halai, Lalji1004211933117.424/280002.7231.5Halai, Lalji1004211933117.424/280003.8631.1McNab, Cameron R47441836420.223/260003.2732.8Groube, Anthony750131752330.763/35 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td></td>										0		
Dymock, Colin B1135333263319.786/432003.3535.5Coverdale, Paul S1757533280225.065/431002.7454.9Magill, Simon1329303173423.685/281003.3142.9Strauss, Craig10361130101733.903/160005.8934.5Britton, Evan1230462954818.905/551002.6742.4Keenan, Brad1103252672527.883/190003.9442.4Brooks, Jack A696342326711.616/121002.9934.4Duncan, Stephen J50832144321.104/320002.7231.5Halai, Lalji1004211933117.424/280001.9852.8Dawson, Ken C560111836420.223/260003.2732.8Groube, Anthony750131752330.763/350004.1844.1Thomas, Jaxon B513121630819.255/471006.3227.3Welsh, Jos425101430121.502/5 <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td></td><td></td></t<>								0	0	0		
Coverdale, Paul S1757533280225.065/431002.7454.9Magill, Simon1329303173423.685/281003.3142.9Strauss, Craig10361130101733.903/160005.8934.5Britton, Evan1230462954818.905/551002.6742.4Keenan, Brad1103252672527.883/190003.9442.4Brooks, Jack A696342326711.616/121002.9934.4Brooks, Jack A696342326711.616/121002.9934.4Duncan, Stephen J50832144321.104/320002.7231.5Halai, Lalji1004211933117.424/280002.7231.5Dawson, Ken C560111836020.003/90003.2732.8Groube, Anthony750131752330.763/350004.6126.3Griders, Michael558251730417.885/361003.2732.8Groube, Anthony750131752330.763/35 <td></td> <td>1677</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>847</td> <td>21.72</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>0</td> <td>3.03</td> <td></td>		1677			847	21.72				0	3.03	
Magill, Simon1329303173423.685/281003.3142.9Strauss, Craig10361130101733.903/160005.8934.5Britton, Evan1230462954818.905/551002.6742.4Keenan, Brad1103252672527.883/190003.9442.4Brooks, Jack A696342326711.616/121002.3030.3Holly, Brad792292339517.173/100002.9934.4Duncan, Stephen J50832144321.104/320002.7231.5Halai, Lalji1004211933117.424/280001.9852.8Dawson, Ken C560111836020.003/90003.2732.8Groube, Anthony750131752330.763/350003.2732.8Groube, Anthony750131752330.763/350004.1844.1Thomas, Jaxon B513121630819.255/471003.6032.1Rao, Sudhir40921543128.733/190	-	1135	33	32	633	19.78	6/43	2	0	0	3.35	35.5
Strauss, Craig10361130101733.903/160005.8934.5Britton, Evan1230462954818.905/551002.6742.4Keenan, Brad1103252672527.883/190003.9442.4Brooks, Jack A696342326711.616/121002.3030.3Holly, Brad792292339517.173/100002.9934.4Duncan, Stephen J50832144321.104/320005.2324.2McKeig, Donald R630262028614.303/160002.7231.5Halai, Lalji1004211933117.424/280001.9852.8Dawson, Ken C560111836020.003/90003.2732.8Groube, Anthony750131752330.763/350004.1844.1Thomas, Jaxon B513121630819.255/471003.6032.1Rao, Sudhir40921543128.733/190006.3227.3Welsh, Jos425101430121.502/50	Coverdale, Paul S	1757	53	32	802	25.06	5/43	1	0	0	2.74	54.9
Britton, Evan1230462954818.905/551002.6742.4Keenan, Brad1103252672527.883/190003.9442.4Brooks, Jack A696342326711.616/121002.3030.3Holly, Brad792292339517.173/100002.9934.4Duncan, Stephen J50832144321.104/320005.2324.2McKeig, Donald R630262028614.303/160002.7231.5Halai, Lalji1004211933117.424/280001.9852.8Dawson, Ken C560111836020.003/90003.2732.8Gilders, Michael558251730417.885/361003.2732.8Groube, Anthony750131752330.763/350004.1844.1Thomas, Jaxon B513121630819.255/471003.6032.1Rao, Sudhir40921543128.733/190006.3227.3Welsh, Jos425101430121.502/50	Magill, Simon	1329	30	31	734	23.68	5/28	1	0	0	3.31	42.9
Keenan, Brad1103252672527.883/1900003.9442.4Brooks, Jack A696342326711.616/121002.3030.3Holly, Brad792292339517.173/100002.9934.4Duncan, Stephen J50832144321.104/320005.2324.2McKeig, Donald R630262028614.303/160002.7231.5Halai, Lalji1004211933117.424/280001.9852.8Dawson, Ken C560111836020.003/90003.2732.8Gilders, Michael558251730417.885/361003.2732.8Groube, Anthony750131752330.763/350004.1844.1Thomas, Jaxon B513121630819.255/471003.6032.1Rao, Sudhir40921543128.733/190004.2530.4	Strauss, Craig	1036	11	30	1017	33.90	3/16	0	0	0	5.89	34.5
Brooks, Jack A696342326711.616/121002.3030.3Holly, Brad792292339517.173/100002.9934.4Duncan, Stephen J50832144321.104/320005.2324.2McKeig, Donald R630262028614.303/160002.7231.5Halai, Lalji1004211933117.424/280001.9852.8Dawson, Ken C560111836020.003/90003.8631.1McNab, Cameron R47441836420.223/260003.2732.8Groube, Anthony750131752330.763/350004.1844.1Thomas, Jaxon B513121630819.255/471003.6032.1Rao, Sudhir40921543128.733/190004.2530.4	Britton, Evan	1230	46	29	548	18.90	5/55	1	0	0	2.67	42.4
Holly, Brad792292339517.173/100002.9934.4Duncan, Stephen J50832144321.104/320005.2324.2McKeig, Donald R630262028614.303/160002.7231.5Halai, Lalji1004211933117.424/280001.9852.8Dawson, Ken C560111836020.003/90003.8631.1McNab, Cameron R47441836420.223/260003.2732.8Gilders, Michael558251730417.885/361003.6032.1Thomas, Jaxon B513121630819.255/471003.6032.1Rao, Sudhir40921543128.733/190004.2530.4	Keenan, Brad	1103	25	26	725	27.88	3/19	0	0	0	3.94	42.4
Duncan, Stephen J50832144321.104/320005.2324.2McKeig, Donald R630262028614.303/160002.7231.5Halai, Lalji1004211933117.424/280001.9852.8Dawson, Ken C560111836020.003/90003.8631.1McNab, Cameron R47441836420.223/260004.6126.3Gilders, Michael558251730417.885/361003.2732.8Groube, Anthony750131752330.763/350004.1844.1Thomas, Jaxon B513121630819.255/471003.6032.1Rao, Sudhir40921543128.733/190004.2530.4	Brooks, Jack A	696	34	23	267	11.61	6/12	1	0	0	2.30	30.3
McKeig, Donald R630262028614.303/160002.7231.5Halai, Lalji1004211933117.424/280001.9852.8Dawson, Ken C560111836020.003/90003.8631.1McNab, Cameron R47441836420.223/260004.6126.3Gilders, Michael558251730417.885/361003.2732.8Groube, Anthony750131752330.763/350004.1844.1Thomas, Jaxon B513121630819.255/471003.6032.1Rao, Sudhir40921543128.733/190004.2530.4	Holly, Brad	792	29	23	395	17.17	3/10	0	0	0	2.99	34.4
Halai, Lalji1004211933117.424/280001.9852.8Dawson, Ken C560111836020.003/90003.8631.1McNab, Cameron R47441836420.223/260004.6126.3Gilders, Michael558251730417.885/361003.2732.8Groube, Anthony750131752330.763/350004.1844.1Thomas, Jaxon B513121630819.255/471003.6032.1Rao, Sudhir40921543128.733/190004.2530.4	Duncan, Stephen J	508	3	21	443	21.10	4/32	0	0	0	5.23	24.2
Dawson, Ken C560111836020.003/900003.8631.1McNab, Cameron R47441836420.223/260004.6126.3Gilders, Michael558251730417.885/361003.2732.8Groube, Anthony750131752330.763/350004.1844.1Thomas, Jaxon B513121630819.255/471003.6032.1Rao, Sudhir40921543128.733/190006.3227.3Welsh, Jos425101430121.502/50004.2530.4	McKeig, Donald R	630	26	20	286	14.30	3/16	0	0	0	2.72	31.5
McNab, Cameron R47441836420.223/260004.6126.3Gilders, Michael558251730417.885/361003.2732.8Groube, Anthony750131752330.763/350004.1844.1Thomas, Jaxon B513121630819.255/471003.6032.1Rao, Sudhir40921543128.733/190006.3227.3Welsh, Jos425101430121.502/50004.2530.4	Halai, Lalji	1004	21	19	331	17.42	4/28	0	0	0	1.98	52.8
Gilders, Michael558251730417.885/361003.2732.8Groube, Anthony750131752330.763/350004.1844.1Thomas, Jaxon B513121630819.255/471003.6032.1Rao, Sudhir40921543128.733/190006.3227.3Welsh, Jos425101430121.502/50004.2530.4	Dawson, Ken C	560	11	18	360	20.00	3/9	0	0	0	3.86	31.1
Groube, Anthony750131752330.763/350004.1844.1Thomas, Jaxon B513121630819.255/471003.6032.1Rao, Sudhir40921543128.733/190006.3227.3Welsh, Jos425101430121.502/50004.2530.4	McNab, Cameron R	474	4	18	364	20.22	3/26	0	0	0	4.61	26.3
Thomas, Jaxon B513121630819.255/471003.6032.1Rao, Sudhir40921543128.733/190006.3227.3Welsh, Jos425101430121.502/50004.2530.4	Gilders, Michael	558	25	17	304	17.88	5/36	1	0	0	3.27	32.8
Thomas, Jaxon B513121630819.255/471003.6032.1Rao, Sudhir40921543128.733/190006.3227.3Welsh, Jos425101430121.502/50004.2530.4	Groube, Anthony	750	13	17	523	30.76	3/35	0	0	0	4.18	44.1
Rao, Sudhir   409   2   15   431   28.73   3/19   0   0   0   6.32   27.3     Welsh, Jos   425   10   14   301   21.50   2/5   0   0   0   4.25   30.4					308			1	0	0	3.60	32.1
Welsh, Jos   425   10   14   301   21.50   2/5   0   0   0   4.25   30.4												
	Kelly, Craig	420	11	13	221	17.00	4/35	0	0	0	3.16	32.3

Player	Balls	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Bowl Avg.	Best Bwling	5wk inn.	7wk inn.	10wk mtch	Bowl Eco	Bowl S/R
Harris, Lachlan	375	7	13	342	26.31	3/32	0	0	0	5.47	28.8
Paice, Steven	586	15	13	354	27.23	2/12	0	0	0	3.62	45.1
Daye, Steven M	312	7	11	184	16.73	4/28	0	0	0	3.54	28.4
Dawson, Stafford G	612	7	11	433	39.36	2/24	0	0	0	4.25	55.6
Wilson, Paul	423	19	10	184	18.40	3/24	0	0	0	2.61	42.3
Fanayan, Fab	354	12	10	200	20.00	2/8	0	0	0	3.39	35.4
Rupasinghe, Indilca G	234	2	10	218	21.80	3/35	0	0	0	5.59	23.4
Thomas, Jai P	578	21	10	254	25.40	4/35	0	0	0	2.64	57.8
Davies, Glenn M	438	9	10	339	33.90	2/8	0	0	0	4.64	43.8
Patel, Harsh J	254	7	9	120	13.33	4/32	0	0	0	2.83	28.2
Solanki, Mauneek	311	11	9	167	18.56	3/32	0	0	0	3.22	34.6
Pritchard, Christopher P	354	8	9	245	27.22	4/30	0	0	0	4.15	39.3
Blackmore, Matthew R	369	4	9	314	34.89	4/23	0	0	0	5.11	41.0
Chappelle, Culver	210	4	7	191	27.29	3/48	0	0	0	5.46	30.0
Fanayan, Omid	204	8	6	117	19.50	2/44	0	0	0	3.44	34.0
Lockyer, Jacob T	144	1	6	176	29.33	4/35	0	0	0	7.33	24.0
Dart, Geoffrey	246	6	6	197	32.83	1/0	0	0	0	4.80	41.0
Eaton, Julian	206	5	5	130	26.00	2/32	0	0	0	3.79	41.2
Holland, Mitchell W	162	1	5	131	26.20	2/22	0	0	0	4.85	32.4
Gitsham, Greg W	66	1	4	59	14.75	2/25	0	0	0	5.36	16.5
Cairns, Stephen G	103	3	4	68	17.00	2/20	0	0	0	3.96	25.8
Martin, Leigh	148	4	4	91	22.75	2/22	0	0	0	3.69	37.0
Paice, Laurence	252	3	4	193	48.25	1/5	0	0	0	4.60	63.0
Purush, Srinivasan	48	0	3	57	19.00	2/5	0	0	0	7.13	16.0
Shaik, Ershad	114	4	3	107	35.67	2/18	0	0	0	5.63	38.0
Duffy, Max	246	11	3	115	38.33	2/10	0	0	0	2.80	82.0
Sibson, Jarrad	30	0	2	21	10.50	2/12	0	0	0	4.20	15.0
Ferguson, Braydon	39	0	2	32	16.00	2/21	0	0	0	4.92	19.5
Bradbury, Chris	72	1	2	39	19.50	1/19	0	0	0	3.25	36.0
Dybing, Mark	90	0	2	72	36.00	2/26	0	0	0	4.80	45.0
Patel, Nikul	24	0	1	16	16.00	1/6	0	0	0	4.00	24.0
Wittensleger, Arden	30	0	1	17	17.00	1/16	0	0	0	3.40	30.0
Millett, Benjamin W	24	0	1	17	17.00	1/8	0	0	0	4.25	24.0
Birch, Michael	24	0	1	21	21.00	1/21	0	0	0	5.25	24.0
Ansley-Rose, Matthew	24	0	1	43	43.00	1/21	0	0	0	10.75	24.0
Sheppard, Damon J	96	0	1	94	94.00	1/26	0	0	0	5.88	96.0
Wilson, Shaun	186	3	1	97	97.00	1/20	0	0	0	3.13	186.0
Thorpe, Stephen	126	0	1	97 98	98.00	1/29	0	0	0	4.67	126.0
Warren, Paul	90	0	1	102	102.00	1/20	0	0	0	6.80	90.0
	102	0	0	73	N/A	0/3	0	0	0	4.29	90.0 N/A
Haines, Douglas											
Sykes, David	42	1	0	47	N/A	0/4	0	0	0	6.71	N/A
Maurer, Craig	27	0	0	11	N/A	0/11	0	0	0	2.44	N/A
Gardiner, Cameron	24	0	0	21	N/A	0/21	0	0	0	5.25	N/A
Jayasinghe, Don D	18	0	0	9	N/A	0/9	0	0	0	3.00	N/A
Francis, Tristan	12	0	0	5	N/A	0/5	0	0	0	2.50	N/A
Warren, Mark A	12	0	0	16	N/A	0/16	0	0	0	8.00	N/A
Pringle, Paul X	12	0	0	17	N/A	0/17	0	0	0	8.50	N/A
Day, Allan J	12	0	0	13	N/A	0/13	0	0	0	6.50	N/A

## **Twenty20 Career Batting and Fielding**

Player	м	I	N/O	HS	Runs	Bat Avg	50s	Dks	4s	6s	Cat	St	RO	BF	SR <sup>#</sup>
Coverdale, Paul S	9	9	3	83*	238	39.67	1	1	10	5	1	0	1	174	137
Fanayan, Fab	11	9	2	73*	216	30.86	1	0	26	1	4	0	0	144	99
Fanayan, Omid	12	12	4	33	155	19.38	0	1	17	1	5	0	3.5	159	92
Paice, Laurence	10	8	0	49	141	17.63	0	2	15	0	0	0	1	155	91
Francis, Tristan	4	4	1	54*	106	35.33	1	0	17	2	1	0	0	94	113
Prescott, Chris	13	7	2	22	91	18.20	0	0	3	0	5	0	4.5	50	102
Wittensleger, Arden	7	7	0	20	70	10.00	0	2	7	1	0	0	0	54	122
Knight, Michael	2	2	0	49	67	33.50	0	0	8	0	1	0	0.5	60	112
Duffy, Jack	7	4	1	28	51	17.00	0	1	2	0	5	1	1	43	119
Solomon, Darren J	6	6	4	39*	46	23.00	0	2	0	0	0	0	1	77	60
Brooks, Jack A	3	2	0	35	43	21.50	0	0	4	1	0	0	1.5	35	123
Daye, Brendan	10	5	2	19*	29	9.67	0	1	1	0	2	0	2.5	30	67
Martin, Leigh	6	3	1	19	22	11.00	0	1	0	0	3	0	0	4	75
Sibson, Jarrad	5	4	0	10	21	5.25	0	1	2	0	2	0	1.5	32	31
Britton, Evan	4	3	2	12*	18	18.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1	100
Paice, Steven	3	1	1	12*	12	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	12	100
Gill, Nirmal	2	1	1	11*	11	N/A	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	0	N/A
Warrick, Scott	4	2	1	11	11	11.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.5	11	100
Thomas, Aidon	2	2	0	6	9	4.50	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	4	75
Welsh, Jos	2	2	0	6	9	4.50	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	22	41
Magill, Simon	1	1	1	8*	8	N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	9	89
Shah, Hiten	12	2	0	7	8	4.00	0	0	0	0	2	0	1	8	88
Arcaro, Danny	1	1	0	5	5	5.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	N/A
Wilson, Paul	5	2	1	3*	3	3.00	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	7	43
Kinsella, David	2	2	0	3	3	1.50	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	18	17
Mitchell, Ben	5	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	1	0	0	1	0	0.5	2	0
D'Souza, Timothy	1	0				N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	N/A
Holly, Brad	1	0				N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	N/A
Keenan, Brad	1	0				N/A	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	N/A
Lockyer, Christopher	1	0				N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	N/A
Patel, Nikul	1	0				N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	N/A
Thomas, Jai P	1	0				N/A	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	N/A

<sup>#</sup> - Strike Rate (SR) calculated only on games where balls faced have been recorded. Excludes Runs scored against Applecross and Esperance in 2009/10 Season.

Player	Overs	Balls	Maiden	Wickets	Runs	Bowl Avg.	Best Bowling	5wk inn.	Bowl S/R	Bowl Eco
Daye, Brendan	39	234	2	14	195	13.93	3/15	0	16.71	5.00
Shah, Hiten	47	282	5	13	244	18.77	3/7	0	21.69	5.19
Prescott, Chris	38.1	229	2	12	217	18.08	3/25	0	19.08	5.69
Coverdale, Paul S	26	156	0	9	133	14.78	3/28	0	17.33	5.12
Britton, Evan	11	66	0	6	76	12.67	3/21	0	11.00	6.91
Fanayan, Omid	11	66	0	5	74	14.80	2/10	0	13.20	6.73
Fanayan, Fab	12	72	0	5	84	16.80	3/11	0	14.40	7.00
Gill, Nirmal	6	36	1	4	28	7.00	3/9	0	9.00	4.67
Knight, Michael	7	42	0	4	39	9.75	2/18	0	10.50	5.57
Wilson, Paul	16	96	1	4	87	21.75	2/19	0	24.00	5.44
Brooks, Jack A	11	66	0	3	34	11.33	2/7	0	22.00	3.09
Thomas, Aidon	2.1	13	0	2	10	5.00	1/0	0	6.50	4.62
Magill, Simon	2	12	0	2	11	5.50	2/11	0	6.00	5.50
Lockyer, Christopher	2	12	0	2	14	7.00	2/14	0	6.00	7.00
D'Souza, Timothy	3	18	0	2	20	10.00	2/20	0	9.00	6.67
Holly, Brad	4	24	0	2	24	12.00	2/24	0	12.00	6.00
Warrick, Scott	6	36	0	2	30	15.00	1/6	0	18.00	5.00
Thomas, Jai P	4	24	0	1	11	11.00	1/11	0	24.00	2.75
Patel, Nikul	4	24	0	1	21	21.00	1/21	0	24.00	5.25
Mitchell, Ben	13	78	0	1	86	86.00	1/32	0	78.00	6.62
Keenan, Brad	2	12	0	0	12	N/A	0/12	0	N/A	6.00
Martin, Leigh	3	18	0	0	22	N/A	0/9	0	N/A	7.33

## **Twenty20 Career Bowling**

Twenty20 statistics have been kept totally separate. These results do not include any invitational or club game results and have only been maintained since the 2008/09 season.

## Additional Authors Note

Trophies are awarded as per the Club's constitution with all grade and club performance awards based upon non-finals games. The constitution was altered last year with changes in the rules for qualification being made which have been reflected in this year's award.

Finally, all statistics for 2009/10 in this Yearbook have been obtained from MyCricket, as at 31 March 2010. Any omissions/errors will hopefully be rectified when scorebooks have been received and the Club's statistics database has been updated.

More statistics can be found at the club's website <u>www.bentleycc.com</u> and will be updated.

The author would like to thank the "Guru" Stew Jefferys for his assistance taking on this task of compiling this record. He must be congratulated for his work over recent years preparing this document, it a a huge task which generally has little rewards. The committee must also be thanked for its assistance in preparing this document especially Brad Keenan and Lachie Harris for their assistance in gathering the reports contained within this yearbook. I would also like to thank Sue Paice for the photos of the two premiership teams for inclusion with the yearbook, much appreciated.

Simon Cleary

### Sponsors

